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This Prospectus is dated 14th July 2023

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONTENT OF THE PROSPECTUS

This Prospectus has been prepared from the information provided by Agarapatana Plantations Limited hereinafter sometimes referred

to as “APL”"/the “Company”, and from sources available to the public. The Directors of the Company, collectively and individually, having
made all reasonable enquiries confirm to the Managers and Financial Advisors to the Offer, that to the best of their knowledge and belief,
this Prospectus contains all information with respect to the Company, which is material in the context of the Offer for Subscription; that
the information contained herein is true and correct in all material respects and is not misleading; that there are no other material facts, the
omission of which would, make any statement contained herein misleading; that the opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly
held and have been reached after considering all relevant circumstances and are based on reasonable assumptions.

Where representations regarding the future performance of Agarapatana Plantations Limited have been given in this Prospectus, such
representations have been made after due and careful enquiry of the information available to the Company and making assumptions
considered to be reasonable at the present point in time in their best judgment.

Agarapatana Plantations Limited accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Prospectus. While Agarapatana Plantations
Limited has taken reasonable care to ensure full and fair disclosure of information, it does not assume any responsibility for any investment
decisions made by investors based on information contained herein. In making an investment decision, prospective investors must rely on
their own examination and assessments of the Company including the risks involved.

No person is authorized to give any information or make any representation not contained in this prospectus and if given or made any
such information and representation must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Company.

All the financial figures stated in the documentation refer to either the audited or unaudited financial information.

The delivery of this Prospectus shall not under any circumstances constitute a representation or create any implication or suggestion
that there has been no material change in the affairs of the Company since the date of this Prospectus. If any such material change
occurs, the same will be notified by the Company via a market announcement to the Colombo Stock Exchange (“CSE”).

If you are in any doubt regarding the contents of this Prospectus or if you require any advice in this regard, you should consult a
Lawyer, Managers and Financial Advisors to the Offer or any other Professional Advisor.
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All Applicants (both resident and non-resident) should indicate their respective National Identity Card (NIC) number or Company
Registration Number or Passport Number as the case may be in the Application Form. Individual resident Applicants should indicate
their passport number in the Application Form only if they do not have an NIC number.

As per the Directive of the SEC made under Circular No. 08/2010 dated November 22, 2010 and Circular No. 13/2010 issued
by the CDS dated November 30, 2010, all Shares shall be directly uploaded to the CDS. All Applicants should indicate their CDS
account number in the Application Form.

Applicants who do not have a CDS account are advised to open a valid CDS account prior to making the Application, in order to
facilitate the uploading of issued Shares to the CDS.

APPLICATIONS WHICH DO NOT CARRY A CDS ACCOUNT NUMBER, OR WHICH INDICATE AN INCORRECT/INACCURATE CDS
ACCOUNT NUMBER SHALL BE REJECTED AND NO ALLOTMENTS WILL BE MADE.

THE ISSUED SHARES SHALL BE CREDITED TO THE APPLICANT’S CDS ACCOUNT AS INDICATED IN THE APPLICATION
FORM.

PLEASE NOTE THAT SHARE CERTIFICATES SHALL NOT BE ISSUED.

You may open a CDS account through any Trading Participants of the CSE as set out in Annexure 6 or through any Custodian Bank
as set out in Annexure 7 of this Prospectus. You can also open a CDS account through the ‘CSE Mobile App’. The CSE mobile
application can be downloaded from the Apple App Store (For Apple iOS Users) or the Google Play Store (For Google Android
Users).

The CSE has taken reasonable care to ensure full and fair disclosure of information in this Prospectus. However, the CSE assumes
no responsibility for the accuracy of the statements made, opinions expressed or reports included in this Prospectus. Moreover, the
CSE does not regulate the pricing of the Shares which is decided solely by the Company.
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REGISTRATION OF THE PROSPECTUS

A copy of this Prospectus will be delivered to the Registrar General of Companies in Sri Lanka for registration once Issue Opening and
Closing Dates are decided. The following documents will also be attached to the copy of the Prospectus which will be delivered to the
Registrar General of Companies.

1) The written consent of the Managers and Financial Advisors to the Issue

The Managers and Financial Advisors to the Issue have given and have not before the delivery of a copy of the Prospectus for
registration withdrawn their written consent for the inclusion of their name as Managers and Financial Advisors to the Issue and for
the inclusion of their statements/declarations in the form in which it is included in the Prospectus.

2) The written consent of the Registrars to the Issue

The Registrars to the Issue have given and have not before the delivery of a copy of the Prospectus for registration withdrawn their
written consent for the inclusion of their name as Registrars to the Issue in the Prospectus.

3) The written consent of the Auditors and Reporting Accountants to the Company and the Issue

The Auditors and Reporting Accountants to the Company and the Issue have given and have not before the delivery of a copy of the
Prospectus for registration withdrawn their written consent for the inclusion of their name as Auditors and Reporting Accountants

to the Company and the Issue and for the inclusion of their report/statements in the form and context in which it is included in the
Prospectus.

4) The written consent of the Lawyers to the Issue

The Lawyers to the Issue have given and have not before the delivery of a copy of the Prospectus for registration withdrawn their
written consent for the inclusion of their name as Lawyers to the Issue in the Prospectus.

5) The written consent of the Bankers to the Company and the Issue

The Bankers to the Company and the Issue have given and have not before the delivery of a copy of the Prospectus for registration
withdrawn their written consent for the inclusion of their name as Bankers to the Company and the Issue in the Prospectus.

6) The written consent of the Company Secretaries

The Company Secretaries have given and have not before the delivery of a copy of the Prospectus for registration withdrawn their
written consent for the inclusion of their name as Company Secretary in the Prospectus.

7) The Declarations by the Directors

A declaration made by each of the directors of the Company confirming that each of them have read the provisions of the
Companies Act relating to the Offer of the Prospectus and that those provisions have been complied with.

Representation

No person is authorized to give any information or make any representation not contained in this Prospectus and if given or made,
any such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Company.

Registration of the Prospectus in jurisdictions outside Sri Lanka

This Prospectus has not been registered with any authority outside of Sri Lanka. Non-resident investors may be affected by the laws
of the jurisdictions of their residence. Such investors are responsible to comply with the laws relevant to the country of residence
and the laws of Sri Lanka, when making their investment.
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Forward Looking Statements

Any statements included in this Prospectus that are not statements of historical fact constitute “Forward Looking Statements”.
These can be identified by the use of forward-looking terms such as “expect”, “anticipate”, “intend”, “may”, “plan to”, “believe”,
“could” and similar terms or variations of such terms. However, these words are not the exclusive means of identifying Forward
Looking Statements. As such, all statements pertaining to expected financial position, business strategy, plans and prospects of the

Company are classified as Forward-Looking Statements.

Such Forward Looking Statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors including but not limited

to regulatory changes in the sectors in which the Company operates and its ability to respond to them, the Company’s ability to
successfully adapt to technological changes, exposure to market risks, general economic and fiscal policies of Sri Lanka, inflationary
pressures, the performance of financial markets both globally and locally, changes in domestic and foreign laws, regulation of taxes
and changes in competition in the industry and further uncertainties that may or may not be in the control of the Company.

Such factors may cause actual results, performance and achievements to materially differ from any future results, performance
or achievements expressed or implied by Forward Looking Statements herein. Forward Looking Statements are also based
on numerous assumptions regarding the Company’s present and future business strategies and the environment in which the
Company will operate in the future.

Given the risks and uncertainties that may cause the Company’s actual future results, performance or achievements to materially
differ from that expected, expressed or implied by Forward Looking Statements in this Prospectus, investors are advised not to
place sole reliance on such statements.

Investment Considerations

It is important that this Prospectus is read carefully prior to making an investment decision. For information concerning certain
risk factors, which should be considered by prospective investors, see Future Strategies, Assumptions associated with the future
strategies and Risks associated with the future strategies in Sections 3.6, 3.6.1, 3.6.2, 3.6.3 and 3.6.4 respectively.

Presentation of Currency Information and other Numerical Data

The financial statements of the Company and currency values of economic data or industry data in a local context will be expressed
in Sri Lanka Rupees. Reference in the Prospectus to “LKR”, “Rupees” and “Rs.” are reference to the local currency of Sri Lanka.

Certain numerical figures in the Prospectus have been subject to rounding off adjustments; accordingly, numerical figures shown as
totals in certain tables may not be an arithmetic aggregation of the figures that precede them.

Presentation of Macroeconomic and Industry Data

Economic and Industry data used throughout this Prospectus are derived from the Central Bank of Sri Lanka and various other
industry data sources, which the Company believes to be reliable, but the accuracy and completeness of that information is not
guaranteed. Similarly, industry surveys and other publications, while believed to be reliable, have not been independently verified
and neither the Company nor the Managers and Financial Advisors to the Offer make any representation as to the accuracy of that
information.
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ISSUE AT A GLANCE

Company

Agarapatana Plantations Limited

Total Number of Shares to be
Issued

Eighty Three Million Seventy Thousand One Hundred and Eleven (83,070,111) Ordinary Voting
Shares

Share Issue Price

LKR 9.00 per Share

Amount to be Raised

LKR 747,630,999.00

Minimum Subscription per
Application

Minimum subscription per Application is 100 Shares. Applications exceeding the minimum
subscription should be in multiples of 100 Shares

Minimum subscription of 100 Shares will be allotted to each successful Applicant

Issue Opening Date 10th August 2023
Issue Closing Date 29th August 2023
Earliest Closing Date 10th August 2023

Basis of Allotment

As described in Section 1.9 of this Prospectus

CSE Listing

To be listed on the Diri Savi Board of the CSE, subject to compliance with the CSE Listing Rules
and the SEC Directives (as applicable)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Company

Agarapatana Plantations Limited

Date of Incorporation

22 June 1992

Place of Incorporation

Colombo, Sri Lanka

Legal Form of the Company

Incorporated in Sri Lanka under the provisions of the Companies Act No. 17 of 1982 as a limited
liability company and re-registered on 26 February 2009 under the provisions of the Companies
Act No. 7 of 2007

Authority of Incorporation: Registrar General of Companies (ROC), Colombo

Company Registration Number

PB 899

Registered Office and Current
Place of Business

Agarapatana Plantations Limited
53-1/1, Sir Baron Jayatilaka Mawatha,
Colombo 1

Board of Directors

S.D.R. Arudpragasam - Chairman - Non-Executive Director

C.P.R. Perera - Deputy Chairman - Independent Non-Executive Director
D.R. Madena - Chief Executive Officer - Executive Director

S.S. Poholiyadde - Executive Director

M. Kowdu K. Mohideen — Executive Director

Anushman Rajaratnam — Non-Executive Director

P.M.A. Sirimane — Independent Non — Executive Director

G.K.B. Dasanayaka - Independent Non — Executive Director

A.M. de S. Jayaratne — Independent Non — Executive Director

Company Secretaries

Corporate Managers & Secretaries (Pvt) Ltd

8-5/2, Leyden Bastian Road, York Arcade Building,
Colombo 01

Tel: +94 11 234 4485

Auditors to the Company

Ernst & Young Chartered Accountants
201, De Saram Place,

Colombo 10

Tel: +94 11 246 3500

Fax: +94 11 269 7369

Bankers to the Company

Bank of Ceylon

1, Bank of Ceylon Mawatha,
Colombo 01

Tel: +94 11 244 7802

Fax: +94 11 244 6819

Hatton National Bank PLC
City Office Branch

16, Janadhipathi Mawatha
Colombo 01

Tel: +94 11 556 2562

Fax: +94 11 234 7243

Nations Trust Bank PLC
City Office Branch

76, York Street,
Colombo 01

Tel: +94 11 473 8902
Fax: +94 11 473 7918



Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC
Foreign Branch

No 21, Sir Razik Fareed Mawatha,
Colombo 01

Tel: +94 11 248 6438

Fax: +94 11 244 9889

Sampath Bank PLC

Head Quarters Branch

110, Sir James Pieris Mawatha,
Colombo 02

Tel: +94 11 473 0147

Fax: +94 11 471 2017
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Managers and Financial Advisors
to the Issue

Capital Alliance Partners Limited
Level 5, “Millennium House”,
46/58, Navam Mawatha,
Colombo 02.

Tel: +94 11 231 7777

Fax: +94 11 231 7788

Legal Advisors and Lawyers to
the Issue

FJ & G de Saram
Attorneys-at-Law

216 De Saram Place,
Colombo 10.

Tel: +94 11 471 8200
Fax: +94 11 471 8220

Auditors and Reporting
Accountants to the Issue

Ernst & Young Chartered Accountants
201, De Saram Place,

Colombo 10.

Tel: +94 11 246 3500

Fax: +94 11 269 7369

Registrars to the Issue

S S P Corporate Services (Private) Limited
101, Inner Flower Road,

Colombo 08.

Tel: +94 11 257 3485

Fax: +94 11 257 3609

Bankers to the Issue

NDB Bank PLC

No. 40, Nawam Mawatha
Colombo 02.

Tel: +94 11 744 8448
Fax: +94 11 230 5031
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

%

Percentage

Applicant/s

Any investor who submits an Application Form under this Prospectus

Application Form, Application

The Application Form that constitutes part of this Prospectus through which the investors may
apply for the Shares

Articles of Association

Articles of Association of Agarapatana Plantations Limited

AWPLR Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate

Bn Billion

CBSL Central Bank of Sri Lanka

CDSs Central Depository Systems (Private) Limited
CEFTS Common Electronic Fund Transfer Switch
CEO Chief Executive Officer

Companies Act

Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 (as amended)

Company, APL

Agarapatana Plantations Limited

CSE Colombo Stock Exchange
Directors The Directors for the time being of the Company, unless otherwise stated
EPS Earnings Per Share

Foreign Investor

Citizens of Sri Lanka who are resident outside Sri Lanka and above 18 years of age;
Corporate bodies incorporated or established outside Sri Lanka;

Foreign citizens above 18 years of age (irrespective of whether they are resident in Sri Lanka or
overseas);

Regional and country funds approved by the SEC

Please refer Section 2.1 for further information

Float Adjusted Market
Capitalisation

Public shareholding percentage of the Company multiplied by the Market Capitalisation of the
Company. Market Capitalisation is based on the Share Issue Price

Fy21 Financial Year Ended 31 March 2021
FY22 Financial Year Ended 31 March 2022
1A Inward Investment Account

IPO Initial Public Offering

Issue, Offer for Subscription

An invitation to the public by the Company to subscribe to the Offered Shares to be issued via an
Offer for Subscription as detailed in this Prospectus

LKR Sri Lankan Rupees
Mn Million
NAV Net Asset Value




' New Shares, Offered Shares
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Eighty Three Million Seventy Thousand One Hundred Eleven (83,070,111) new Ordinary Voting
Shares to be issued by the Company to the public at the Share Offer Price

NIC

National Identity Card

No.

Number

Offer Closing, Closure Date

The date of closure of the subscription list as set out in Section 1.8 of this Prospectus

Offer Opening Date

The date of opening of the subscription list as set out in Section 1.8 of this Prospectus

Ordinary Shares, Shares,
Ordinary Voting Shares and
Paid-up Ordinary Shares

Ordinary Shares of the Company, with the right to one vote per share on a poll at a meeting of
the Company on any resolution, the right to an equal share in dividends paid by the Company
and the right to an equal share in the distribution of the surplus assets of the Company in
liquidation

P/E Price to Earnings Ratio

P/BV Price to Book Value Ratio

POA Power of Attorney

Prospectus This Prospectus dated 14th July 2023 issued by the Company
ROE Return on Equity

RTGS Real-time Gross Settlement

SEC Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka

Share Offer Price, Share Issue
Price

The price at which the New Shares will be offered to the public, as detailed in the Prospectus, i.e.
LKR 9.00 per Ordinary Voting Share

SLIPS

Sri Lanka Inter-bank Payment System

Stated Capital

The Stated Capital of Agarapatana Plantations Limited

The Board, The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of Agarapatana Plantations Limited

VAT

Value Added Tax
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1. DETAILS OF THE ISSUE

1.1 THEISSUE

The Issue contemplated herein shall constitute an invitation made to the public to subscribe for Eighty Three Million Seventy
Thousand One Hundred Eleven (83,070,111) Ordinary Voting Shares through an Offer for Subscription. The Offered Shares
amount to approximately 16.61% of the post-issue Ordinary Voting Shares of the Company at an Issue Price of Rupees
Nine (LKR 9.00) per Share payable in full on application on the terms and conditions set out in this Prospectus. The Issue will
constitute an Offer for Subscription, as detailed below:

Table 1 - 1 The Issue

Number of New Shares in Issue Eighty Three Million Seventy Thousand One Hundred and Eleven (83,070,111) Ordinary\“
Voting Shares

Percentage of Shares on Offer 16.61%

Issue Price per Share LKR 9.00

Issue Value LKR 747,630,999.00 Y,

The minimum subscription shall be 100 Ordinary Voting Shares at LKR 9.00 per share and applications in excess of the minimum
subscription should be in multiples of 100 Shares.

1.2 OBJECTIVES OF THE ISSUE

The Company intends to raise LKR 747,630,999.00 from the new issue of shares to invest in modern equipment to develop APL
factories to “State of the Art - Processing Centres” and settlement of high-cost term loans as listed below:

Table 1 - 2 Objectives of the Issue

Purchase of modern equipment to develop APL factories to 672,630,999 FY 2023/24 — FY 2024/25
“State of the Art - Processing Centres”.
Settlement of high-cost term loans. 75,000,000 FY 2023/24

Please note that the objectives of the issue do not amount to a Major Transaction according to Section 185 of the Companies
Act No.07 of 2007.
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Investment Into Purchase of Modern Equipment for the Factories

The Company intends to develop its factories to “State of the Art - Processing Centres” investing in new technology by gradually
replacing old machinery with modern equipment. The details of plant & machinery that will be purchased and their purpose are

listed below.

Table 1 - 3 New Plant & Machinery to be purchased

Variable Speed Allen Bradley/ Rockwell To reduce the power Albion 80 40,000,000
Drive units Automation of USA- consumption of the Trough Balmoral
PowerFlex4M AC Drive, Motors, that are used daily Diyagama West
480VAC, 3PH, 24 Amps, 11 for withering and to improve  Glasgow
KW, 15 HP 22F - D024N104 the quality of the withering Hauteville
process. Waverley
Dambetenne
Haputale
Nayabedde
Pita Ratmalie
De - stoner Origin of China - De - stoner for ~ To remove heavy foreign Albion 10 32,000,000
Black tea (TDS - 600+) material (stone, sand, metal, Balmoral
and plastic) and light material  Glasgow
(fibre, fluff etc.) Almost 80%  Hauteville
of the APL production is Diyagama East
purchased by the Japanese  Diyagama West
Market through the Colombo  Waverley
Tea Auction and require Haputale
stringent controls on Nayabedde
contamination and MRLs, Pita Ratmalie
which can be removed by
these machines.
Batch weigher Dry tea Weighing Machine To avoid manual weighment  Albion 12 36,000,000
connected to the Drier outlet. and human errors and Balmoral
The system consists feeding provide accurate data to the  Glasgow
conveyer, weighing unit and management. The remote Hauteville
unloading conveyer (optional). monitoring facility provides Waverley
easy handling of multiple Diyagama East
factories from Head Office. Diyagama West
Dambetenne
Glenanore
Haputale
Nayabedde
Pita Ratmalie
Driers & Heaters A new Hot Water Generator To replace the existing FBD4  Balmoral 1 50,000,000
800,000 Kcal unit with that is coupled to the Diesel
connected Pipings & Radiator. fired Heat Exchanger in the
Balmoral Estate.
A new full height SS Chimney. To increase the Drier output ~ Torrington 1 10,630,999

Transfer of existing Combination
Drier - Tempest 4 module

& Shola 5 pass heater from
Hauteville Estate.

and the Chimney will prevent
smoke contamination in the
Torrington estate.
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A new FBD 3 with Hot Water As there is currently Glasgow 1 52,000,000
Generator 750,000 Kcal unit only one Drier available

with connected pipings & for manufacture that is

Radiator. connected to Mechmar Hot

water Generator (over 10
years old) in the Glasgow

estate.
A new FBD 4 Drier chamber There is currently one Drier ~ Hauteville 1 17,000,000
with an installation of full height ~ connected to the Mechmar
SS chimney Hot water Generator

(over 10 years old) in the
Hauteville estate. The

new Drier chamber will be
connected to the existing
generator and the full height
Chimney will prevent smoke

contamination.
A new FBD 3 with Hot Water The new Drier with Hot Diyagama West 1 52,000,000
Generator 750,000 Kcal unit Water Generator will be used
with connected pipings & to cope with the production
Radiator. during the high cropping

periods in the Diyagama
West estate.

A new Hot Water Generator This Estate/Mark with "Lipton Dambatenne 1 60,000,000
800,000 Kcal for the existing Seat" is world renowned as

2nd Drier FBD 4 Chamber. an estate with continuous

Replacement of the existing production. Therefore, the

Trembler Drier Chamber with a  new purchase is essential

new FBD 5 Chamber. as there is only one Drier

available in Dambatenne for
manufacture with Trembler
chamber and Mechmar Hot
water Generator which is
over 10 years old.

A new 350 kgs high output ECP  As there are currently only Glenanore 1 80,000,000
Drier with 800,000 Kcal Hot 2 ECP Diriers available for
Water or Air Generator. manufacture in Glenanore,

the new Drier will be
essential for the high Bought

Leaf intake.
A new FBD 3 Drier with 750,000 To cope with the demand for Haputale 1 52,000,000
Kcal Hot Water Generator UVA Region Rotorvane Small

Leaf teas in Haputale and if
there is a shift in the market.
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A new No 16, 5 pass Air Heater. To be used in Pita Ratmalie Pita Ratmalie 1 26,000,000
to undertake Semi Leafy
manufacture as and when
necessary.
Automation of Vibratory and roller bed To reduce the cost of Glenanore 40,000,000
Rolling Room conveyers have been identified ~ manufacture as there are
for fabrication and installation more than 15 workers
with a Process Diagram in employed at the Glenanore
Glenanore Factory. Factory. The automation
could reduce workers to
approximately 4 — 5.
Energy Savings  The 15Hp/10Hp Trough Motors/  The power consumption will  Torrington 16 16,000,000
Fan units Fans will be replaced with be reduced as 50% to 60%  Glenanore
7.5Hp/5.0Hp Trough Fans. of the power is consumed
by the withering units in the
Factory.
Replacement of 500 Kva Diesel Generator - To replace the existing Dambatenne 2 56,000,000
Generator standby power Genset UK Generators in Dambatenne Glenanore
Origin, Engine from USA and Glenanore that do not
and Alternator from France. have adequate capacity
Assembled in UK to run the factories. The
existing units will be
transferred to Pitaratmalie
and Gonamotawa factories.
Colour Sorter MEYER - Four - Stage Colour The bottle neck in the colour  Glenanore 1 27,000,000
Sorter with 24 nos cameras. sorting in the Glenanore
Origin China. Factory will be overcome by
the new installation. This will
further reduce the turning
time of crop to cash thereby
assisting the Company to
encash the produce faster.
Rollers Gamini Rollers - size 47", To enhance the style/twist in ~ Waverley 4 26,000,000
Standard model. Fabricated in the manufacturing process Glenanore
Sri Lanka by Gamini Engineering  which will improve the Haputale
(Pvt) Ltd. density of the tea grades and
quality of the Liquors which
will result in enhanced prices
and revenue.
Total 672,630,999

* The value of the plant & machinery is based on quotations obtained by the company from the respective suppliers. Please note that the plant

and machinery are not purchased from any related parties.
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The installation of these machineries will result in the following benefits:

1. Potential increase in quality of tea, thereby resulting in APL being able to obtain higher prices via the tea auction.
2. Increase in efficiency of production via automation.

3. Reduction in cost of manual labour and energy costs (due to installation of latest machineries that consumes less electricity)
The Company hopes to conclude these plant and machinery purchases within 24 months from receiving IPO proceeds.

Retirement of Selected High-Cost Term Loans of the Company

The Company intends to utilize LKR 75,000,000 of the IPO proceeds to retire selected high-cost term loans of APL. The majority
of the debt to be settled was initially borrowed to settle working capital deficits.

The details of the respective original loans and the current outstanding is listed below:

Table 1 - 4 Outstanding debt

Bank of Ceylon ' 30th August 2016 200 AWPLR + 2% 45.83 5.52
Bank of Ceylon ' 083rd October 2019 50 AWPLR + 3% 31.81 1.64

" Bank of Ceylon is not a related party.

Please refer to Note 18 in the audited financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2022 for the details on the above loans (Bank of Ceylon -
Rs. 200 Mn & Bank of Ceylon — Rs. 50 Mn)

The Company will settle monthly loan instalments using internally generated funds until the IPO proceeds are materialized.
Accordingly, the outstanding loan balance at the time of IPO will be approximately LKR 75 Mn. The full retirement of these
loans using the IPO proceeds is expected to strengthen the balance sheet position of the Group and in turn will support its
future expansion plans. There are currently no arrears of interest payable in respect of these loans. The debt-to-equity ratio of
the Company as at 31st December 2022 is 1.13x. With the settlement of the loans indicated above, the debt-to-equity ratio is
expected to improve to 1.11x. This will enhance the capability of the Group to source additional long-term debt funding for its
expansion strategies (refer Future Strategies Section). Furthermore, the full retirement of the specified loans is expected to lead
to a reduction in the Company’s finance cost of approximately LKR 25.56 million per year (subject to changes in AWPLR) and
thereby increase the return to shareholders in the short to medium term. Through this repayment the Company will be left with
only low-cost term loans.

SPECIFIC RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THE OBJECTIVES OF THE ISSUE

RISK OF INCREASE IN PRICES OF PLANT & MACHINERY

Increases in estimated cost of the Plant & Machinery due to exchange rate fluctuations as a result of further depreciation of
LKR will have a major impact on the viability and expected returns of the project. The Company will continually be involved in
monitoring all the costs, assessing any variances and taking required action to ensure that the said investments are within its
estimated cost. In the event funds raised via Offer for Subscription are insufficient to cover cost overruns, APL would utilise
internally generated funds or undertake external borrowings, as required to finance the same.
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RISK OF IMPORT RESTRICTIONS ON PLANT & MACHINERY

Most of the Plant & Machinery items listed in Table 1-3 are not manufactured in Sri Lanka and have to be imported from United
Kingdom, China and India. There is a risk of import restrictions due to the foreign currency shortage in the country. However, as
the tea industry exports and brings foreign currency to the country, the Controller of Customs has granted permission to import
such machinery. The Company will utilize revenue proceeds received from BMF sales (Approximately $ 50,000 per month) to
make payments in dollars. Even under the current circumstances, the Company has been able to import several CAPEX items
from overseas through their main banker — Bank of Ceylon. In the event such permission is withdrawn due to extreme economic
downfall faced by the Country, the funds will be kept under a Call Deposit. Iltems such as Plucking machines, Driers, Heaters,
Colour Sorters, De-Stoners and Generators have already been imported by the Company.

RISK OF NOT BEING ABLE TO UTILISE THE IPO PROCEEDS ON A TIMELY BASIS OR FOR THE
OBJECTIVES SPECIFIED UNDER SECTION 1.2

APL does not intend to deviate from any objectives mentioned above when utilising the proceeds raised through the Offer for
Subscription. However, if the entirety of IPO proceeds is not utilised immediately, such funds will be invested in other short-
term fixed income instruments such as overnight reverse repos at the prevailing rate of return, until such time it is used for
investments. In the event the Company is compelled to utilize the proceeds raised for any purpose, other than the purpose
mentioned or any deviation from the stipulated time frame to achieve such objective or any deviation from amount allocated for
such objective, the Company will make necessary disclosures to the Shareholders via the CSE and include relevant disclosures
in the Interim Financial Statements and Annual Report as appropriate. Further, the Company will take necessary steps to
obtain the approvals of the relevant parties including the shareholders at that point in time and make necessary disclosures as
appropriate.

Table 1 - 5 Use of Proceeds Update Template

In the event the proceeds raised through Offer for Subscription have been fully utilised by the Company for any objective as
disclosed in the Prospectus between two financial periods, the Company would disclose such fact in the immediate succeeding
Annual Report or the Interim Financial Statement, whichever is published first, subsequent to the utilisation in its entirety as per
the above template.

NATURE OF THE NEW SHARES ISSUED

Eighty Three Million Seventy Thousand One Hundred and Eleven (83,070,111) Ordinary Voting Shares offered shall, upon
allotment, rank equal and pari passu in all respects with the other existing Ordinary Voting Shares of the Company to be listed
and such Shares shall confer on the holder thereof the right to one vote per share on a poll at a meeting of the Company on any
resolution, the right to an equal share in any dividend that may be paid by the Company after the allotment of the Offered Shares
and the right to an equal share in the distribution of the surplus assets of the Company in a liquidation.

SIZE OF THE OFFERING

If the Offer is fully subscribed, the Company, shall raise a sum of Sri Lanka Rupees Seven Hundred and Forty Seven Million Six
Hundred and Thirty Thousand Nine Hundred and Ninety Nine (LKR 747,630,999).
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SHARE ISSUE PRICE

The Board of Directors of the Company have, after careful consideration, resolved that the Issue Price of Rupees Nine (LKR
9.00) per Share for the New Ordinary Voting Shares being offered, is fair and reasonable to the Company and to all existing
Shareholders of the Company.

The Issue Price was determined by the Company in consultation with the Managers and Financials Advisors to the Issue. The
Net Asset Value per share of the Equity (NAV) is LKR 8.43 and the Offer Price is 1.07 times the NAV. The following table shows a

summary of the Valuation Methods used to determine the Issue Price:

Table 1 - 6 Summary Valuation

Valuation Method Value per Share (LKR) Issue Price Discount to Valuation
P/E 12.10 25.62%
Price to Book 7.90 (13.92)%
EV/Hectare 12.20 26.23%

The Offer price was determined by Agarapatana Plantations Limited in consultation with Capital Alliance Partners Limited in
accordance with the Research Report compiled by Capital Alliance Partners Limited in line with Rule 3.1.4 (c) of the CSE Listing
Rules. A copy of the Research Report that justifies the IPO price and contain the basis and methodologies used to determine the
IPO Price is enclosed in Annexure 4 of this prospectus.

The Investors are advised to read the following summary with the risk factors included in Section 3.6.3 Risks Associated
with the Future Strategies and the details about Agarapatana Plantations Limited and its Financial Statements included in
this Prospectus.

Qualitative Factors

All the Company’s tea extent is located in the “High Grown” district of Nuwara Eliya and Badulla, which fall within the Western
and Uva High elevational categories. High grown tea sourced from tea plantations are found from 1200 m upwards and is
considered to be one of the best tasting teas around the world due to its well-defined flavor, aroma and strength. The vision of
the Company is to become the highest producer of tea in the “High Grown” sector whilst being the foremost producer of high-
quality tea.

The Company has well established tea garden marks in the Western High and Uva High elevations.

The Company has the ability to increase its existing production with the small holder bought leaf that is processed in their existing
processing centres.

Agarapatana Plantations is currently in the tourism sector, accommodating many visitors to its historical site of Lipton’s Seat. The
Company has the potential to promote tourism having many preferred sites in close proximity to the plantations. Haputale has
become a major destination, with several attractions closeby. In addition, the close proximity of other attractions such as the 9
Arch Bridge, Ella and Ravana Ella, Horton Plains including Sri Lanka'’s tallest waterfall Bambarakanda Ella and Devil’s Staircase
makes up a collection of sites.
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Renewable Energy

The Company is looking to maximize power generation from the Company’s own resources as this will result in substantial
savings. The Company is already into hydro power generation having a hydro power plant in Diyagama West estate and there is
potential to expand another facility by a further 1 Megawatt at the same location and this will be pursued. This will allow electricity
from this facility to be supplied to the Diyagama East estate. Additionally, the Company has already commenced feasibility studies
to install solar power systems on the existing factory roofs and the feasibility of extracting wind power along the southern slopes in
the Uva Region will be explored. There are currently 14 tea factories functioning solely with power supply from the main grid.

Quantitative Factors
The following quantitative factors were used to determine the Issue Price.

A. APL’s Earnings per Share (EPS), Return on Equity (ROE) and Price to Earnings (P/E) Ratio
Table 1 - 7 Historical and Adjusted Earnings per Share (EPS), Return on Equity (ROE) and Price to Earnings Ratio (P/E)

31st March 2021 0.81 0.81 29.00% 11.11
31st March 2022 0.09 0.09 1.71% 100.00
Average' 0.45 0.45 15.35% 55.56
3 months ended 31 December 2022° 1.23 1.23 14.61% 7.31

Source: APL Audited Financial Statements, Interim Financial Statements
Sector Classification: Food, Beverage and Tobacco

"Average calculated on the previous two years F/E ratios

?APL does not have any dilutive instruments in the capital structure

SReturn on Equity calculated as Net Profit after Tax divided by Net Assets as at the end of the Period
“P/E Ratio of APL is calculated on the IPO Issue Price of LKR 9.00

5as per Consolidated Financial Statements (Limited review)

B. APL’s P/E in relation to the Offer Price of LKR 9.00 per Share

Based on Basic and Diluted EPS of LKR 0.09 for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2022, the P/E Ratio is 100.00 times.
b. Based on the two-year average (FY21 - FY22) EPS of LKR 0.45, the P/E ratio is 20.00 times.

Industry P/E details are given below:

o

C.

Table 1 - 8 Comparison of P/E ratios of Peers

Lowest Udapussellawa Plantations PLC 1.72
Highest Hatton Plantations PLC 3.75
Industry Average™ 2.58

Source: Based on Audited Financial Statements of the aforesaid companies for the year ended 31st March 2022 and Interim Financial Statements
for the period ended 31st December 2022 and 2021 published on the CSE Website

Sector Classification: Food, Beverage and Tobacco

*Peers were chosen based on their suitability with the operating model of APL from companies believed to closely represent the market APL
operates in. Closing price as at 27th February 2023 and earnings per share as at 31st December 2022

*Industry Average obtained from the Comparable companies identified in Section D below
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C.

D.
Peer comparison based on the 31st December 2022 financial statements is as follows:

APL’s Net Asset Value (NAV) per Share and Price-to-Book Value (P/BV) Ratio
Based on the NAV per Share in the latest audited financial statements as at 31st March 2022 of LKR 3.91, the P/BV ratio is

2.30 times. The NAV per share as at 31st March 2021 was LKR 2.01.

Based on the NAV per Share in the latest unaudited interim financial statements as at 31st December 2022 of LKR 8.43, the

P/BV ratio is 1.07 times.

Post-IPO NAV per Share is LKR 8.53, adjusted to reflect the NAV as at 31st December 2022 (LKR 8.43) and number of

shares in issue assuming the full subscription of the Shares issued via the IPO.

Offer Price: LKR 9.00

Comparison of Accounting Ratios of the Industry

Table 1 - 9 Comparison of Accounting Ratios of Peers

Hatton Plantations PLC 6.43 16.54 3.75 38.85%
Bogawantalawa Tea Estates PLC 14.99 31.43 3.20 47.71%
Maskeliya Plantations PLC 20.17 33.88 2.03 59.52%
Udapussellawa Plantations PLC 54.07 133.09 1.72 40.62%
Talawakelle Tea Estates PLC 42.27 106.71 2.1 39.61%
Kelani Valley Plantations PLC 39.84 103.88 1.84 38.36%
Balangoda Plantations PLC 20.63 89.33 3.39 23.10%
Industry Average 28.34 73.55 2.58 41.11%

Source: Based on Audited Financial Statements of the aforesaid companies for the year ended 31st March 2022 published on the CSE Website
and Interim Financial Statements for the period ended 31st December 2022 and 2021 published on the CSE Website, Based on the Interim

Financial Statements of the aforesaid companies for the period ended 31st December 2022 published on the Capital IQ

Sector Classification: Food, Beverage and Tobacco

*Closing Price as at 27th February 2023 and the earnings for the trailing twelve months up to 31st December 2022 have been considered for the
TTM PER calculation.
*Equity Value as at 31st December 2022, Unaudited Interim Financial Statements

Refer research report for a detailed explanation of the peer analysis.

LISTING

The Ordinary Voting Shares offered via the Offer for Subscription, and, if fully subscribed, will amount to 16.61% of the issued
Ordinary Voting Shares of the Company.

An application has been made and approved in principle by the CSE for permission to deal in and for a listing of Five Hundred

Million (500,000,000) Ordinary Voting Shares of the Company which will take place on the Diri Savi Board of the CSE.

However, the CSE reserves the right to withdraw such approval, in the circumstances set out in Rule 2.3 of the Listing Rules of
the CSE.

Further, APL has obtained the requisite approval from the SEC under Section 80 of the Securities and Exchange Commission of

Sri Lanka Act No. 19 of 2021 for the listing of the Shares of the APL on the CSE.
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The Company had requested for a waiver of Listing Rule 2.1.2 (A) (i) (b) and CSE in consultation with the SEC granted a
waiver of Rule 2.1.2 (A) (i) (b) of the CSE Listing Rules to the company (See section 3.16.5). APL is therefore in compliance
with Rule 2.1.2 (A) (i) (@) and (d) of the CSE Listing Rules and it is in compliance with rule 2.1.2 (A) (i) (b), subject to the waiver
granted by the CSE. It is expected that the Company will meet the minimum public holding requirement set out in the CSE
Listing Rules 2.1.2 (A) (ii) (c), which requires that, in the event the Float Adjusted Market Capitalisation of the listing entity is less
than LKR 1.0 billion, 10% of the total number of shares for which a listing is sought should be in the hands of a minimum number
of 200 public shareholders at the completion of the Issue, pursuant to which the listing of the entire Ordinary shares of the
Company will take place on the Diri Savi Board of the CSE.

However, in the event the Offering is undersubscribed, APL will still meet the above requirements, as the Company currently has
a public holding of 10% and Post IPO the public holding will be 24.95% (with IPO proceeds), subject to meeting the number

of public shareholders stipulated above post-IPO. However, in the event the Company being unable to meet the said public
holding requirements upon closure of the Issue, the Ordinary Voting Shares of the Company will not be listed on the CSE and the
Company will return all monies received from Applicants.

SUBSCRIPTION LIST

The subscription list for the Shares Offered will open at 9.00 a.m. on 10th August 2023 and shall remain open for fourteen (14)
market days until closure at 4.30 p.m. on 29th August 2023 In the event of an oversubscription of the Offered Shares prior to the
Issue Closing Date, the Company shall inform the CSE in writing immediately of such fact and the subscription list shall be closed
on the same day at 4.30 p.m., with written notification to the CSE.

BASIS OF ALLOTMENT

The basis of allotting the shares will be as per the manner prescribed in the CSE Listing Rule 2.1.1 (g) () (ii), since the size of the
Offering is less than LKR 3.00 billion. The basis of allotment will be as follows:

Table 1 - 10 Basis of Allotment

Investor Category Percentage of Issue Allocated
Retail Individual Investors 40.00%
Unit Trusts Investors 10.00%
Employees and Directors 10.00%
Non-Retail Investors 40.00%
Total 100.00%

In determining the basis of allotment within the Retail Individual Investor Category, individual investors who subscribe for a small
number of shares shall be given priority.

‘Retail Individual Investor’ shall mean an individual investor who subscribes for a maximum of Three Thousand (3,000) shares or
a value of not more than Rupees Hundred Thousand (Rs. 100,000/-) in a particular share class, whichever is higher.

‘Unit Trust Investor’ includes growth or balanced Unit Trusts operated by Managing Companies licensed by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka (SEC) to operate such Unit Trusts, where such Unit Trust comprises of not less than Five
Hundred (500) unit-holders resident in Sri Lanka who together hold at least 50% of that fund.

Please note that the Company will examine whether the Applicants under Unit Trusts investor category comply with criteria
defined by the SEC Directive dated 06th June 2011 (SEC/LEG/11/06/01) and CSE Listing Rule 2.1.1 (g) (1) (ii) (90).

‘Employee and Director’ shall mean employees and directors of APL. The basis of allotment for the Employees and Directors
Category will be at the discretion of the Board of Directors of the Company.
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‘Non-Retail Investor’ category shall include investors who do not fall under the ‘Retail Individual Investor’, ‘Unit Trusts Investor’
and ‘Employee and Director’ category.

Immediately after the basis of allotment being decided by the Board of Directors of the Company an announcement will be made
to the CSE. The Company will notify successful applicants on the allotment of shares to them within Ten (10) market days from
the date of closure of the Offering.

In the event of an under subscription in the Retail Individual Investor Category, the Unit Trust Investor Category shall be given first
priority in the allotment of the unsubscribed Shares.

In the event of an under subscription in the Unit Trust Investor Category, the Retail Individual Investor Category shall be given first
priority in allotment of the unsubscribed Shares.

Subject to the above, in the event of an under subscription in any one or more of the categories, the quantum of Shares
unsubscribed may be redistributed to other categories that may be oversubscribed in a fair manner at the discretion of the Board
of Directors.

In the event of an oversubscription in any one or more of the categories, in spite of the aforementioned distribution, the New
Shares will be allotted at the discretion of the Board of Directors of the Company in a fair manner.

Redistribution will not apply in the event of an oversubscription or under subscription in all the categories.

The Company will notify successful Applicants on their allotment within Ten (10) market days from the date of closure of the
Issue, as required by the CSE.

The Board of Directors of APL reserves the right to preferentially allot up to 50% of the shares available for allotment under

the Non-Retail Investor Category (Upto 20% of the issued IPO shares) to identified investors (e.g. Foreign/Local Institutional
Investors, and other High Net Worth Individuals) who apply through this category under the IPO. However, in the event of an
undersubscription in the totality of the Unit Trust Investor Category and the Retail Individual Investor Category (after fully allotting
to all such applicants), the quantum of Shares unsubscribed may be redistributed to the preferential allotment so long as 20% of
the issued IPO shares are allotted to the Non-retail investor category for which no preferential allocation is given provided there is
no undersubscription in the Non-retail investor category.

COST OF THE OFFER

The Directors of the Company estimate that the total cost of the Share Offer will be approximately LKR 37.8 Mn, translating to
[5.06%] of the funds raised.

The above cost estimation includes the initial listing fees, fees payable to the Managers and Financial Advisor to the Issue,
Registrars to the Issue, Bankers to the Issue, Lawyers to the Issuer, advertising and promotional agency, costs of postage, stamp
duty and printing, and brokerage commission. These costs will be recovered from internally generated funds of the Company.

BROKERAGE

Brokerage at the rate of zero decimal five per centum (0.50%) will be paid by the Company in respect of the number of shares
allotted on applications bearing the stamp of any trading participants of the CSE or Managers and Financial Advisors to the
Issue.
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MINIMUM SUBSCRIPTION AND UNDERWRITING

No underwriting arrangement has been made by the Company for this Share Issue. Further, in the opinion of the Directors of

the Company, there is no minimum subscription required to be raised through this Issue because the Company already meets
the minimum capital and public holding requirement. In the event the Offer is undersubscribed, the subscribers shall be allotted/
allocated in full and funds raised via the Offer for Subscription together with internally generated funds and/or external borrowings
shall be utilised to meet the objective of purchase of equipment as set out in Section 1.2.1 herein. The two high-cost loans as set
out in section 1.2.2 will continue as is.

INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS

Certified copies of the following documents will be available for inspection during normal business hours at the Registered
Office of Agarapatana Plantations Limited, 53-1/1, Sir Baron Jayatilaka Mawatha, Colombo 01, from the date hereof, until the
subscription list is closed or up to 14 market days, whichever is later.

a) Articles of Association

S &

Auditors report and audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March 2022

Material contracts and Management agreements

a o

Reports, letters, valuations and statements by any expert, any part of which is extracted or referred to in this Prospectus

The audited accounts of the Company for five (5) financial years immediately preceding the publication of this Prospectus

&

Consolidated interim financials for the nine months ended 31st December 2022 with the limited review

=

The Prospectus and the Articles of Association of the Company will also be hosted on the Company’s website www.
lankemplantations.lk and the CSE website www.cse.lk during the above-mentioned period.

The Research Report prepared by the Managers and Financial Advisor to the Issue will be hosted on the Company website
www.lankemplantations.lk and the CSE website www.cse.lk for a period of two (02) months commencing from the date of
issuance of the Prospectus.
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Agarapatana Plantations Limited

PROCEDURE FOR APPLICATION

ELIGIBILITY TO INVEST

Applications are invited from the following categories of applicants, having a valid CDS account in the Central Depository System
(Private) Limited (CDS Account):

a) Citizens of Sri Lanka who are resident within Sri Lanka and are above 18 years of age.
b) Citizens of Sri Lanka resident outside of Sri Lanka and who are above 18 years of age.
c) Foreign Citizens who are above 18 years of age.

d) Companies, Corporations or Institutions incorporated or established within Sri Lanka.
e) Corporate bodies incorporated or established outside Sri Lanka.

f)  Approved Unit Trusts licensed by the SEC.

g) Approved Provident Funds and approved contributory pension schemes registered / incorporated / established in Sri Lanka.
Applications by these bodies must be in the name of the Trustee / Board of Management thereof, in order to facilitate the
opening of the CDS Accounts.

h) Regional and Country funds approved by the SEC.
IMPORTANT - Joint Applicants should not apply through a separate Application Form either individually or jointly.

Applications will NOT be accepted from individuals under the age of 18 years or if made in the names of Sole Proprietorships,
Partnerships, Unincorporated Trusts or any Non-Corporate Bodies.

PROCEDURE FOR APPLICATION

The Prospectus and Application Form will be available free of charge from the collection points listed under Annexure 5 in this
Prospectus. The Prospectus can also be downloaded from www.cse.lk.

(I) via Physical Delivery

The Application Form should be legibly completed and be received by the Registrars to the Issue during the stipulated time
period. Care must be taken to follow the instructions on the reverse of the Application Form. Applications that do not strictly
conform to such instructions and additional conditions set out hereunder or which are illegible may be rejected.

(1) via APL Website

The Prospectus and Physical Application Form can also be downloaded from www.cse.lk and the APL website
ipo.lankemplantations.lk.

(Ill) via CSE Mobile App

Applicants who register with the CSE Mobile App, may download the Application Form through the Mobile App, follow

the instructions set out in the said Mobile App, and forward their Applications as per the instructions. Submission of digital
Application Forms through such CSE Mobile App is limited to both citizens of Sri Lanka who are resident in or outside Sri Lanka
and are above 18 years of age and, foreign citizens above 18 years of age (irrespective of whether they are resident in Sri Lanka
or overseas) only.

(IV) via CDS Web Portal

The applicant can use the online application web portal accessible via https://ipo.cse.lk or www.cds.Ik.

Only Resident and non-resident individual applicants who have a valid CDS account at the time of application can apply via the
web portal.

This option is NOT permitted for applicants applying via margin trading accounts, power of attorney, joint applicants, foreign
citizens, corporate bodies and unit trusts.
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The applicant must comply with the instructions stated on the web portal when submitting the online application.
Important: Please note that applicants must complete the payment as instructed in the CDS Web Portal.

Any application submitted without a valid CDS account will be rejected. Users must first register for the web portal and read the
instructions given on the web portal carefully and click on “Apply Now” option. Users will be directed to a page to self-register
and create a login by validating their mobile number and email address. Once the user log-in to the web portal the application
can be completed via the CSE elPO portal and submit the same.

CSE Mobile App/CDS Web Portal is integrated with the HelaPay Payment App. Please refer the payment instructions given in
Section 2.5.5 of this Prospectus for payment options enabled.

The Mobile App/CDS Web Portal, currently, does not facilitate Applications made through Powers of Attorney (POA), Margin
Trading, Joint Applicants and the categories referred to in Section 2.1 (c), (d), (e), (f), (g) or (h) to apply. Therefore, such Applicants
may send their Applications physically.

APPLICANTS SHOULD APPLY ONLY THROUGH ONE INVESTOR CATEGORY (INCLUDING JOINT APPLICANTS) AND
WOULD BE PERMITTED TO SUBMIT ONLY ONE APPLICATION FORM. TWO OR MORE APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED BY
THE SAME APPLICANT EITHER UNDER THE SAME CATEGORY OR DIFFERENT CATEGORY WILL BE CONSTRUED AS
MULTIPLE APPLICATIONS AND WILL BE REJECTED.

EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS OF APL SHALL CHOOSE TO APPLY EITHER THROUGH THE EMPLOYEES AND
DIRECTOR INVESTOR CATEGORY OR THROUGH THE RETAIL INDIVUDUAL/NON-RETAIL INVESTOR CATEGORY.
EMPLOYEES WILL NOT BE ALLOWED TO SUBMIT MULTIPLE APPLICATIONS EITHER UNDER THE SAME CATEGORY
OR DIFFERENT CATEGORY.

Applicants must apply for the Offered Shares on the Application Form, which constitutes part of this Prospectus. The Application
Form should be legibly completed and be received by the Registrars to the Issue.

Joint Applicants should note that all parties in the Joint Application should either be residents of Sri Lanka or non-residents. An
Applicant of a Joint Application will not be eligible to submit a separate Application either individually or jointly for the Shares
applied.

Applications by Companies, Corporations and other Corporate Bodies, registered/incorporated/established in Sri Lanka should
be made under their common seal or in any other manner as provided by their Articles of Association or such other constitutional
documents of such Applicants or as per the statutes governing them. In the case of Approved Provident Funds, Trust Funds and
Approved Contributory Pension Schemes the Applications should be in the name of the Trustees/Board of Management.

The Application Forms may be signed by any party on behalf of the Applicant(s) provided that such person holds the Power of
Attorney (POA) of the Applicant(s). A copy of such POA certified by a Notary Public as “True Copy” should be attached with the
Application Form. The original POA certificate should not be attached.

Applicants, who wish to apply through their Margin Trading Accounts, should submit the Application signed by the Margin
Provider, requesting a direct upload of the Shares to the Applicant’s Margin Trading Account in the CDS. The Margin Provider
should indicate the relevant CDS Account number relating to the Margin Trading Account in the space provided in the Application
Form. A “True copy” of the Margin Trading Agreement should be attached with the Application Form.

A foreign citizen must state his/her passport number in the space provided.

It should be noted that in the event the Applicant’s CDS Account number is correctly stated in the Application Form all
correspondence with such Applicant would be sent to the address given to the CDS by such Applicant.
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PROCEDURE FOR APPLICATION CONTD.

Further, in the event the name or the address of the Applicant mentioned in the Application Form differs from the name or
address given to the CDS by such Applicant in respect of the CDS Account mentioned in the Application Form, the name

and the address given to the CDS by such Applicant in respect of the CDS account mentioned in the Application Form will be
considered as the name and Address of such Applicant. Therefore, the Applicants must ensure that their name and address
mentioned in the Application Form tallies with the name and address given to the CDS in respect of the CDS Account mentioned
in the Application Form.

The applicant should absolve CSE and CDS for errors/omissions of the information recorded in the CDS accounts if such errors/
omissions were initiated by such applicants.

Applications submitted under the Unit Trust Investors Category should accompany a written confirmation by the Trustee
confirming that such unit trust is in conformity with the criteria defined by the SEC Directive dated June 6, 2011 (Ref: SEC/
LEG/11/06/01) and CSE Listing Rule 2.1.1 (g) (1) (ii) ().

As per the Directive of the SEC made under Circular No. 08/2010 dated November 22, 2010 and Circular No. 13/2010 issued
by the CDS dated November 30, 2010, all Shares shall be directly uploaded to the CDS. All Applicants should indicate their CDS
account number in the Application Form. Applicants who do not have a CDS account are advised to open a valid CDS account
prior to making the Application, in order to facilitate the uploading of issued Shares to the CDS.

Please note that upon the allotment of Shares under this Offering, the allotted Shares would be credited to the applicant’s
CDS account within twelve (12) Market Days from the closure of the Offer. Upon the completion of crediting of Shares into the
investors’ CDS Accounts, the Company shall send a written confirmation to the Shareholders within two (02) Market Days of
crediting the CDS Accounts.

Please note that Share certificates shall not be issued. Applications which do not carry the CDS account number, which is not
opened at the time of the closure of the subscription list or which indicate an incorrect/inaccurate CDS account number shall be
rejected, and no allotment will be made. You can open a CDS account through any trading participants of the CSE as set out in
Annexure 6 or through any custodian bank as set out in Annexure 7 of this Prospectus.

Applicants have the option of having their Shares ‘locked’ in the CDS as described below.

Shares that are locked would not be available for trading purposes and would not be visible to the participant. If the Applicant
has not specified that his/her Shares need to be deposited to his/her ‘locked’ balance in the CDS account, the said Shares
would be deposited to Applicant’s ‘trading’ balance in the CDS account.

For those Shareholders who do not want to trade the securities, the CDS would provide a mechanism where securities can be
‘locked’ in the CDS account. The CDS would maintain two balances for each CDS account, namely a ‘trading’ balance and a
‘locked’ balance. The trading balance would be visible to the CDS participant and all dealings and trading would be permitted on
the said trading balance, as done presently.

As opposed to the trading balance, the locked balance will not be visible to the CDS participant and all dealings on such locked
balance would be suspended thereby maintaining the confidentiality of the information and also safeguarding the account holder
from an unauthorized sale by a broker.

At the option and request of an account holder, the CDS would transfer a named quantity of securities from the locked balance
to the trading balance of a CDS account and/or from the trading balance to the locked balance.

Applicants falling under the ‘Retail’ and ‘Non-Retail’ Investor Categories should apply for the Shares on the WHITE coloured
Application Form printed for this purpose, which constitutes part of this Prospectus. Such Application Forms will be made
available from the collection points listed in Annexure 5 and can also be downloaded from www.cse.lk and www.cal.lk. Exact
size copies of the Application form printed on WHITE coloured paper as specified herein will also be permissible under the Retail
Individual and Non-Retail Investor Categories.

The retail investors can apply for a maximum of 11,100 IPO shares.
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Applicants applying under the Unit Trust Investor Category must apply for the Shares using the separate YELLOW coloured
Application Form printed for this purpose, which constitutes part of this Prospectus. Such Application Forms will be made
available through the Managers and Financial Advisors to the Offer, Capital Alliance Partners Limited, Level 05, Millennium House,
46/58, Nawam Mawatha, Colombo 02.

The completed Application Forms should be submitted to the Managers and Financial Advisors to the Offer who will forward
the same to the Registrars to the Offer in accordance with Section 2.3.

Applicants applying under the Employee and Director Category must apply for the shares only using the separate BLUE
coloured Application Form printed for this purpose, which constitutes part of this Prospectus. Such Application Forms will
only be made available through APL. Employees applying under this category shall be required to apply under their respective
individual names using only the correctly coloured Application Form and should not apply as joint Applicants.

Application Forms properly and legibly filled in accordance with the instructions thereof, along with the applicable remittance
(cheque or bank draft or bank guarantee) for the full amount payable on the Application and the company seal/rubber stamp of
the respective employer placed thereon should be submitted to Agarapatana Plantations Limited, 53-1/1, Sir Baron Jayatilaka
Mawatha, Colombo 01, for onward transmission to the Registrars to the Issue in accordance with Section 2.3.

Employees shall NOT submit Applications directly to the Registrars to the Issue. No photocopies of the coloured Application
Form would be permissible and will not be permitted to send their Application directly via email.

SUBMISSION OF APPLICATIONS

The Application Form should be filled in accordance with the instructions thereof, along with the applicable remittance (cheque
or bank draft or bank guarantee or RTGS transfer only for physical applications. RTGS or CEFT or SLIPS only for applications via
the CSE Mobile App and CDS Web portal) for the full amount payable. The application should be enclosed in a sealed envelope
marked “Agarapatana Plantations Limited - Initial Public Offering 2023” on the top left-hand corner and be addressed and
dispatched by post or courier or delivered by hand to the Registrars to the Offer at the following address, prior to 4.30 p.m.
local time on the Issue Closing Date.

SSP Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd
No. 101, Inner Flower Road,
Colombo 03.

Applications may also be handed over to the Managers and Financial Advisors to the Offer, trading participants of the CSE as set
out in Annexure 6, for onward transmission to the Registrars to the Offer.

In the case of investors applying under the Unit Trust Category the Application Forms should be submitted to the Managers and
Financial Advisors to the Offer who will forward the same to the Registrars to the Offer.

In the case of Applications dispatched by courier or post, such applications should reach the Registrars to the Offer no later than
4.30 p.m. on the market day immediately following the Closure Date. Any applications received after the above deadline shall be
rejected even though the courier or post mark is dated prior to the Closure Date.

In the case of applications dispatched by hand, such applications should reach the Registrars to the Offer no later than 4.30 p.m.
on the date of closure of the Offering. Any applications received after the above deadline shall be rejected.

The subscription list for the Offered Shares will open at 9.00 a.m. on 10th August 2023 and shall remain open for fourteen (14)
market days until closure at 4.30 p.m. on 29th August 2023.

In the event of an over subscription of the offered Shares prior to the date scheduled as the Issue Closing Date of the period for
subscription, the Company shall inform the CSE in writing immediately of such a fact and the subscription list will be closed at
4.30 p.m. on the same day on which it is fully subscribed with notification to the CSE.
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PROCEDURE FOR APPLICATION CONTD.

MINIMUM NUMBER OF SHARES

The application should be made for a minimum of hundred (100) Shares or in multiples of hundred (100) Shares thereof.

Applications made for less than hundred (100) Shares or for a number which is not in multiples of hundred (100) Shares will be
rejected. The cheque or bank draft or bank guarantee or RTGS transfer should be issued/carried out to the exact value of the

number of Shares applied for multiplied by the Share Offer price. Cheques, bank drafts or bank guarantees or RTGS transfers

not conforming to the above requirement will be rejected at the outset.

MODE OF PAYMENT

Payment should be made separately in respect of each Application by way of a cheque or bank draft or bank guarantee drawn
upon a licensed commercial bank operating in Sri Lanka or RTGS transfer directed through any licensed commercial bank
operating in Sri Lanka for physical applications and by way of CEFT or SLIPS or RTGS transfer directed through any licensed
commercial bank operating in Sri Lanka for applications made via the CSE Mobile App and CDS Web portal. Remittances on
Applications will be deposited in a separate bank account in the name of “AGARAPATANA PLANTATIONS LIMITED”.

Cash will not be accepted, anyone wishing to pay cash should obtain a bank draft from any Licensed Commercial Bank in
Sri Lanka. Bank guarantees should be valid up to one (01) month from the date of opening of the Offer (i.e. 10th September
2023).

Payment for Applications for values below Rupees One Hundred million (LKR 100,000,000/-) could be supported by only one
cheque or bank draft or bank guarantee. Any Applications with two or more cheques, bank drafts or bank guarantees will be
rejected at the outset in the event the value of such Application is below Sri Lankan Rupees One Hundred million (100,000,000/).

Payments for Applications for values above and inclusive of Sri Lankan Rupees One Hundred million (LKR 100,000,000/-) will be
permitted to submit multiple Bank guarantees issued by Licensed Commercial Banks in Sri Lanka, multiple bank drafts/cheques
drawn upon any Licensed Commercial Bank operating in Sri Lanka, or a single RTGS transfer directed through any licensed
commercial bank operating in Sri Lanka, each of which should be for values on the date of opening of the Offer.

Please follow the web link given below in order to get your Bank and Branch codes: https://www.lankaclear.com/downloads/
bank-branch-directory/.

Cheques or Bank Drafts — Resident Sri Lankan Investors

Cheques or bank drafts should be drawn on any Licensed Commercial Bank in Sri Lanka and crossed “Account Payee Only”
and made payable to “AGARAPATANA PLANTATIONS LIMITED”. Cheques or bank drafts accompanying Application Forms
made for less than hundred (100) Shares or for a number which is not in multiples of hundred (100) Shares (as mentioned in
Section 2.4) will not be sent for clearing and shall be returned via ordinary post at the risk of the applicant, or in the case of joint
applicants, to the first named applicant. In the event that cheques are not realized within three (03) market days from the day

of presenting the same to the bank for clearing, the cheques will be returned, and no allocation of Shares will be made to the
investors.

Cheques must be honoured on the first presentation to the bank for the application to be valid. Applications supported by
cheques which are not honoured on the first presentation will be rejected.

Bank Guarantees — Resident Sri Lanka Investors

Applications made by resident Sri Lankan investors backed by bank guarantees presented in line with the requirements set out
in Section 2.5 will be accepted. Bank guarantees will be presented to the respective banks only after the Shares have been
allotted. Bank guarantees should be issued by any Licensed Commercial Bank in Sri Lanka and in favour of “AGARAPATANA
PLANTATIONS LIMITED” in a manner acceptable to the Company and payable on demand. Bank guarantees should be valid
for a minimum of one (01) month from the date of opening of the Offer (i.e. 10th September 2023).
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RTGS Transfers — Resident Sri Lankan Investors

In case of RTGS transfers (only for Application valued above and inclusive of Sri Lanka Rupees One Hundred million (LKR
100,000,000/-), such transfers should be made to the credit of “AGARAPATANA PLANTATIONS LIMITED?” for applications
submitted via;

e Physical applications the account number bearing 1110-00031-026 at National Development Bank PLC, Head Office (Bank
code 7214, Branch code 900)

e CSE Mobile APP/CDS Web portal account number 1110-00031-034 at National Development Bank PLC, Head Office (Bank
code 7214, Branch code 900)

with value on the Offer Opening Date (i.e., the funds to be made available to the above account).

CEFT/SLIP Transfers — Resident Sri Lankan Investors
In case of CEFT/SLIP transfers (only for Application made via the CSE Mobile App and CDS Web portal), such transfers should
be made to the credit of “AGARAPATANA PLANTATIONS LIMITED” for applications submitted via;

e CSE Mobile APP/CDS Web portal account number 1110-00031-034 at National Development Bank PLC, Head Office (Bank
code 7214, Branch code 900)

with value on or before the offer opening date (i.e., the funds to be made available to the above account).

Applicants are required to indicate their NIC Number or CDS account number as payment reference for CEFT/SLIPS transfers.
Any Applications accompanying fund transfers confirmations without the payment reference as aforementioned will be rejected.

Payment Options for CSE Mobile App Applicants
CSE Mobile App is now integrated with the HelaPay Payment App.

Only the LOCAL INDIVIDUAL applicants, with applied share values less or equal to LKR 49,900.00 will be able to use the
HelaPay app after completing the applications on the said elPO platform. IF THE APPLICANT HAS ALREADY MADE A
PAYMENT TO THE IPO ACCOUNT PRIOR TO STARTING THE APPLICATION PROCESS, SUCH APPLICANTS SHOULD
NOT SELECT THE ‘HelaPay’ OPTION.

Customer charges of LKR 100.00 charged by ‘HelaPay’ will apply for such payment and to be borne by the applicants.

Please note that the applicants who wish to use the integrated HelaPay Payment App platform through the CSE Mobile App
should have the ‘Helakuru’ Mobile App installed in their mobile devices.

Alternatively, Individual applicants who wish to use the payment modes of CEFTS transfers, RTGS transfers or cheque deposits
must ensure to initiate such transfers prior to making the application using the CSE Mobile App, in order to attach the proof of
payment which is a mandatory requirement in submitting their applications via CSE Mobile App.

IMPORTANT - When cheque deposits, CEFT, RTGS or SLIPS transfers are made, ensure to enter the CDS account number
of the applicant in the ‘Beneficiary Narration/Beneficiary Remark/ Reference / Remark / Comment’ field to identify the
payments. If the payment cannot be identified application may get rejected.

Foreign Currency Remittance

This Section is applicable to citizens of Sri Lanka who are above 18 years of age and resident overseas, corporate bodies
incorporated or established outside Sri Lanka, global, regional or country funds approved by the SEC and foreign citizens
(irrespective of whether they are resident in Sri Lanka or overseas) who are above 18 years of age.
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PROCEDURE FOR APPLICATION CONTD.

As per the Foreign Exchange Act No. 12 of 2017, Persons resident outside Sri Lanka can collectively hold only a maximum of
40% of the total voting shares of the Company that grows and processes tea. They should make their payments using one of the
following methods as the case may be.

A Foreign Investor may invest through an Inward Investment Account (IIA) maintained with any Licensed Commercial Bank in Sri
Lanka. The procedure for arranging payments through a llA is presented below:

A Foreign Investor may use the services of a Custodian bank as an intermediary when investing in the Sri Lankan securities market.
The intermediary may open an lIA, on the investor’s behalf. In conjunction with the IIA, an account with the CDS must be opened.

In respect of global, regional or country funds investing for the first time in Sri Lanka, the intermediary will facilitate the approval
process regulated by the SEC.

Payment for Shares should be made through a cheque, bank draft or unconditional bank guarantee or RTGS transfer against the
funds in the IIA and made payable to “AGARAPATANA PLANTATIONS LIMITED”.

Cheques or Bank Drafts or Bank Guarantee or RTGS transfers should be endorsed by the issuing custodian bank, to the effect
that, arrangements have been made to facilitate such payment to be made against funds available in the investor’s IIA account.
The endorsement must be clearly indicated on the cheque or bank draft or the bank guarantee. Alternatively, a document
detailing the endorsement could be submitted along with the payment and Application. Additionally, any refunds to such parties
will be made only through the investor’s 1A account.

Applications supported by foreign currency remittances should be made in conformity with requisite declarations accompanied
by the documentation stipulated by the Head of the Department of Foreign Exchange of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

BANKING OF PAYMENTS

All cheques, bank drafts or bank guarantees received in respect of Applications will not be banked or called on until the Market
Day after the Issue Closing Date.

REJECTION OF APPLICATIONS

e Application Forms, which are incomplete in any way and/or are not in accordance with the terms and conditions specified in
this Prospectus, will be rejected.

e [f the CDS account number is not indicated in the Application Form or is not opened at the time of the closure of the
subscription list or the CDS number indicated in the application form is found to be inaccurate/incorrect, the application will
be rejected and no allotments will be made.

e Applications with two or more cheques, bank drafts or bank guarantees will be rejected in the event the value of such
Application is below Sri Lankan Rupees One Hundred million (100,000,000/-).

e Applications made for less than One Hundred (100) Shares or for a number which is not in multiples of One Hundred (100)
Shares will be rejected.

e Two or more applications submitted by the same applicant either under the same category or different category will be
construed as multiple applications and will be rejected.

e Application Forms accompanied by cash will not be accepted.
e Any Application Forms accompanying fund transfers confirmations without the requisite payment references will be rejected.
e Applications delivered by hand after 4.30 p.m. on the Issue Closing Date will be rejected.

e Applications received by post after 4.30 p.m. hours on the succeeding working day immediately following the Issue Closing
Date, will also be rejected even if they carry a post mark dated prior to the Issue Closing Date of the subscription list.

e Applications made by individuals below 18 years of age or those in the names of sole proprietorships, partnerships,
unincorporated trusts and non-corporate bodies will be rejected.

e Inthe event cheques are dishonoured/ returned on first presentation, the Application will be rejected.

The Board of Directors shall reserve the right to refuse any applications or to accept any applications in full or part.
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REFUNDS

Where an Application Form is rejected, the cheque, bank draft or bank guarantee received in respect of the application will be
returned via ordinary post at the risk of the applicant. In the case of joint applicants, application monies will be returned to the
first named applicant.

Where the Application Form is accepted and the cheque or the bank draft or bank guarantee is not honoured at the first
presentation, the application will also be rejected and the cheque, bank draft or bank guarantee will be returned via ordinary post
at the risk of the applicant. In the case of joint applicants, application monies will be returned to the first named applicant.

Where an application is accepted only in part, the balance of the monies received on application will be refunded. Refunds on
Shares that have not been allotted or for applications that have been fully or partially rejected, will be refunded on or before the
expiry of eight (08) market days from the date of closing of Offering (excluding the date of Offering) as required by the CSE Listing
Rules.

Applicants would be entitled to receive Interest at the last quoted Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate (AWPLR) published by
the Central Bank of Sri Lanka plus Five Percent (5%) on any refunds not made within this period.

The refund payments only up to a maximum limit of Rupees Five million (Rs 5.0 million) will be made to the bank account
specified by the applicant through the Sri Lanka Inter-bank Payment System (SLIPS) (as per LANKACLEAR Operating instruction
circular No 11/2010 dated 25th Oct 2010) on or before the expiry of eight (08) market days from the closure date (excluding

the closure date) as required by the CSE Listing Rules and a payment advice shall be issued to the applicant provided that the
applicant has submitted accurate and complete details of his bank account in the application form.

If the Applicant has provided accurate and complete details of his bank account in the Application, the Bankers to the Offer will
make refund payments up to and inclusive of Sri Lanka Rupees Five million (LKR 5,000,000/-) to the bank account specified by
the Applicant, through SLIPS and a payment advice will be sent.

In the event of refunds over Rupees Five million (LKR 5,000,000/-), if the Applicant has provided accurate and complete details of
his bank account in the Application, refunds will be made via RTGS.

In the event the Applicant has not provided accurate and correct details of his bank account in the Application or if the Applicant
has not provided details of the bank account in the Application Form, the bank will make such refund payment to the Applicant
by way of a cheque crossed “Account Payee only” and sent by post at the risk of the Applicant.

In the event the refund payment is effected via SLIPS based on the bank account details provided by the applicant in the
application form, but is rejected by the applicant’s bank due to inaccurate or incomplete information, such refund payments
would be made via a crossed cheque in favour of the applicant and sent by ordinary post at the risk of the applicant. In such
instances, the Company together with the Registrars to the Offer will send the refund cheques to such applicants at the earliest
possible date and the applicant should not hold the Company or the Registrars to the Offer accountable for such delays.

If the applicant has not provided details of the bank account in the Application Form or has provided inaccurate or incomplete
details of the bank account, the refund payment will be made by a crossed cheque in favour of the applicant and sent

by ordinary post at the risk of the applicant and the applicant should not hold the Company or the Registrars to the Offer
accountable for such delays. In the case of a joint application, a crossed cheque will be drawn in favour of the applicant whose
name appears first in the Application Form.

TRADING OF SHARES

The Company will submit to the CSE a Declaration on the market day immediately following the day on which Investors’ CDS
accounts are credited with securities. Trading of Shares of the Company on the Secondary market will commence on or before
the third market day from the receipt of the Declaration of the Company by the CSE.
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OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY

Agarapatana Plantations Limited, was incorporated in 1992 and is a subsidiary of Lankem Developments PLC. The Company
specializes in the cultivation, manufacture and sale of high-quality tea. APL is one of the few mono-crop companies in the
plantation sector, with all of the tea extent located in the “High Grown” districts of Nuwara Eliya and Badulla, which fall within the
Western and Uva High elevation categories.

The Company has plantations located in the Agras valley and Uva regions in Sri Lanka. Properties held by APL include historical
properties like Dambatenne Estate situated in the Badulla district in the Uva province of Sri Lanka and ranges in elevation from
1509m to 1936m above sea level. Dambatenne is intrinsically linked to the history of Ceylon Tea. It was instrumental in the
building of the Lipton Tea Empire and, by association, the legacy of Ceylon Tea. Sir Thomas Lipton acquired the property in the
1890s owning it until his demise in the early 1930s. The teas are sold under the “Bandara Eliya” garden mark and are still sought
after as in the days of Sir Thomas Lipton.

Vision Statement
To be the foremost producer of high-quality Tea in full conformity with desired quality requirements.

Mission Statement

To produce the highest quality Tea whilst protecting and preserving the environment and safeguarding the interest of the
community with whom we work, improving our asset base, developing our employee base and providing value to our
shareholders.

Values

APL follows the 3 fundamental values:
e |Integrity

e Courage

e Commitment

Key Milestones of the Company
1. All factories and gardens are Certified with Rainforest alliance from the year 2019, except for Glenanore and Gonamotawa
which are mainly manufacturing Bought Leaf, sourced from Small Holders.
2. All factories are certified for ISO 22000:2018 from the year 2019.

3. Uva Region is currently selling above the elevation since the Financial Year 2022.

4. According to the confirmation provided by the Sri Lanka Tea Board, APL has moved up to Rank No. 5 in cumulative average
price among all Regional Plantation Companies in the High Grown category as at end of December 2022.

5. According to the confirmation provided by the Sri Lanka Tea Board, APL achieved a position of No. 1 in volume of tea sold at
the Colombo Tea Auctions among Regional Plantation Companies in High Grown Category as at end of December 2022.

6. The group historically achieved the highest profitability of LKR 1.9 billion as at 31st December 2022 during the current
financial year 2022/23.

7. Mechanical harvesting was implemented successfully in 2020/21 and the Company has achieved almost 22% of the extent
under mechanized harvesting as at 31st December 2022 and envisages to increase it to the optimum level of 30% efficiency
during the financial year 2023/24.

8. As part of the “Action Plan” under the Renewable Energy strategy, the company acquired Waverly Power (Pvt) Ltd in
September 2022. Waverly Power (Pvt) operates a mini-Hydro Power Plant, supplying electricity to the National Grid of the
Ceylon Electricity Board.
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Group Structure

Agarapatana Plantations Limited was a standalone Company prior to acquiring Waverly Power (Pvt) Ltd in September 2022.

The shareholders of Waverly Power (Pvt) Ltd at the time of acquiring the company were Lankem Developments PLC (holding
4,400,000 shares), Lankem Ceylon PLC (holding 3,400,000 shares), Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam (holding 1 share) and Mr.
N.H.B.S. Perera (holding 1 share). The Lankem Developments PLC is the Parent Company of Agarapatana Plantations Limited,
holding 67.45% of the issued share capital. Lankem Developments PLC, Lankem Ceylon PLC and Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam are
related parties of Agarapatana Plantations Limited. The purchase consideration for the acquisition of Waverly Power (Pvt) Ltd was
LKR 434,000,000 based on the valuation report by M/S Moore Consulting (Pvt) Ltd on 18th August 2022. The Board based the
valuation taking into consideration of the future cash potential, given that the company has 7 years left in the power purchase
agreement with the Ceylon Electricity Board, with the potential to renew for another 15 years from 2030. The consideration,
based on the independent valuation done by M/S Moore Consulting (Pvt) Ltd, and the resultant goodwill as stated in the
consolidated financial statements as at 31st December 2022 backed by the limited review, has been ascertained taking into the
above factor. This acquisition was reviewed and recommended by the Related Party Transactions Review Committee.

Post Group Structure — After acquiring Waverly Power (Pvt) Ltd

N\

‘ Agarapatana Plantations Limited ‘

Q 100%

Waverly Power (Pvt) Ltd

J

Customers and Suppliers

The Tea produced in the country are usually channelled through the registered Tea Brokers for sale at the Colombo eTea Auction
which caters for mostly exports and local market represented by approximately 547 active buyers. Aimost 97% of the production
of APLs teas are also being sold at the Colombo Tea Auction through the Company approved representative brokers, Forbes &
Walker Tea Brokers (Pvt) Ltd, John Keells PLC, and Ceylon Tea Brokers PLC.

In the current financial year, APL’s customer base consists of 180 buyers, out of which only 10% of the quantity sold were
purchased by a single buyer, Heritage Teas (Pvt) Ltd who is the top most customer. Other than that, there are other customers,
Unilever Lipton Ceylon Ltd, Akbar Brothers (Pvt) Ltd, Sunshine Consumer Lanka Ltd, Van Rees Ceylon Ltd, Tea Tang (Pvt) Ltd,
UniWorld Teas (Pvt) Ltd, Mabrok Teas (Pvt) Ltd, Diimah Ceylon Tea and Sunshine Teas, who constitute 52% of the sold quantity.

The above depicts that the Company’s revenue streams are not dependent on any single customer. The auctioning system
provides the Plantation Companies a better selling platform in both transparency and competitiveness.

APL sources its major inputs, such as Fertiliser, Chemicals and Packing materials from a range of reputed suppliers namely, CIC
Agri Businesses (Pvt) Ltd, Agstar PLC, CIC Holdings PLC, Agstar Crop Care (Pvt) Ltd, Ceylon Petroleum Corporation, St. Regis
Packing (Pvt) Ltd and Uni-Dil Packing Solutions Ltd, reducing the Company’s exposure to a single supplier.

As such, the Company does not view dependence on its customers and suppliers as a key risk to the Company’s operations.

Sustainablility
Financial viability, preserving the environment while combating the negative impact of climate change and uplifting the lives of the
workers is an integral part of our company.

The Sustainability of the Company mainly stands upon 3 pillars, namely:

e Economic Sustainability towards management of the company profitably to give a return on investment to the shareholders
and taxes to the Government.

e Social Sustainability towards the people in terms of social dignity and livelihoods of the Plantation Community.

e Environment Sustainability towards the planet.

The following are the initiative measures which have been undertaken by the company to achieve the sustainability goals.
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ECONOMIC SUSTAINABILITY

* Increase revenue by achieving better prices above Elevation Auction Average by developing the factories to “State of the Art -
Processing Centres” investing in new technology and leveraging estate brand garden marks.

* Increase labour productivity through selective agronomic & ergonomic interventions.
* Improve efficiencies in processes — mechanization, automation, digitization and technology.

e Streamline the supply chain and strengthen Tea Small Holders.

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

e Improve social dignity and equitable livelihoods

e |mprove Physical and Social Infrastructure of Plantation Communities
e Communication and knowledge dissemination on Agronomy

e Skill Development, Knowledge, Awareness programmes

e Alternate models of employment (Revenue Share Model)

e Safety net during crisis periods

e Training (First aid, Fire, PPE, Waste Management etc)

e Occupational, Health and Safety Management

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

e Plantation Eco system and Environment protection

e Adaptation and mitigation to extreme weather and improved resilience
e Reduce dependence on fossil fuels by shifting to sustainable sources
e Timely and appropriate agronomic practices and inputs

e Buffer Zone and Riparian Zone demarcation along the stream

e Pesticide Free zone establishment

Properties

The estate lands of the Company, on which the tea plantations and factories of the Company are situated, are leasehold lands.
The details of the plantations including the remaining lease period are as follows:

Table 3 - 1 Leasehold lands

Albion Estate Janatha Estates Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 21st June LKR 500 per
Development Board Agreement No. 697 2045 (53 years) year
Balmoral Estate Janatha Estates Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 31st December LKR 500 per
Development Board Agreement No. 322 2091 (99 years) year
Beauvais Estate Janatha Estates Indenture of lease 22nd June 1992 — 31st December LKR 500 per
Development Board bearing No. 102 2091 (99 years) year
Braemore Estate Janatha Estate Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 31st December LKR 500 per
Development Board bearing No. 277 2091 (99 years) year
Dambatenne Estate Sri Lanka State Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 31st December LKR 500 per
Plantations Corporation  bearing No. 182 2091 (99 years) year
Diyagamme East Janatha Estates Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 31st December LKR 500 per
Development Board bearing No. 305 2091 (99 years) year
Diyagamme West Janatha Estates Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 31st December LKR 500 per

Development Board bearing No. 303 2091 (99 years) year
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Property Lessor Lease Agreement Original Lease Period* Rental
Glasgow Estate Janatha Estates Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 31st December LKR 500 per
Development Board bearing No. 342 2091 (99 years) year
Glenanore Estate Sri Lanka State Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 31st December LKR 500 per
Plantations Corporation  bearing No. 184 2091 (99 years) year
Gonamotawa Estate  Sri Lanka State Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 21st June LKR 500 per
Plantations Corporation  bearing No. 687 2045 (53 years) year
Haputale Estate Sri Lanka State Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 31st December LKR 500 per
Plantations Corporation  bearing No. 116 2091 (99 years) year
Hauteville Estate Janatha Estates Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 31st December LKR 500 per
Developments Board bearing No. 266 2091 (99 years) year
Holmwood Estate Janatha Estates Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 31st December KR 500 per
Development Board bearing No. 71 2091 (99 years) year
|dulgashena Estate Janatha Estate Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 21st June LKR 500 per
Development Board bearing No. 699 2045 (53 years) year
Kahagalla Estate Sri Lanka State Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 31st December LKR 500 per
Plantations Corporation  bearing No. 240 2091 (99 years) year
Nayabedda Estate Sri Lanka State Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 31st December LKR 500 per
Plantations Corporation  bearing No. 141 2091 (99 years) year
New Portmore Estate Janatha Estates Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 31st December LKR 500 per
Development Board bearing No. 324 2091 (99 years) year
Oak Well Estate Janatha Estates Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 31st December LKR 500 per
Development Board bearing No. 29 2091 (99 years) year
Ohiya Estate Janatha Estates Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 31st December LKR 500 per
Development Board bearing No. 35 2091 (99 years) year
Pitaratmalie Estate Sri Lanka State Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 31st December KR 500 per
Plantations Corporation  bearing No. 168 2091 (99 years) year
Preston Estate Janatha Estates Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 31st December LKR 500 per
Development Board bearing No. 326 2091 (99 years) year
Sandringham Estate  Janatha Estates Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 31st December LKR 500 per
Development Board bearing No. 124 2091 (99 years) year
Torrington Estate Janatha Estates Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 31st December LKR 500 per
Development Board bearing No. 112 2091 (99 years) year
Udaveriya Estate Sri Lanka State Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 31st December LKR 500 per
Plantations Corporation  bearing No. 166 2091 (99 years) year
Waverly Estate Janatha Estates Indenture of Lease 22nd June 1992 — 31st December KR 500 per
Development Board bearing No. 328 2091 (99 years) year

*All the above agreements which had an original term of 99 years have been amended by way of Amendment of Leases No. 1536 to a term of 53
years and are all deemed to expire on 21st June 2045.

Please note that this reduction of the lease period does not have an impact on the research report.
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STATED CAPITAL

The Stated Capital of the Company is LKR 1,730,436,695 constituting of monies received by the Company by the issue of
Shares in the Company. The total number of shares issued in the Company are 416,929,889 Ordinary Voting Shares and one (1)
Golden Share.

The approval of the Golden shareholder is not required for the IPO and the Golden Share will not be listed. The rights attached to
the Golden Share are the following:

—_

. The concurrence of the Golden Shareholder is required for the Company to sub-lease any of the estate lands leased/to be
leased to the Company by the Janatha Estates Development Board/Sri Lanka State Plantations Corporation.

N

. The concurrence of the Golden Shareholder will be required to amend any clause in the Articles of Association of the
Company which grant specific rights to the Golden Shareholder.

w

The Golden Shareholder, or his nominee, will have the right to examine the books and accounts of the Company at any time
with 2 weeks written notice.

>

The Company is required to submit a detailed quarterly report to the Golden Shareholder in a specified format within 60 days
of the end of each quarter. Additional information relating to the Company in a specified format must be submitted to the
Golden Shareholder within 90 days of the end of each fiscal year.

o

The Golden Shareholder can require the Board of Directors of the Company to meet with him/his nominee once every quarter
to discuss issues related to the Company’s operation of interest to the Government.

o

The Golden Share must be owned directly by the Government or by a 100% Government-owned public company

Table 3 - 2 Stated Capital

Pre-IPO 416,929,889 1,730,436,695
New share capital issued through the IPO 83,070,111 747,630,999
Post- IPO 500,000,000 2,478,067,694

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Ordinary Shares shall have the right to an equal share in any surplus
assets of the Company available for distribution after paying all the creditors of the Company and all other claims and debts in
accordance with the provisions contained in the Companies Act No 7 of 2007 on liquidation.

Latest Shareholder List
The holders of Ordinary Shares of APL as at the date of this Prospectus:

Table 3 - 3 Latest Shareholder List

Lankem Developments PLC 67.45
E.B. Creasy & Co. PLC 6.37
Secretary to the Treasury* 5.58
Kotagala Plantations PLC 4.98
Darley Butler & Company Limited 3.46
Corporate Managers & Secretaries (Pvt) Ltd 2.04

Lankem Tea & Rubber Plantations (Pvt) Ltd 1.75
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The Colombo Fort Land & Building PLC 1.65
Union Commodities (Pvt) Ltd 1.62
Shares held by employees and others 1.42
C M Holdings PLC 0.93
Corporate Strategic Services (Pvt) Ltd 0.72
Waverly Power (Pvt) Limited' 0.60
Lankem Ceylon PLC 0.42
Colombo Fort Group Services (Pvt) Ltd 0.38
Oakley Investments (Pvt) Limited 0.24
Corporate Holdings (Pvt) Ltd 0.24
Financial Trust Limited 0.17
Colombo Fort Investments PLC 0.06
Colombo Investment Trust PLC 0.06
Union Investments (Pvt) Limited 0.06

"Waverly Power (Pvt) Limited had acquired these shares prior to Agaraptana Plantations Limited acquiring Waverly Power (Pvt) Limited.

* The approval of the Secretary to the Treasury is not required for the IPO.

One (1) Golden Share in the Company is held by Secretary to the Treasury (on behalf of the State).

3.2.2 Shares Issued in the Last Two Years

There was a share issue of 90,000,000 shares at a price of LKR 4.00 per share on 30th March 2021. There were related party
credit balances worth LKR 459,649,445 which had been converted to equity capital on 31st March 2022 by way of a Private
Placement at a price of LKR 5.00 per share and a share issue of 91,929,889 ordinary shares. These shares were issued to
Lankem Developments PLC, Lankem Ceylon PLC, Lankem Tea & Rubber Plantations (Pvt) Ltd, Kotagala Plantations PLC,
E.B. Creasy & Co. PLC and Darley Butler & Co. Ltd. The Stated Capital of the Company as at 31st March 2022 was LKR
1,730,436,695.

3.2.3 Re-Purchases or Redemptions

The Company has not carried out a share re-purchase, redemption or stated capital reduction exercises in the two (02) years
preceding the date of this Prospectus.

3.2.4 Outstanding Convertible Debt Securities

The Company has no outstanding Convertible Debt Securities as at the date of this Prospectus.

3.2.5 Free Transferability of Shares

The Pre-IPO Shareholders shall not transfer existing Ordinary Voting Shares during the interim period between the date of Initial
Listing Application and the date of listing of the Shares of the Company.

There will be no allotments during the interim period between the date of Initial Listing Application and the date of listing of the
Shares of the Company.
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The Pre-IPO Shares held by Non-Public Shareholders will be locked-in for a period of 6 months from the date of listing of the
Shares of the entity or for a period of 12 months from the date of acquisition of the shares (as applicable). However, the Pre-IPO
Shares held by Public Shareholders will not be subject to any lock-ins provided however that any shares acquired by such public
shareholders by way of a transfer in the last 12 months prior to the date of the Initial Listing Application will be locked-in for a
period of 6 months from the date of listing of the shares of the Company or 12 months from the date of the transfer, whichever
is longer. Any Pre-IPO shares held by public or non-public shareholders which have been issued to them during the last 12
months prior to the date of the Initial Listing Application will be locked-in for such period as may be determined by the SEC at its
discretion. Please refer Section 3.4 for further details pertaining to the locked-in Shares.

The New Shares offered via the IPO shall not be transferable by the Shareholders during the period commencing from the date of
allotment of the offered Shares and up to the date of listing (excluding the date of listing) on the CSE.

No Ordinary Voting Shares or Other Class of Shares would be subscribed or sold privately, in conjunction with the public Issue of
Shares.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Dividends approved and or recommended by the board of directors shall be distributed, based on the Company’s performance
in terms of profits achieved together with passing the Solvency test required by the statute. Such dividends would be paid after
taking into consideration the Company’s earnings, capital expenditure requirements and other financial conditions.

The Company has not paid any dividends to its shareholders in the three years preceding the date of this Prospectus. APL had
unclaimed dividends of LKR 10,027,606 for over 20 years, which was written back in the financial year 2020/21.

DETAILS PERTAINING TO THE LOCKED-IN SHARES

Shareholding Structure

Given below is the Shareholding structure of the Company as at the date of the Prospectus (Pre-IPO) and subsequent to the
Issue (Post-IPO) assuming full subscription.

Table 3 - 4 Pre and Post Shareholding

Lankem Developments PLC 281,228,778 67.45 281,228,778 56.25
E.B. Creasy & Co. PLC 26,541,327 6.37 26,541,327 5.31
Secretary to the Treasury 23,284,644 5.58 23,284,644 4.66
Kotagala Plantations PLC 20,756,712 4.98 20,756,712 415
Darley Butler & Company Limited 14,411,270 3.46 14,411,270 2.88
Corporate Managers & Secretaries (Pvt) Ltd 8,500,000 2.04 8,500,000 1.70
Lankem Tea & Rubber Plantations (Pvt) Ltd 7,295,345 1.75 7,295,345 1.46
The Colombo Fort Land & Building PLC 6,455,458 155 6,455,458 1.29
Union Commodities (Pvt) Ltd 6,336,721 1.52 6,336,721 1.27
Shares held by employees and others 5,924,882 1.42 5,924,882 1.18
C M Holdings PLC 3,888,888 0.93 3,888,888 0.78

Corporate Strategic Services (Pvt) Ltd 3,000,000 0.72 3,000,000 0.60
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Waverly Power (Pvt) Limited? 2,500,100 0.60 2,500,100 0.50
Lankem Ceylon PLC 1,760,204 0.42 1,760,204 0.35
Colombo Fort Group Services (Pvt) Ltd 1,582,452 0.38 1,682,452 0.32
Oakley Investments (Pvt) Limited 1,000,000 0.24 1,000,000 0.20
Corporate Holdings (Pvt) Ltd 1,000,000 0.24 1,000,000 0.20
Financial Trust Limited 713,108 0.17 713,108 0.14
Colombo Fort Investments PLC 250,000 0.06 250,000 0.05
Colombo Investment Trust PLC 250,000 0.06 250,000 0.05
Union Investments (Pvt) Limited 250,000 0.06 250,000 0.05
Shareholding from IPO 83,070,111 16.61
TOTAL 416,929,889 100.00 500,000,000 100.00

2Waverly Power (Pvt) Limited had acquired these shares prior to Agaraptana Plantations Limited acquiring Waverly Power (Pvt) Limited.

Locked-in Shares — Pre-IPO:

In compliance with the CSE Listing Rules, 2.1.1(d) the Shares mentioned below will be locked in and will not be available for
trading as given below from the date of listing of the Shares of the Company.

Table 3 - 5 Locked-in Shares (Pre-IPO)

Non-Public Shareholders:

Lankem Non-Public Locked-in 6 Months from the 235,394,302 56.46
Developments PLC date of listing

Non-Public Locked-in 6 Months from 45,834,476 10.99

(issued in listing or 12 1

the last 12 months from the

months) issue, whichever is

longer

E.B. Creasy & Co.  Non-Public Locked-in 6 Months from 13,952,624 3.35
PLC (issued in listing or 12

the last 12 months from the 1

months) issue, whichever is

longer
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Non-Public Locked-in 6 Months from 12,588,703 3.02
(acquired listing or 12
by way of a months from the
transfer in transfer, whichever
the last 12 is longer
months)
Kotagala Non-Public Locked-in 6 Months from the 17,338,333 4.16
Plantations PLC date of listing
Non-Public Locked-in 6 Months from 3,423,379 0.82
(issued in listing or 12
the last 12 months from the
months) issue, whichever is
longer
Darley Butler & Non-Public Locked-in 6 Months from the 5,575,908 1.34
Company Limited date of listing
Non-Public Locked-in 6 Months from 8,835,362 212
(issued in listing or 12
the last 12 months from the
months) issue, whichever is
longer
Lankem Tea & Non-Public Locked-in 6 Months from 7,295,345 1.75
Rubber Plantations  (issued in listing or 12
(Pvt) Ltd the last 12 months from the
months) issue, whichever is
longer
The Colombo Fort  Non-Public Locked-in 6 Months from the 6,455,458 1.55
Land & Building date of listing
PLC
Union Commaodities  Non-Public Locked-in 6 Months from the 6,336,721 1.62
(Pvt) Ltd date of listing
C M Holdings PLC ~ Non-Public Locked-in 6 Months from 3,888,888 0.93
(acquired listing or 12
by way of a months from the
transfer in transfer, whichever
the last 12 is longer
months)
Waverly Power (Pvt) Non-Public Locked-in 6 Months from the 2,500,100 0.60
Limited® date of listing
Lankem Ceylon Non-Public Locked-in 6 Months from the 1,760,204 0.42

PLC

date of listing
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Colombo Fort Non-Public Locked-in 6 Months from the 1,682,452 0.38
Group Services date of listing 1

(Pvt) Ltd

QOakley Investments  Non-Public Locked-in 6 Months from the 1,000,000 1 0.24
(Pvt) Limited date of listing

Financial Trust Non-Public Locked-in 6 Months from the 713,108 ’ 0.17
Limited date of listing

Colombo Fort Non-Public Locked-in 6 Months from the 250,000 1 0.06
Investments PLC date of listing

Colombo Non-Public Locked-in 6 Months from the 250,000 0.06
Investment Trust date of listing 1

PLC

Union Investments ~ Non-Public Locked-in 6 Months from the 250,000 1 0.06
(Pvt) Limited date of listing

Public Shareholders:

Secretary to the Public Not Locked-in  N/A 23,284,644 1 5.58
Treasury

Shares held by Public Not Locked-in  N/A 5,924,882 1.42
employees and 21,439

others

Corporate Holdings  Public Not Locked-in  N/A 1,000,000 1 0.24
(Pvt) Ltd

Corporate Public Not Locked-in  N/A 8,500,000 2.04
Managers & ’

Secretaries (Pvt)

Ltd

Corporate Strategic Public Not Locked-in  N/A 3,000,000 1 0.72
Services (Pvit) Ltd

Total 416,929,889 100.00

3 Waverly Power (Pvt) Limited had acquired these shares prior to Agaraptana Plantations Limited acquiring Waverly Power (Pvt) Limited.
* Public defined under CSE Listing Rules 2.1.1.
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The following table lists out the Share transfers that took place during the period of twelve (12) months immediately preceding
the date of the Initial Listing Application.

Table 3 - 6 Share transfers

31/03/2022 Lankem Ceylon PLC E.B. Creasy & Co. PLC 12,588,703* 5.00 62,943,515
22/12/2022 Union Commodities (Pvt) Ltd ~ C M Holdings PLC 3,888,888 9.00 34,999,992

“The shares of 12,588,703 shares were initially allotted on the 31st March 2022 via a Private Placement to Lankem Ceylon PLC and thereafter
immediately transferred on the very same date (i.e., 31st March 2022 itself) to E.B. Creasy & Co. PLC.

Apart from the Share transfers listed above, there were no other Share transfers among the Shareholders categorized either as
“Public” or “Non-Public” during the period of twelve (12) months immediately preceding the date of the Initial Listing Application,
hence no further Shares will be subject to a lock-in, in terms of CSE Listing Rule 2.1.1 (d) iii).

As the Company issued 91,929,889 ordinary shares in the 12 month period prior to the date of the initial listing application,

the Company therefore submitted an application to the SEC under Section 80 of the Securities and Exchange Commission

of Sri Lanka Act No.19 of 2021 to obtain its approval for the listing of the Shares of the Company, and pursuant to which, the
approval of the SEC was granted therefor by letter dated 20th March 2023. It was determined by the SEC in the said letter
dated 20th March 2023, that all of the issued 91,929,889 ordinary shares in the 12 month period prior to the date of the initial
listing application should be locked-in for a period of six (6) months from the date of listing the shares of the Entity or twelve

(12) months from the date of allotment/issue/transfer of such shares, whichever is longer. In the event any shares to be allotted/
issued/transferred from the date of this application or during the above locked-in period arising from existing agreements/
arrangements/schemes/share subscriptions and if the price is below the IPO price or below the market price whichever is lower
then, such shares shall be locked-in for a period of twelve (12) months from the date of issue/allotment/transfer.

Other than for the 91,929,889 ordinary shares issued on 31st March 2022, no further Share allotments were made to
Shareholders categorized either as “Public” or “Non-Public” during the period of twelve (12) months immediately preceding the
date of the Initial Listing Application, hence only 91,929,889 Shares will be subject to a lock-in, in terms of CSE Listing Rule 2.1.1
(d) (iv). The total Shares subject to a lock-in in terms of CSE Listing Rule 2.1.1 (d) will be 375,220,363.

Pre-IPO Public holding (number of Pre-IPO Shares held by the ‘Public’ as a percentage of the total Pre IPO number of Shares),
as per the ‘public’ definition provided in the CSE listing rules is 10.00%.

The Company hereby confirms that the information furnished herewith shall remain unchanged until the date of listing.
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Locked-in Shares - Post IPO:
Table 3 - 7 Locked-in Shares (Post-IPO)

Non-Public Locked-in 6 Months from the date of 279,401,586 55.88
listing

Non-Public (issued Locked-in 6 Months from listing or 79,341,186 156.87

in the last 12 12 months from the issue,

months) whichever is longer 16

Non-Public Locked-in 6 Months from listing or 12 16,477,591 3.30

(acquired by way months from the transfer,

of a transfer in the whichever is longer

last 12 months)

Public Not Locked-in N/A 41,709,526 21,443 8.34

IPO Shares Not Locked-in N/A 83,070,111 16.61

Total 500,000,000 100.00

Post-IPO Public holding (humber of Post IPO Shares held by the ‘Public’ as a percentage of the total Post IPO number of
Shares), on the assumption that the parties who subscribe to the IPO shall be Public Shareholders (as per the ‘public’ definition
provided in the CSE Listing Rules) is 24.95%.

TAKEOVER OFFERS

There has been no take-over offers by third parties in respect of the Company’s Shares during the past two (02) years. The
Company acquired the entirety of the 7,800,002 ordinary shares of Waverly Power (Private) Limited which is a related party for
a total consideration of LKR 434,000,000 in September 2022. Other than for such acquisition, the Company has not made any
takeover offers in respect of Shares of a third party in the last two (2) years.

FUTURE STRATEGIES

The management has been successful in implementing strategic changes in the operational areas during the past few years
which resulted in the transformation of the Company from loss making during the financial year 2019/20 to a profitable entity in
the financial years 2020/21, 2021/22 and in the current financial period. The company recorded the highest net profit before tax
of LKR 1.9 Bn over the 9 months ended 31st December 2022 and are confident of achieving a corresponding net profitability
proportionately for the forthcoming 4th quarter too, wiping off the entire brought forward losses.

Management is cognizant of the need to sustain the current momentum and is determined to build on what has been achieved
and take the Company forward by exploring the relevant strategies to fill the gaps in the operational areas that will result in
operational efficiency in terms of better-quality product and cost reduction. Appended are such strategies to reap the operational
resurrection of the entity whilst being mindful of other exploitable resources possessed by the Company.

Proposed Action Plans Associated with Future Strategies

The Company intends to pursue several strategies as indicated below. While majority of the IPO funds will be used to fund the
purchase of equipment for the factories, the remaining of the future plans will be funded through the APL’s internally generated
funds together with external funding facilities from banks.
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The Company intends to develop its factories to “State of the Art - Processing Centres” investing in new technology, by gradually
replacing old machinery with modern equipment.

e Variable Speed Drive Units will be introduced to improve the withering process which will reduce power consumption of the

Trough Motors.

e De-Stoner will also be introduced to remove heavy/light foreign materials such as stone, sand, metal, plastic & fibre etc.

e Electronic Weighing Machines to eliminate human errors in weighment of harvested Green Leaf which will also help remote

monitoring of daily weighting from Head Office.

e Driers, Heaters and Hot water Generators to replace old and obsolete equipment and also as a secondary support to

factories with higher capacities to cope within 10 hours to 12 hours double Drier programme during high cropping seasons.

e Automation of Rolling Room, to achieve cost efficiency by reducing workers in the withering, Rolling and Drying section and

thereby increasing the allocation to harvesting cadre to increase crop.

e Energy savings Fan units to reduce power consumption around 50% to 60%.

e Replacement of Generators with higher capacity of 500 KVA, to cater for the highest profit yielding estates during the power

cut period.

e Provision of a Colour Sorter to the highest profit yielding estates to reduce the time in sorting the end product into their

respective Grades, which will result in proper grading of the crop with greater accuracy and reduce the turnaround time of
crop to cash.

¢ New Rollers to improve density of the Tea Grades and quality of liquors to fetch a better price.
e Pruning, which is also a labour-intensive operation, has been mechanized releasing workers for other field operations.

e The company has also introduced drones for the foliar application of nutrients and this too, has a major impact on labour cost

reduction as well as application efficiency, preventing wastage and limiting the opportunity for malpractices.

e |n addition, the company also intends to reintroduce and install Wire Shoots for the transportation of leaf where suitable. This

will reduce post-harvest damage as well as reduce transport costs.

e (Climate Change is creating prolonged dry spells and, on the other hand, extremely wet conditions. The Company is in the

process of introducing gravity fed irrigation to estates in the Agras Region bordering the “Horton Plains” reservation which has
an abundance of streams flowing down through the tea fields. It is also proposed to introduce Solar Powered Water Pumps
where, gravity fed water is not available.

The Company is one of the few Regional Plantation Companies where all its estates are located in the High Grown elevational
category.

The Company, in the past, has produced over 10 Mn Kgs of made tea per annum, however, there has been a sharp decline in
production, mainly due to the dearth of workers over the years as youth are reluctant to engage in estate employment involved
in plucking by hand. In order to revert to the full potential of 10 Mn Kgs per annum, whilst mindful of the workers psychological
concerns, mechanized harvesting has been introduced in June 2019. It has been planned to mechanize at least 30% of the
extent by 2023.

Training workers for these mechanized operations has been already undertaken and is ongoing under a dedicated consultant
employed merely for this operation. Machine use will be increased progressively, keeping in line with the exodus of workers
to other avenues of employment. Machine harvesting is progressing well, with improvements in quality of leaf, yield and cost
reduction.

The company also believes in dignity of labour; for example, machine pluckers are now referred to as Machine Operators. This
is regarded as a higher position in the hierarchy of employment level and is preferred, compared to being referred to as a tea
plucker which depicts employment in a time worn job. This is a motivational factor and would be an attraction to the younger
generation.
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Towards this end, the Company has already commenced mechanized harvesting and also automated other agricultural works,
where possible, in order to mitigate the shortage of workers whilst improving efficiency and productivity at a lower cost.

As at 31st December 2022, the Company has procured 485 units of tea harvesting machines and this number will be further
increased to 632 by the end of the financial year 2022/23, in order to facilitate the Company’s strategy of achieving 30% of the
total revenue extent to be under machine harvesting. The mechanical tea harvesters purchased are of the highest quality and of
an internationally renowned brand, directly imported from Japan, to ensure a high standard of work with due regard to safety of
the workers.

Field Development

Almost 60% of the extent of APL comprises of seedling tea and 40% with vegetatively propagated tea. The Company intends
to commence a replanting program with 2% of the cultivable extent replanted with vegetatively propagated tea annually. This will
result in a major improvement to both production volumes and leaf quality. In addition, a major infilling programme will also be
undertaken to increase the number of bushes to achieve an increase in the yield per hectare.

Management of Timber Reserve

The Company is managing almost 934.98 hectares of Forestry and environment sensitive areas, which is geologically referenced
and mapped using Geographic Information System (GIS) technology.

Timber harvesting programme for a period of 5 years has been approved by the Forestry Conservator of Sri Lanka. The
Projected income from Timber harvest for the remaining 4 years is as follows:

Table 3 - 8 Timber Income

2023 205 Mn
2024 144 Mn
2025 117 Mn
2026 119 Mn

* The projected timber income is based on the number of trees approved for harvesting by the Forestry Conservator at the current market prices.

Renewable Energy

The Company is currently focusing on taking advantage of the benefits of renewable energy resources, both hydro and solar,
with a view to supplying electricity to the National Grid as well as to its own estates and factories to reduce energy costs.

APL has two hydro power plants, one at Diyagama West Estate and another at Waverly Estate, generating over 1 megawatt of
power. The Diyagama West Hydro Power is exclusively used for estate consumption including the factory, whilst the Waverley
power plant, with a capacity of one megawatt, is supplying power to the main grid. The company is planning to install another
hydro power scheme downstream, to generate power to Diyagama East Estate. The feasibility of extracting wind power along
the southern slopes in the Uva Region will also be explored.

Tourism

There is high potential to develop tea tourism especially in Haputale with the available sites. Haputale has become a major
tourist destination, with several attractions in the vicinity. The Company has developed the historical site of “Lipton’s Seat” and
accommodates many visitors already.

In addition, the 9 Arch Bridge, Ella and Ravana Elle Falls, Horton Plains, Sri Lanka’s highest waterfall, Bambarakanda Ella and
Devil’s Staircase, situated on the road to Udaveriya Estate, makes up a collection of sites, which could be developed into a
package which will include tea tourism.
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In Agras Region, where the estates border the Horton Plains, an entrance is being constructed to accommodate trekkers. This
will be an ideal location for tourists and local travellers interested in nature and wild life, to visit, with the distinct possibility of
seeing the famous Ceylon Leopard which has increased its presence in the area. In addition, there is the opportunity to climb Sri
Lanka’s second highest mountain, Kirigalpotta.

Risks Associated with the Current Macro-Economic Situation in the Country

The country has been going through the worst economic set back in the history from the start of financial year 2022/23.
However, APL has achieved the highest profits during the same period demonstrating the fact that the Company would be able
to sustain all bearable risks in the near future. The company has identified the following bearable risks:

e Sri Lanka has experienced a significant increase in inflation over the past few years, driven by rising food and fuel prices.
The cost of Fertilizers has had an exorbitant price during the year 2022 which has had a major impact on the Tea Industry.
However due to the fact that almost 97% of the teas produced in Sri Lanka are exported, the corresponding devaluation of
Sri Lankan Rupees has had a cushioning effect on the Auction Tea prices allowing to mitigate the inflationary effect on input
costs, such as Fertilizer, Fuel and Packing Materials in particular.

e The political instability in the country has had a cascading effect across all the businesses in the country, however the impact
on the company’s operations has been for only a short period of time which will be recouped in the medium and long term as
the tea industry was still able to operate during the recent political crisis in the country.

e There was a significant increase in interest rates during the financial year 2022/23, however the company has been able to
cope with the increase due to the corresponding increase in the tea export revenue.

Risks Associated with the Future Strategies

The risks associated in the achievement of the above objectives and strategic plans may have an impact on the expected results
of the Company. The Company has identified the following risk factors which may have an impact on the set objectives.

* Most of the plantations are situated at 5,000 ft above sea level and is exposed to extreme weather conditions largely affected
by global warming. Crop losses and reduction in yield due to adverse weather conditions can cause shortfalls in revenue
which will hamper the overall profitability of the business. There is also a risk of the effects of natural disasters on the harvest
such as droughts, landslides, flooding and other related natural disasters that may lead to destruction in the landscape of the
plantations as well as the crops.

e Price fluctuations are not controllable due to the fact that the Tea Auction in Colombo is influenced by global demand, supply
and exchange rates. Policies adopted by different governments and political stability in different geographies play a crucial
role. Furthermore, inflation rates of a country will affect consumer spending power and indirectly impact the company’s
performance.

e Labour strikes and further ad-hoc wage increment demands can result in unrest leading to low productivity. Labour shortages
as migration of workers continue, will disrupt the tea-plucking operations, and will have a detrimental impact on revenue.

e Although the ban on fertilizers have been reversed, the scarcity of fertilizer and chemicals may continue, as imports have
been restricted due to the foreign exchange crisis. This may cause great difficulty in the progress of field practices with timely
applications.

e Most of the required state of the art modern technological equipment are not available locally and hence should be
outsourced from overseas manufacturers. Hence there exists the risk of foreign exchange scarcity and import restrictions to
import such equipment.

e With regards to the Mechanised harvesting there is a risk of poor quality of the Green Leaf being plucked under mechanization
and the impact on the final product quality.

e New restrictions may be imposed by the Government towards harvesting the commercial timber in future. This may prevent
the company from achieving its estimated income from sale of timber.

e Adverse weather conditions and continued droughts may have a significant impact on the revenue generation from the hydro
power plant as well as have an impact on the soil conditions which may delay the growth of plants.

e The current adverse economic conditions prevailing in the country may hinder the influx of tourists, due to the severe
shortages of essential items to enjoy a peaceful stay in the country thereby affecting the revenue from tourism.
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3.6.4 Assumptions Associated with Future Strategies

3.7

3.8

e The current disruption in the economy of the country will be resolved in the year 2023 with the support and assistance of the
International Agencies to open up the procurement process of importation of capital goods.

e The workers will respond positively to the proposed strategy of shifting from manual harvesting to mechanization and they will
be successfully trained.

e The company will generate surplus funds in the coming years to invest in the field development activities.

e The timber harvesting approved by the Forestry Conservator of Sri Lanka will be duly authorized by the respective
Government entities such as NBRO, CEA, MCRM who are responsible for inspection for final clearance.

e The relevant Government Authorities shall be helpful in granting permission and necessary approvals on time to implement the
proposed renewal energy projects.

e There would be no adverse impacts to the global and local macroeconomic environment which would have a significant
impact on the Tea industry.

e The existing labour resources for the plantation industry shall remain without any major labour turnover to other sectors.

e The Company would be able to achieve a competitive cost of production through reasonable increases in wage rates and
reduction in other production costs.

e The Company would be able to find reliable and efficient systems of procuring small holder leaf which would be more
economical for the Company.

LITIGATION AND DISPUTES

Other than for the Court of Appeal case referred to in Section 3.8 below. The Company and the Group have not been involved,
nor are they currently involved in any legal, arbitration or mediation proceedings, which may have a material effect on the Group’s
financial position and profitability.

Further, there have been no penalties imposed by regulatory and state authorities on the Company in the recent past, as at the
date of this Prospectus.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A “Writ Application” was instituted by the Regional Plantation Companies in the Court of Appeal seeking an interim order, staying
and/or suspending the operation of the Gazette issued on 5th March 2021 by the Wages Board declaring the wage rate of Tea/
Rubber workers as LKR 1,150 per day.

The estimated retirement benefit obligation liability considering the gazetted daily wage rate would increase by LKR 163 Mn of
which LKR 8 Mn may be charged to Profit or Loss and LKR 155 Mn may be charged to Other Comprehensive Income for the
year ended 31st March 2022.

On 9th August 2022, the Court of Appeal has declined to issue the interim order prayed for above. Consequent to this decision,
RPCs at its meeting held on 29th August 2022 in consultation with lawyers decided to appeal against the judgement of the Court
of Appeal. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of Agarapatana Plantations Ltd resolved to appeal against the judgement.

According to the full actuarial valuation carried out by a professionally qualified actuary firm, Actuarial and Management
Consultants (Pvt) Ltd as at 31st March 2022, the liability is LKR 1,129,917,707. If the Company had provided for gratuity for all
employees on the basis of 14 days wages for workers and a half month salary for staff for each completed year of service for the
year ended 31st March 2022, the liability would have been LKR 1,901,866,273 (2021 — LKR 1,679,146,182). Hence, there is a
contingent liability of LKR 771,948,566.
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TAXATION APPLICABLE TO THE COMPANY

Corporate Income Taxation

The Company is liable to pay tax at the rate of 14% on Agro processing in accordance with the Inland Revenue Act, No. 24 of
2017 and the Inland Revenue (Amendment) Act, No. 10 of 2021. However, with the new Amendments, the Company is liable to
pay tax at 30% on the Agro processing profits.

Value Added Tax (VAT)
APL is not liable for VAT as it is not a VAT registered Company

Tax Concessions or Tax Exemptions

The Company qualifies for a tax exemption for Agro Farming. The taxable income of plantation companies is segregated into two
categories. The taxable income attributable to pure agricultural activities that involves the production of crops and livestock for
food and other products (referred to as Agro Farming) is exempt from tax. The remaining taxable income which is attributable to
Agro processing is taxed at 30%.

DETAILS OF BENEFITS PAID TO PROMOTERS

No benefits have been paid or given within the two (02) years preceding the Issue and there is no benefit intended to be paid or
given to any Promoter.

DETAILS OF COMMISSION PAID

APL has not paid any commission in the two (02) years preceding the Issue, neither are any commissions payable for subscribing
or agreeing to subscribe or procure or agreeing to procure subscription for any Shares of the Company apart from the
commission payable on the IPO, as detailed in Section 1.11 of this Prospectus.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN ANY TRANSACTION RELATING TO PROPERTY OF
THE ENTITY

There were no transactions relating to the property completed within the two (2) preceding years in which any vendor of the
property or any person who is or was at the time of the transaction, a promoter or a director or proposed director of APL had any
interest, direct or indirect.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

As at the date of the Prospectus there were no material contracts entered into, or any agreements entered with other parties by
APL within the preceding two (2) years other than those contracts entered into as part of the ordinary course of business.
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3.14 SUB-LEASE AGREEMENTS

The Company has entered into the following sub-lease agreements for the sub-lease of portions of estate land to the sub-
lessees:

Table 3 - 9 Sub-lease Agreements

Beauvais Estate 22nd January 2004 — 21st January 2034
|dulgashena Estate 01st July 1992 — 30th June 2029

Diyagama East Estate 01st September 2020 — 31st August 2030
Glenanore Estate 01st July 2006 — 30th June 2036

Glasgow Estate 01st December 2016 — 30th November 2026
Pitaratmalie Estate 15th June 2020 - 14th June 2045
Nayadebbe Estate 24th November 2014 — 23rd November 2024

1st January 2002 — 31st December 2031
29th September 2003 — 28th September 2033
4th November 1999 - 3rd November 2024
1st December 2003 — 30th November 2033
Pitaratmalie Estate 5th November 2014 - 4th November 2039
15th June 2020 — 14th June 2045
1st August 1998 — 31st July 2038
Waverly Estate 1st November 2008 — 31st October 2038
1st August 2013 — 31st July 2023

3.15 PERIODIC BUSINESS LICENCES

Other than for the (i) Registration as a tea manufacturer under the Tea Control Act No. 51 of 1957, (ii) registration of all factories
of the Company under the Factories Ordinance, No. 45 of 1942 and (iii) the Environmental Protection Licences issued by the
Central Environmental Authority for the operation of the tea factories, there are no periodic licences issued to the Company in
order to carry out its main business. The expiry dates of such registrations and Environmental Protection Licences are set forth in
the table below

Table 3 - 10 Periodic Business Licences

Albion Estate Factory Registration Department of Labour 4th November 2025
Tea Manufacturer Registration Sri Lanka Tea Board 31st December 2023
Environmental Protection Licence Central Environmental Authority 15th November 2024

Balmoral Estate Factory Registration Department of Labour 18th November 2025
Tea Manufacturer Registration Sri Lanka Tea Board 31st December 2023
Environmental Protection Licence Central Environmental Authority 24th November 2024

Beauvais Estate Factory Registration Department of Labour 1st November 2025
Tea Manufacturer Registration Sri Lanka Tea Board 31st December 2023

Environmental Protection Licence Central Environmental Authority 24th January 2025
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Estate

Dambatenne Estate

Licence

Factory Registration

Issuing Authority

Department of Labour

Expiry Date

14th November 2025

Tea Manufacturer Registration

Sri Lanka Tea Board

31st December 2023

Environmental Protection Licence

Central Environmental Authority

09th November 2024

Diyagama East Estate

Factory Registration

Department of Labour

22nd November 2025

Tea Manufacturer Registration

Sri Lanka Tea Board

31st December 2023

Environmental Protection Licence

Central Environmental Authority

16th November 2024

Diyagama West
Estate

Factory Registration

Department of Labour

17th November 2025

Tea Manufacturer Registration

Sri Lanka Tea Board

31st December 2023

Environmental Protection Licence

Central Environmental Authority

13th November 2024

Glasgow Estate

Factory Registration

Department of Labour

4th November 2025

Tea Manufacturer Registration

Sri Lanka Tea Board

31st December 2023

Environmental Protection Licence

Central Environmental Authority

09th November 2024

Glenanore Estate

Factory Registration

Department of Labour

30th October 2025

Tea Manufacturer Registration

Sri Lanka Tea Board

31st December 2023

Environmental Protection Licence

Central Environmental Authority

16th January 2025

Gonamotawa Estate

Factory Registration

Department of Labour

8th November 2025

Tea Manufacturer Registration

Sri Lanka Tea Board

31st December 2023

Environmental Protection Licence

Central Environmental Authority

17th January 2025

Haputale Estate

Factory Registration

Department of Labour

27th October 2025

Tea Manufacturer Registration

Sri Lanka Tea Board

31st December 2023

Environmental Protection Licence

Central Environmental Authority

25th January 2025

Hauteville Estate

Factory Registration

Department of Labour

18th November 2022 —
18th November 2025

Tea Manufacturer Registration

Sri Lanka Tea Board

31st December 2023

Environmental Protection Licence

Central Environmental Authority

19th January 2025

Kahagalla Estate

Factory Registration

Department of Labour

15th November 2025

Tea Manufacturer Registration

Sri Lanka Tea Board

31st December 2023

Environmental Protection Licence

Central Environmental Authority

30th January 2025

Nayabedde Estate

Factory Registration

Department of Labour

1st November 2025

Tea Manufacturer Registration

Sri Lanka Tea Board

31st December 2023

Environmental Protection Licence

Central Environmental Authority

07th December 2024

Pitaratmalie Estate

Factory Registration

Department of Labour

27th October 2025

Tea Manufacturer Registration

Sri Lanka Tea Board

31st December 2023

Environmental Protection Licence

Central Environmental Authority

03rd January 2025

Sandringham Estate

Factory Registration

Department of Labour

16th November 2025

Tea Manufacturer Registration

Sri Lanka Tea Board

31st December 2023

Environmental Protection Licence

Central Environmental Authority

24th November 2024
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Torrington Estate Factory Registration Department of Labour 8th September 2025
Tea Manufacturer Registration Sri Lanka Tea Board 31st December 2023
Environmental Protection Licence Central Environmental Authority 24th November 2024
Waverly Estate Factory Registration Department of Labour 23rd November 2025
Tea Manufacturer Registration Sri Lanka Tea Board 31st December 2023
Environmental Protection Licence Central Environmental Authority 15th December 2024

3.16 MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

3.16.1 Summarised Profit and Loss Statement

Table 3 - 11 Summarised Profit and Loss Statement

Revenue 3,188 4,292 4,487 6,405 6,381

Cost of Sales (4,223) (4,121) (4,423) (4,162) (4,156)
Gross Profit (1,035) 171 63 2,243 2,225
Gain on Change in Fair Value of

Biological Assets 198 270 158 = =
Other Income 56 87 158 56 58
Administrative Expenses (130) (149) (130) (237) (239)
Operating Profit 912 379 249 2,063 2,044
Finance Income 2 7 32 42 42
Finance Cost (285) (251) (221) (218) (202)
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (1,194) 135 60 1,887 1,884
Income Tax Expense (18) 54 (32) (©) (€)
Net Profit/ (Loss) for the year (1,212) 190 28 1,884 1,881

Source: APL Audited Financial Statements, Consolidated Financial Statements (Limited Review)

3.16.2 Summarised Statement of Financial Position

Table 3 - 12 Summarised Statement of Financial Position

Total Non-current assets 5,166 5,334 5,361 5,813 5,780
Goodwill1 N/A N/A N/A 341 N/A
Total current assets 785 1,349 1,277 1,683 1,663
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Total Assets 5,901 6,683 6,638 7,496 7,343
Total Equity 31 654 1,630 3,516 3,512
Total Non-current liabilities 2,814 2,620 2,249 2,278 2,192
Total current liabilities 3,056 3,409 2,759 1,703 1,639
Total Equity and liabilities 5,901 6,683 6,638 7,496 7,343
Working Capital (2,321) (2,080) (1,482) (19) (76)

Source: APL Audited Financial Statements, Consolidated Financial Statements (Limited review)

"The goodwill of LKR 341 Mn relates to Waverly Power (Pvt) Ltd which was acquired in September 2022.

During the financial year ended 31st March 2020, the auditor’s report issued an emphasis of matter related to the going concern,
where the statement of financial position indicated a serious loss of capital. However, the company was able to implement

an action plan to address the matter which was cleared in March 2021. Some of the remedial actions taken by the company
included the conversion of related party loans to equity to strengthen the equity capital thereby eliminating their finance costs.
Additionally, mechanised harvesting was introduced to bring in significant savings in the cost of harvesting. The company was
successful in achieving its action plan, attaining profits from the year ended 31st March 2021 onwards.

As at 31st December 2022, the company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately LKR 19 Mn resulting

in a current ratio of 0.99. However, due to the profitable performance and a significant reduction in working capital deficit by LKR
1,462 Mn the current ratio has improved by 0.53 for the period ended 31st December 2022.

3.16.3 Summarised Cash flow Statement

Table 3 - 13 Summarised Cash Flow Statement

Net profit before tax (1,194) 135 60 1,887 1,884
Operating profit/loss before working

capital changes (613) 580 441 2,443 2,421

Net Cash flow from operating activities (143) (92) (837) 871 879
Net Cash flow from investing activities (125) (88) (54) (528) (528)
Net Cash flow from financing activities 242 253 885 (187) (194)
Net Increase /Decrease in Cash and

Cash Equivalents (26) 73 (55) 156 158
Cash And Cash Equivalents At the

Beginning Of the Year (814) (340) (267) (334) (823)
Equivalents At the End Cash And Cash

of the Year2 (340) (267) (323) (178) (165)

Source: APL Audited Financial Statements, Consolidated Financial Statements (Limited review)

2 Please refer Note 15 in the audited financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2022.
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3.16.4 Key ratios
Table 3 - 14 Key ratios

Growth rates (YoY)

Revenue growth -20.21% 34.63% 4.54% N/A 93.37%
Net profit growth 1,077.30% 115.64% -73.07% N/A 4,382.03%
Profitability ratios

GP margin -32.48% 3.98% 1.41% 35.02% 34.86%
Operating Profit Margin -28.61% 8.84% 5.56% 32.20% 32.03%
Net profit margin -38.02% 2.41% 0.62% 29.42% 29.48%
ROE -3,880.10% 29.00% 1.71% 53.59% 53.57%

Other ratios

Debt/ Debt + Equity 0.98 0.67 0.42 0.53 0.52
Interest cover (x) 3.19 1.54 1.27 9.47 10.11
Current assets/ Current liabilities (x)3 0.24 0.40 0.46 0.99 0.95

Source: APL Audited Financial Statements, Consolidated Financial Statements (Limited review)

3 Please refer Note 2.6 in the audited financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2022.

Financial Review

During the financial year, 9 months ended 31st December 2022, the company recorded a turnover of LKR 6.38 billion against
that of LKR 3.3 billion in the corresponding period in 2021/22 resulting in an increase of LKR 3 billion (93%). The revenue of the
Agras Region increased by 80%, and Haputale region too reported an increase in turnover by 107 %, mainly due to an increase in
NSA by 124% and 130% for the respective regions.

Both Western High Grown and Uva High Grown (Elevation) averages of LKR 1,336.14 and LKR 1,208.81 showed a significant
increase of LKR 727.53 per kg and LKR 666.31 per kg during current 9 months period ended 31st December 2022 respectively
against the corresponding period in 2021/22.

The company achieved the gross sale average of LKR 1,324.14 and LKR 1,362.07 for the Agras and Haputale regions
respectively for the current 9 months period ended 31st December 2022 against LKR 576.95 and LKR 571.07 in the
corresponding period in 2021/22 reflecting a significant increase of LKR 747.18 for Agras region and an increase of LKR 791.00
for Uva region respectively.

The company recorded a net profit after tax of LKR 1.88 Bn during the current 9 months period ended 31st December 2022
compared to a net loss of LKR 43.93 Mn in the corresponding period in 2021/22. The company earned a gross profit of LKR
2.22 Bn against a gross loss of LKR 5.71 million in the corresponding period in 2021/22, recording an increase of LKR 2.23 Bn
mainly due to the increase in tea prices by 134% as a result of currency devaluation and decline in overall tea production in the
country. The estate crop production decreased by 15% from 4.9 million kgs for the 9 months period ended 31st December 2021
to 4.17 million kgs for the corresponding period this year. However, the overall crop production reduced by only 11% due to the
increase in bought crop by 27%.
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The Company’s cost of production increased by 54.6% for the 9 months period ended 31st December 2022 against
corresponding period in 2021/22. Agras recorded an increase in cost of production by 50.6% and Uva recorded an increase
by 60.1% mainly due to the decrease in crop & exorbitant increase in cost of inputs as a result of the significant disruption in
the economy of the Country whereby the SL Rupee depreciated against USD drastically. However, all attempts have been
made to maintain a competitive cost of production by exercising stringent cost controls, improving productivity by implementing
mechanized harvesting and by conservation of energy.

The Company generated LKR 2.4 Bn for the 9 months period ended 31st December 2022 against LKR 256.6 Mn in the
corresponding period in 2021/22 from operating activities. The Company utilized LKR 923 Mn towards the net working capital
and LKR 649 Mn towards retiring benefit payments, finance cost payments and tax payments leaving a surplus cash of LKR 871
Mn from net operating activities. The operating surplus was utilized in the purchase of a wholly owned subsidiary Waverly Power
(Pvt) Limited for a sum of LKR 434 Mn, LKR 20 Mn in field development and LKR 87.58 Mn in property, plant & equipment
leaving a surplus of LKR 329.42 Mn.

The surplus after meeting the net financing activities of LKR 186.72 Mn resulted in the increase in cash and cash equivalents by
LKR 156.25 Mn against the deficit of LKR 83.4 Mn for the corresponding period in the previous year.

The Company closed the 9 months period ended 31st December 2022 with a negative cash position of LKR 177.53 Mn
compared to LKR 350 Mn for the corresponding period in the previous year recording a reduction in the overdraft position.

Replanting was given high priority to improve the yields and to mitigate the ever-escalating costs which includes the high wage
rates associated with low productivity. Therefore, the Company continued to invest in Capital intensive technology by introducing
mechanized harvesting to combat the increased wage rate of 34% and also on renewable energy projects to combat the ever-
increasing electricity cost.

During the current year period ended 31st December 2022, Company invested LKR 20 Mn in field development, a further LKR 4
Mn in commercial timber, LKR 87.58 Mn in property, plant & equipment including harvesting equipment under the mechanization
program and LKR 434 Mn in the purchase of a wholly owned subsidiary, Waverly Power (Pvt) Ltd, a company generating hydro
power and directly supplying to the Grid of the Ceylon Electricity Board since 2013.

The Company was able to reduce the current liabilities from LKR 2.8 Bn to LKR 1.7 Bn. The non-current liabilities increased
from LKR 2.25 Bn to LKR 2.28 Bn during current 9 months period ended 31st December 2022, however this was because of
the consolidation of the subsidiary acquired in September 2022. Taking the standalone company only into consideration the
non-current liabilities decreased from LKR 2.25 Bn to LKR 2.19 Bn during current 9 months period ended 31st December 2022
respectively against the year ended 2021/22 mainly due to the remarkable performance achieved in the current financial year in
terms of both profitability and increase in liquidity.

The finance cost of the standalone company was LKR 202 million for the 9 months period ended 31st December 2022, which
shows an increase of LKR 27 million over the corresponding period in 2021/22 mainly due to the significant increase in interest

cost towards the second quarter.

The break-up of loan details for the last 2 years is listed below:
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Repayable
within
1 Year
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Repayable
within
2-5 Years

Total As At
31.03.22

Total As At
31.03.21

Long Term Loans

Bank of Ceylon - Rs. 245.9 Mn = = = 42,336,766
Bank of Ceylon - Rs. 200 Mn 50,000,004 33,333,320 83,333,324 158,333,330
Peoples Leasing & Finance PLC - Rs. 10.5Mn 4,109,201 1,743,257 5,852,458 7,501,663
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC - Rs. 500Mn 18,756,000 136,901,459 155,657,459 164,161,459
Sri Lanka Tea Board - Rs. 60 Mn = = = 11,150,424
Sri Lanka Tea Board - Rs. 86 Mn 2,235,615 = 2,235,615 33,449,815
Sampath Bank PLC - Rs. 500 Mn 97,300,000 208,100,000 305,400,000 409,650,000
Seylan Bank PLC - Rs. 50 Mn 6,050,000 34,648,546 40,698,546 44,148,546
Bank of Ceylon - Rs. 250 Mn 60,606,080 136,363,600 196,969,680 250,000,000
Bank of Ceylon - Rs. 50 Mn 12,121,216 27,272,720 39,393,936 50,000,000
Peoples Leasing & Finance PLC - Rs. 7.77 2,930,049 - 2,930,049 5,573,824
Peoples Leasing & Finance PLC - Rs. 9.64 3,868,650 - 3,868,650 7,041,274
Peoples Leasing & Finance PLC - Rs. 5.02 2,244,664 - 2,244,664 3,671,317
Peoples Leasing & Finance PLC - Rs. 6.27 2,363,745 - 2,363,745 4,492,037
Seylan Merchant Bank PLC - Rs. 24 Mn - - - 16,924,699
Seylan Merchant Bank PLC - Rs. 21 Mn - - - 14,675,915
Bank of Ceylon - Rs. 31 Mn 17,929,332 2,988,222 20,917,554 =
Bank of Ceylon - Rs. 72 Mn 38,274,754 34,022,003 72,296,757 =
Bank of Ceylon - Rs. 68 Mn 17,198,057 51,579,170 68,772,227 =
Bank of Ceylon - Rs. 13Mn 3,369,752 10,109,255 13,479,007 =
Bank of Ceylon - Rs. 5 Mn 5,273,098 585,900 5,858,998 =
Bank of Ceylon - Rs. 7 Mn = 7,938,000 7,938,000 =
Sampath Bank PLC - Rs. 30 Mn 30,868,825 = 30,868,825 =
Sampath Bank PLC - Rs. 50 Mn 27,405,698 - 27,405,698 -
Sampath Bank PLC - Rs. 6 Mn 130,629 - 130,629 -
Sampath Bank PLC - Rs. 7 Mn 513,167 - 513,167 -
Seylan Bank PLC - Rs. 4 Mn 2,346,225 - 2,346,225 -
Seylan Bank PLC - Rs. 3 Mn 1,902,600 543,595 2,446,195 =
Seylan Bank PLC - Rs. 4 Mn 4,467,858 - 4,467,858 -
Seylan Merchant Bank PLC - Rs. 63 Mn 9,741,901 53,889,423 63,631,324 -
Total 422,002,120 740,018,470 1,162,020,590 1,223,111,069

Short Term Loans

John Keells PLC - Rs. 20 Mn 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 -
Forbes and Walkers Tea Brokers (Pvt) Ltd - Rs. 80 Mn - - - 13,000,000
Forbes and Walkers Tea Brokers (Pvt) Ltd - Rs. 30 Mn - - - 22,500,000
Forbes and Walkers Tea Brokers (Pvt) Ltd - Rs. 50 Mn 12,000,000 - 12,000,000 -
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Forbes and Walkers Tea Brokers (Pvt) Ltd - Rs. 66 Mn 18,480,000 - 18,480,000 -
Ceylon Tea Brokers PLC - Rs. 5 Mn - - - 2,916,667
Ceylon Tea Brokers PLC - Rs. 7.5 Mn 1,875,000 - 1,875,000 -
Sri Lanka Tea Board - Rs. 44 Mn - = = 39,607,200
Bank of Ceylon - Rs. 25.5 Mn - - - 25,500,000
Total 35,355,000 - 35,355,000 103,523,867
Grand Total 457,357,120 740,018,470 1,197,375,590 1,326,634,936

3.16.5 Waiver of rule 2.1.2.A (ii) (b) of the CSE listing rules

The Company does not comply with the Listing Rule 2.1.2 (A) (i) (b) to the extent where it should provide Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements to assess listing requirements.

As at 31 March 2022, at which point the last Audited Accounts are available, the Company was a standalone entity. The
Company acquired the entirety of the shares of Waverly Power (Private) Limited (“Waverly Power”) in September 2022 and
accordingly, the Company became the parent company of Waverly Power on 30th September 2022. The details of the group
structure is provided in Section 3.1.5 of this Prospectus. In this connection, it is evident that the audited financial statements of
the company for the year ended 31st March 2022 could not have been prepared on a consolidated basis, as required by the
relevant Listing Rule since the company was not a parent entity as at such date. However, the company is in compliance with
the Listing criteria set out in Rule 2.1.2 (A) (i) (b) even if a consolidated position was considered as at 31st March 2022 with
the company having a positive net asset of LKR 1.6Bn and Waverly Power (Pvt) Ltd having a positive net asset of LKR 94Mn.
Additionally, it should be noted that the revenue of the Waverly Power (Pvt) Ltd is LKR 24Mn in comparison to the company
revenue of 6.4Bn for the nine months ended 31st December 2022 and the net assets of Waverly Power (Pvt) Ltd is 97Mn in
comparison to the company net assets of LKR 3.5Bn as at 31st December 2022 and therefore the company is of view that
Waverly Power (Private) Ltd is not material in the context of the overall value of the Company.

In light of the said acquisition of the subsidiary, and the unavailability of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements the Company
has requested for a waiver of Listing Rule 2.1.2 (A) (i) (b).

In order to provide the investing public a reasonable and an accurate description of the current financial position of the company, CSE
in consultation with the SEC granted a waiver of Rule 2.1.2 (A) (ii) (b) of the CSE Listing Rules to the company, to the extent of the
‘definition’ pertaining to audited financial statements, as set out in the Listing Rules, provided the company adheres to the following:

1. The company submitting to the CSE the unaudited consolidated financial statements as at 31st December 2022, together
with a limited review prepared by the independent auditor of the company in respect of such consolidated financial
statements.

2. The company demonstrating compliance with any one (1) of the tests set out in Rule 2.1.2 (A) (i) (b) of the CSE Listing Rules
in view of the unaudited consolidated financial statements as at 31st December 2022 together with the limited review, taking
into consideration the restructure of the group as at 31st December 2022. Accordingly, the Group had duly demonstrated its
ability to meet the applicable criteria under the Listing Rule 2.1.2 (A) (i) (b) to the CSE. The company has positive net assets
of LKR 3,515,883,000 as per the consolidated interim financial statements as at 31st December 2022 with Limited review,
thereby meeting the positive net assets test.

3. The said item under 1. above being attached to the Prospectus which the Company has complied with.

4. The company making the required disclosures in the Prospectus by means of summarized versions of the income statement,
statement of financial position and statement of cash flows of the company for the year ended 31st March 2022 as a standalone
company compared with the consolidated financial statements as at 31st December 2022 as a parent entity, for the information of
prospective investors along with other disclosures pertaining to the pre and post parent entity structure of the company graphically
ilustrated. The company has made the said disclosure in Section 3.16.1, 3.16.2, 3.16.3 and 3.16.4 of this Prospectus.
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4.2

DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of APL comprises of nine (09) Directors of whom six (06) are Non-Executive Directors and three (03) are
Executive Directors. As at the date of Prospectus the composition of the Board of Directors is as follows:

Table 4 - 1 Board of Directors

S.D.R Arudpragasam

Chairman — Non-Executive Director

C.PR. Perera

Deputy Chairman — Independent, Non-Executive Director

D.R.Madena

Chief Executive Officer — Executive Director

S.S. Poholiyadde

Executive Director

M. Kowdu K. Mohideen

Executive Director

Anushman Rajaratnam

Non-Executive Director

P.M.A. Sirimane

Independent Non — Executive Director

G.K.B. Dasanayaka

Independent Non — Executive Director

A.M. de S. Jayaratne

Independent Non — Executive Director

PROFILES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Table 4 - 2 Director Profiles

S.D.R Arudpragasam
(Chairman — Non-Executive Director)

Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam joined the Board in 1996 and was appointed Chairman in
May 2013. He was appointed Chairman of The Colombo Fort Land & Building PLC
(CFLB) with effect from 1st July 2022. Mr. Arudpragasam has been associated with
the CFLB Group since 1982 and prior to such appointment, he held the position

of Deputy Chairman on the Board of The Colombo Fort Land & Building PLC. Mr.
Arudpragasam serves as Chairman of several subsidiaries of The Colombo Fort Land
& Building PLC including Chairman of Lankem Ceylon PLC and C M Holdings PLC
and Chairman/Managing Director of E.B.Creasy & Company PLC in addition to holding
other directorships within the CFLB Group. Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam is a Fellow of
the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (UK).

C.PR. Perera
(Deputy Chairman — Independent,
Non-Executive Director)

Mr. C.P.R. Perera joined the Board in 2005 and was appointed Deputy Chairman in
May 2013. He was appointed to the Board of The Colombo Fort Land & Building
PLC (CFLB) in May 2013 and as Deputy Chairman with effect from 1st July 2022.

He serves on the Boards of several subsidiaries of the CFLB Group and also holds
directorships in other private and public companies. He retired as Chairman of Forbes
& Walker Ltd and its subsidiary companies in June 2005 after aimost 44 years of
service. He is also a past Chairman of the Sri Lanka Tea Board, Sri Lanka Insurance
Corporation, PERC and Bank of Ceylon. Mr. Perera having held the office of Chairman
of Ceylon Tea Brokers PLC until 1st April 2022 continues to serve as a Non-Executive
Director of the said Company. Mr. Perera has served as a Committee Member of

the Ceylon Chamber of Commerce, The Planters Association of Ceylon and on the
Committee of the Management of the Ceylon Planters Provident Society.
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Name and Designation

D.R.Madena
(Chief Executive Officer - Executive
Director)

Business Experience

Mr. D.R. Madena was appointed to the Board and also to the position of Chief
Executive Officer in November 2019. Prior to such appointment Mr. Madena also
functioned as an Alternate Director. He was appointed to the Directorate of Lankem
Tea & Rubber Plantations (Pvt) Ltd (LT&RP) in 2018. Mr. Madena commenced his
career with Janatha Estates Development Board in 1987 prior to privatization and his
experience spans over 34 years in the high grown western and eastern regions.

With the privatization of the Management in 1992, he joined Kotagala Plantations
which was then managed by George Steuart Management Services as an Assistant
Manager and was subsequently promoted as a Manager.

He continued to serve Kotagala Plantations under the management of Lankem Tea
and Rubber Plantations (Pvt) Ltd. (LT&RP) and functioned as the Manager from 2000
to 2005 of the Stonycliff Cluster which is one of the most prestigious properties of
Kotagala Plantations.

In 2005, he was assigned to Dambetenne Estate which is one of the prime properties
of Agarapatana Plantations Limited (APL) and held the positions of Manager / Senior
Manager / General Manager / Regional General Manager.

He was appointed as an Alternate Director of APL in 2013 and to the Directorate of
LT&RP in 2018.

S.S. Poholiyadde
(Executive Director)

Mr. S.S. Poholiyadde joined the Board in 2018 and currently holds the position of
Managing Director, Lankem Tea & Rubber Plantations (Pvt) Ltd, managing agents of
Kotagala Plantations PLC and Agarapatana Plantations Ltd.

Mr. Poholiyadde is the former Managing Director of the Plantations Sector and Head
of Group Human Resources of the Richard Pieris Group. He was also the former
CEO/Executive Director of Kegalle Plantations PLC, Namunukula Plantations PLC,
Maskeliya Plantations PLC, an Executive Director of AEN Palm Oil Processing (Pvt) Ltd
& Eastern Brokers (Pvt) Ltd.

He has been a former Chairman of the Planters’ Association of Ceylon, former
Chairman of the Colombo Rubber Traders’ Association and has served as Chairman
of the Plantation Services Group of the Employers Federation of Ceylon. He was
also a member of the Board of Directors of the Sri Lanka Tea Board and the Rubber
Research Board. He has also served as a Council Member of the Ceylon Chamber
of Commerce and in the Executive Committee of the Sri Lanka Society of Rubber
Industry.

Mr. Poholiyadde is a Fellow of the National Institute of Plantation Management and has
over four decades of experience in the Plantations Industry.

M. Kowdu K. Mohideen
(Executive Director)

Mr. Kowdu Mohideen was appointed to the Board of Agarapatana Plantations Ltd on
20th September 2022.

He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and The
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (UK). He commenced his career at
M/s Ernst & Young, Sri Lanka and later moved to various Commercial Sectors both
locally and overseas.
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Business Experience

He possesses a wide exposure in the areas of Plantation Industry, Hyper Market
Operations, Fast Food Industry, Investment & Finance and Manufacturing spanning
over 25 years in local and overseas companies during which period he has held
several senior positions in Finance and Management including the position of Director,
Finance & IT in a local Company and has also served as Managing Director in a Super
Market operation overseas.

Having extensive experience in the field of Finance, Mr. Kowdu Mohideen joined

the Lankem Plantations Group in the year 2012 as General Manager- Finance. He
currently holds the position of Director Finance and heads the Financial Management
Unit of the Plantations Sector which comprises of several Companies including two
Regional Plantation Companies.

Anushman Rajaratnam
(Non-Executive Director)

Mr. Anushman Rajaratnam was appointed to the Board on 1st October 2019. He is

at present the Group Managing Director of the Colombo Fort Land & Building PLC
(CFLB). In addition, he serves on the Boards of several subsidiary companies of the
CFLB Group. Prior to joining the CFLB Group, he worked overseas for a leading global
Accountancy Firm.

He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Economics from the University of Surrey,
UK, CPA Australia and MBA from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology, USA.

P.M.A. Sirimane
(Independent Non — Executive
Director)

Mr. PM.A. Sirimane was appointed to the Board of Agarapatana Plantations Ltd on
20th September 2022.

He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and also holds

a Master’s in Business Administration from the University of Swinburne, Victoria,
Australia. Mr. Sirimane serves on the Board of The Colombo Fort Land & Building PLC
(CFLB) and also serves on the Boards of several subsidiary companies in the CFLB
Group. Amongst other senior positions he has functioned as Managing Director/CEO
of Mercantile Leasing Ltd., Group Finance Director of United Tractor & Equipment
Ltd., Chief Finance Officer of Sri Lanka Telecom Ltd., and Director of SLT Hong Kong
Ltd. He has served as a Member of several Committees of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Sri Lanka and was an ex-officio member of the International Leasing
Association.

G.K.B. Dasanayaka
(Independent Non — Executive
Director)

Mr. G.K.B. Dasanayaka was appointed to the Board of Agarapatana Plantations Ltd
on 20th September 2022.

Mr. Dasanayaka is an Attorney-at-Law by profession. After a brief period at the
unofficial Bar, he joined the Employers Federation of Ceylon (EFC) in 1979 and was
Director General/CEO of the EFC from 2000 - 2006. His areas of work and expertise
involved representing employers at International and National Level on Labour

and related social issues, Employment Law, Employee Relations and Training &
Development of Human Resources. He is an Honorary Life Member of the Chartered
Institute of Personnel Management (Sri Lanka).

Mr. Dasanayaka worked with the International Labour Organization (ILO) as a Senior
Professional Specialist (Employer’s activity) for the South Asian Region from 2007 to
2015. Since leaving the ILO, he offers consultancy services in employment related
subjects.
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A.M. de S. Jayaratne Mr. A. M. de S. Jayaratne was appointed to the Board of Agarapatana Plantations Ltd
(Independent Non — Executive on 18th November 2022.
Director)

He is a former Chairman of Forbes & Walker Limited, Colombo Stock Exchange,
Ceylon Chamber of Commerce and The Finance Commission. He also served as Sri
Lanka’s High Commissioner in Singapore. Mr. Jayaratne is a director of several listed
and unlisted companies. He holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Economics and
is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales and of Sri
Lanka.

4.3 OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS HELD BY THE DIRECTORS
Table 4 - 3 Other Directorships held by the Directors

S.D.R ACME Packaging Solutions (Pvt) E.B. Creasy Trading Ltd
Arudpragasam Limited EBC Milk Foods Ltd
(Chairman — Non- ACME Printing and Packaging PLC Far Eastern Exports (Colombo) Ltd
Executive Director) Alliance Five (Private) Limited Fortland Finance Ltd
Associated Farms (Pvt) Ltd Galle Fort Hotel (Pvt) Ltd
B.O.T. Hotel Services (Pvt) Ltd Group Three Associates (Pvt) Ltd
Beruwala Resorts PLC Guardian Asset Management Limited
C M Holdings PLC Imperial Hotels Limited
C.W. Mackie PLC J.F.Packaging Limited
C.W.M. Hotel Holdings Limited JF Ventures Ltd
Candy Delights Limited Kiffs (Private) Limited
Capital Investments Ltd Kotagala Plantations PLC
Capital Leasing Company Ltd Lak Kraft (Private) Limited
Century Investments & Finance Ltd Lanka Special Steels Ltd
Ceyflex Rubber Limited Lankem Agrochemicals Ltd
Ceylon Tapes (Private) Limited Lankem Cargo Storage Ltd
Ceytape (Private) Limited Lankem Ceylon PLC
Colombo Fort Group Services (Pvt) Lankem Chemicals Ltd
Limited Lankem Consumer Products Ltd
Colombo Fort Hotels Ltd Lankem Developments PLC
Colombo Fort Investments PLC Lankem Exports (Pvt) Ltd
Colombo Fort Travels Ltd Lankem Paints Ltd
Colombo Investment Trust PLC Lankem Plantation Services Ltd
Colombo Residencies (Pvt) Ltd Lankem Research Ltd
Colonial Motors (Ceylon) Ltd Lankem Tea & Rubber Plantations
Company Holdings (Pvt) Ltd (Pvt) Ltd
Consolidated Holdings (Pvt) Ltd Lankem Technology Services Ltd
Consolidated Tea Plantations Limited Laxapana Batteries PLC
Corporate Systems Ltd Maitland & Knox (Pvt) Limited
Creasy Plantation Management Ltd Marawila Resorts PLC
Darley Butler & Company Ltd Motor Mart Ceylon (Pvt) Limited
E.B. Creasy & Company PLC Muller & Phipps (Ceylon) PLC
E.B. Creasy Ceylon (Pvt) Ltd Nature’s Link Ltd

E.B. Creasy Logistics Ltd Nutriklim (Ceylon) Limited
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Oakley Investments (Pvt) Ltd

Pettah Pharmacy (Pvt) Ltd

Property & Investment Holdings (Pvt)
Ltd

Rubber & Allied Products (Colombo)
Ltd

Sherwood Holidays Ltd

Sigiriya Village Hotels PLC

SunAgro Farms Ltd

SunAgro LifeScience Ltd

Teacom (Pvt) Ltd

The Colombo Fort Land & Building
PLC

Udaveriya Plantations Ltd

Unicom Clearing & Forwarding (Pvt)
Ltd

Unicom Holdings (Pvt) Ltd

Union Commodities (Pvt) Ltd

Union Commodities Exports (Pvt) Ltd
Union Commodities Teas (Pvt) Ltd
Union Group (Pvt) Ltd

Union Investments (Pvt) Ltd

Waverly Power (Pvt) Ltd

Weligama Hills Limited

York Arcade Holdings PLC

York Hotel Management Services Ltd

D.R.Madena
(Chief Executive
Officer - Executive
Director)

Lankem Tea & Rubber Plantations
(Pvt) Ltd

S.S. Poholiyadde
(Executive Director)

Consolidated Tea Plantations Limited
Kotagala Plantations PLC

Lankem Developments PLC

Lankem Tea & Rubber Plantations
(Pvt) Ltd

Rubber & Allied Products (Colombo)
Ltd

Union Commodities (Pvt) Ltd
Waverly Power (Pvt) Ltd

M. Kowdu K.
Mohideen
(Executive Director)

Consolidated Tea Plantations Limited
Kotagala Plantations PLC

Lankem Developments PLC

Lankem Tea & Rubber Plantations
(Pvt) Ltd

Rubber & Allied Products (Colombo)
Ltd

Union Commodities (Pvt) Ltd
Waverly Power (Pvt) Ltd

C.P.R. Perera
(Deputy Chairman

— Independent, Non-
Executive Director)

Beruwala Resorts PLC

C.W. Mackie PLC

Ceylon Tea Brokers PLC
Consolidated Tea Plantations Limited
Insite Factories (Pvt) Ltd

Insite Holdings (Pvt) Ltd

Kotagala Plantations PLC

Lankem Developments PLC
Lankem Tea & Rubber Plantations
(Pvt) Ltd

Logicare (Pvt) Limited

Marawila Resorts PLC

Rubber & Allied Products (Colombo)
Ltd

Sigiriya Village Hotels PLC

The Colombo Fort Land & Building
PLC

Waverly Power (Pvt) Ltd

Anushman
Rajaratnam
(Non-Executive
Director)

ACME Packaging Solutions (Pvt)
Limited

ACME Printing and Packaging PLC
Alliance Five (Private) Limited
Beruwala Resorts PLC

C M Holdings PLC

C.W. Mackie PLC

C.W.M. Hotel Holdings Limited
Cambodian Rubber Plantation
Industries PTE Ltd

Capital Leasing Company Limited
Ceylon Tapes (Pvt) Limited
Ceytape (Pvt) Ltd

Colombo Fort Group Services (Pvt)
Ltd

Colombo Fort Hotels Ltd

Colombo Fort Investments PLC
Colombo Fort Properties (Pvt) Limited
Colombo Investment Trust PLC
Colonial Motors (Ceylon) Limited
Consolidated Commercial
Investments (Pvt) Limited



64

4,

Agarapatana Plantations Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CONTD.

Consolidated Holdings (Private)
Limited

Consolidated Rubber Plantations PTE
Ltd

Consolidated Tea Plantations Limited
Far Eastern Exports (Colombo) Ltd
Financial Trust Ltd

Galle Fort Hotel (Pvt) Ltd

Great Eastern Resorts Limited
Horton Plains Resorts and Spa Ltd
Imperial Hotels Limited

J.F. Packaging Ltd

JF Ventures Ltd

Kelani Valley Canneries Ltd

Kiffs (Private) Limited

Kotagala Plantations PLC

Lak Kraft (Private) Limited

Lanka Agro Plantations Ltd

Lankem Agrochemicals Ltd

Lankem Cargo Storage Ltd

Lankem Ceylon PLC

Lankem Chemicals Ltd

Lankem Consumer Products Ltd
Lankem Developments PLC
Lankem Paints Ltd

Lankem Research Ltd

Lankem Tea & Rubber Plantations
(Pvt) Ltd

Maitland & Knox (Pvt) Limited
Marawila Resorts PLC

Mayfield Investments (Pvt) Ltd

Motor Mart Ceylon (Pvt) Limited
Property & Investment Holdings (Pvt)
Ltd

Rubber & Allied Products (Colombo) Ltd
Sigiriya Resorts Limited

Sigiriya Village Hotels PLC

SunAgro Farms Ltd

SunAgro LifeScience Ltd

Sunquick Lanka (Pvt) Ltd

Sunrise Resorts Limited

Teacom (Pvit) Ltd

The Colombo Fort Land & Building
PLC

Transways (Pvt) Limited

Tropical Beach Resorts Limited
Udaveriya Plantations Ltd

Unicom Clearing & Forwarding (Pvt) Ltd
Unicom Holdings (Pvt) Ltd

Union Commodities (Pvt) Ltd
Union Commodities Exports (Pvt) Ltd
Union Commodities Teas (Pvt) Ltd
Union Group (Pvt) Ltd

Union Investments (Pvt) Ltd
Voyages Ceylan (Pvt) Limited
Waverly Power (Pvt) Ltd
Weligama Hills Ltd

York Arcade Holdings PLC

York Conventions (Pvt) Limited
York Tours Limited

Alternate Director in:

Colombo Fort Investments PLC
Colombo Investment Trust PLC
E.B. Creasy & Co. PLC

Lankem Tea & Rubber Plantations
(Pvt) Ltd

The Colombo Fort Land & Building
PLC

P.M.A. Sirimane
(Independent, Non —
Executive Director)

ACME Packaging Solutions (Pvt) Ltd
ACME Printing and Packaging PLC
Alliance Five (Private) Limited
Candy Delights Limited

Capital Leasing Company Limited
Ceyflex Rubber Limited

Ceylon Tapes (Private) Limited
Ceytape (Private) Limited

Colombo Fort Group Services (Pvt)
Ltd

Colombo Fort Investments PLC
Colombo Investment Trust PLC
Consolidated Tea Plantations Limited
Darley Butler & Company Ltd

E.B. Creasy & Company PLC

E.B. Creasy Ceylon (Private) Limited
E.B. Creasy Logistics Ltd

J.F. Packaging Ltd

Kiffs (Private) Limited

Kotagala Plantations PLC

Lanka Special Steels Ltd

Lankem Ceylon PLC

Lankem Developments PLC
Lankem Tea & Rubber Plantations
(Pvt) Ltd

Laxapana Batteries PLC

Muller & Phipps (Ceylon) PLC
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Pettah Pharmacy (Pvt) Ltd A.M.deS. ACL Cables PLC
Rubber & Allied Products (Colombo) Jayaratne B.O.T. Hotel Services (Pvt) Ltd
Ltd (Independent, Non — C M Holdings PLC

The Colombo Fort Land & Building Executive Director) C.W. Mackie PLC

PLC
Union Commodities (Pvt) Ltd
Waverly Power (Pvt) Ltd

C.W.M. Hotel Holdings Limited
Candy Delights Limited
Colombo Fort Investments PLC

Colombo Investment Trust PLC,
Colonial Motors (Ceylon) Limited
Consolidated Tea Plantations Limited
Darley Butler & Company Ltd

E.B. Creasy & Company PLC
Innovest Investments (Pvt) Limited
Kotagala Plantations PLC

Lankem Developments PLC
Lankem Tea & Rubber Plantations
(Pvt) Ltd

Mireka Capital Land (Pvt) Ltd
Overseas Realty (Ceylon) PLC
Rubber & Allied Products (Colombo)
Ltd

The Colombo Fort Land & Building
PLC

Union Commaodities (Pvt) Ltd

Union Investments (Pvt) Ltd
Waverly Power (Pvt) Ltd

York Arcade Holdings PLC

G.K.B. Dasanayaka ACME Packaging Solutions (Pvt)
(Independent, Non —  Limited
Executive Director) ACME Printing & Packaging PLC
Alliance Five (Pvt) Limited
Ceylon Tapes (Pvt) Limited
Ceytape (Pvt) Limited
J.F. Packaging Limited
Kiffs (Pvt) Limited
Kotagala Plantations PLC
Lankem Ceylon PLC

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee takes an independent stance when it comes to providing advice and assistance regarding internal
functions of the Company. The Audit Committee regularly reviews the performance of the Company through discussions with the
Directors and Senior Management, and reviews the Internal Audits carried out by the Internal Auditors. The Audit Committee also
monitors all audit activities and ensures compliance with Financial Standards and Statutory regulations.

The Audit Committee of the Parent Company (Lankem Developments PLC) functioned as the Audit Committee of the Company.
An Independent Audit Committee of the Company was established effective from 8th December, 2022.

The committee comprises of:
e Mr. A. M. de S. Jayaratne - Chairman (Independent, Non-Executive Director)
e Mr. C. P. R. Perera — Member (Independent, Non-Executive Director)

e Mr. PM.A. Sirimane - Member (Independent, Non-Executive Director)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CONTD.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible to make remuneration policy recommendations to the Board of APL and as such
works closely with the members of the Board. The Committee is responsible for recommending remuneration packages for the
key management and senior management personnel. In addition, they lay down guidelines and parameters for the compensation
structure of the management staff. The remuneration policy of the Company is to attract, motivate and retain qualified and
experienced personnel and reward performance in a fair manner.

The Remuneration Committee of the Parent Company (Lankem Developments PLC) functioned as the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. An Independent Remuneration Committee of the Company was established effective from 8th December, 2022.

Please note that there were director fees of LKR 3,789,835 and director salaries of LKR 12,000,000 paid to the executive and
non-executive directors for the FY22.

The committee comprises of:

e Mr. A. M. de S. Jayaratne - Chairman (Independent, Non-Executive Director)
e Mr C. P. R. Perera - Member (Independent, Non-Executive Director)

e Mr. S.D.R. Arudpragasam — Member (Non-Executive Director)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS REVIEW COMMITTEE

The objective of the Related Party Transactions Review Committee is to ensure there is firm adherence to the guidelines
surrounding related party transactions. The Committee oversees that industry best practices are followed and that interests of all

stakeholders are considered.

The Related Party Transactions Review Committee of the Parent Company (Lankem Developments PLC) functioned as the
Related Party Transactions Review Committee of the Company.

An Independent Related Party Transactions Review Committee of the Company was established effective from 8th December,
2022.

The committee comprises of:

e Mr. A. M. de S. Jayaratne - Chairman (Independent, Non-Executive Director)
e Mr. C.PR. Perera - Member (Independent, Non-Executive Director)

e Mr. PM.A. Sirimane - Member (Independent, Non-Executive Director)

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS IN THE COMPANY

Directors do not hold any shares in the Company and have not made any sales and/or purchases of shares of APL during the
year immediately preceding the date of this Prospectus.

DIRECTORS’ INVOLVEMENT IN LITIGATION AND OFFENCES
No Director or a person nominated to become a Director of the Company has been involved in:
e Any petition under any bankruptcy laws filed against such person or any partnership in which he was a partner or any

corporation of which he was an Executive Officer.

e Any conviction for fraud, misappropriation or breach of trust or any other similar offence which the CSE considers a
disqualification.

No such Director was the subject of any order, judgment or ruling of any court of competent jurisdiction temporarily enjoining him
from acting as an investment adviser, dealer in securities, director or employee of a financial institution and engaging in any type
of business practice or activity.
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4.9 DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

4.9.1 Directors Interest in Assets

None of the Directors have any interest in any assets acquired, disposed of or leased by the Company during the past two (02)
years preceding the date of this Prospectus and/or in any assets proposed to be acquired, disposed of or leased during the two
(02) years succeeding the Issue.

4.9.2 Director Interests in Contracts

There are no contracts or arrangements in force as of the date of the submission of the Initial Listing Application to which the
Directors are materially interested in relation to the business of the Company.
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HUMAN RESOURCE

EMPLOYEES

As at 31st December 2022, the number of persons employed are 9,056 employees.

Uva Region - Plantation Executives  (18)

Uva Region - Workers (3,398)
Uva Region - Staff (216)
Agras Region - Plantation Executives  (28)
Agras Region - Workers (5,029)
Agras Region - Staff (337)
Head Office (30)

The employees of the Company are part of the following labour unions:

1. National Union of Workers (NUW) 10. United Lanka Estate Workers Union (ULEWU)

2. Ceylon Plantation Workers Union (CPWU) 11. Progress Estate Workers Union (PEWU)

3. United Plantation Workers Union (UPWU) 12. Socialist Workers Congress (SWC)

4. Lanka General Service Workers Union (LGSWU) 13. Sri Lanka Independence Plantation Union (SLIPU)
5. All Ceylon United Staff Congress (ACUSC) 14. Sri Lanka Workers Union

6. SriLanka Nidahas Sewaka Sangamaya (SLNSS) 15. Democratic Workers Congress

7. Lanka Estate Workers Union (LEWU) 16. Upcountry Workers Front

8. All Ceylon United Workers Congress (ACUWC) 17. Ceylon Workers Congress

9. Agricultural and Plantation Workers Congress (APWC) 18. Ceylon Estate Staffs Union (CESU)

There are currently no significant collective agreements entered into between the labour unions and the Entity. Accordingly, the
impact from labour unions is very minimal. However, an agreement between the Company and the estate staff is in existence.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Table 5 - 1 CEQ’s Profile

D.R. Madena Mr. D.R. Madena was appointed to the Board and also to the position of Chief
Executive Officer in November 2019. Prior to such appointment Mr. Madena also
functioned as an Alternate Director. He was appointed to the Directorate of Lankem
Tea & Rubber Plantations (Pvt) Ltd (LT&RP) in 2018. Mr. Madena commenced his
career with Janatha Estates Development Board in 1987 prior to privatization and his
experience spans over 34 years in the high grown western and eastern regions.

With the privatization of the Management in 1992, he joined Kotagala Plantations
which was then managed by George Steuart Management Services as an Assistant
Manager and was subsequently promoted as a Manager.
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He continued to serve Kotagala Plantations under the management of Lankem Tea
and Rubber Plantations (Pvt) Ltd. (LT&RP) and functioned as the Manager from 2000
to 2005 of the Stonycliff Cluster which is one of the most prestigious properties of
Kotagala Plantations.

In 2005, he was assigned to Dambetenne Estate which is one of the prime properties
of Agarapatana Plantations Limited (APL) and held the positions of Manager / Senior
Manager / General Manager / Regional General Manager.

The Chief Executive Officer has not been involved in:

e Any petition under any bankruptcy laws filed against such person or any partnership in which he was a partner or any
corporation of which he was an Executive Officer.

e Any conviction for fraud, misappropriation or breach of trust or any other similar offence which the CSE considers a
disqualification.

5.3 SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Table 5 - 2 Senior Management Profiles

S.S. Poholiyadde Mr. S.S. Poholiyadde joined the Board in 2018 and currently holds the position of
Executive Director Managing Director, Lankem Tea & Rubber Plantations (Pvt) Ltd, managing agents of
Kotagala Plantations PLC and Agarapatana Plantations Ltd.

Mr. Poholiyadde is the former Managing Director of the Plantations Sector and Head
of Group Human Resources of the Richard Pieris Group. He was also the former
CEO/Executive Director of Kegalle Plantations PLC, Namunukula Plantations PLC,
Maskeliya Plantations PLC, an Executive Director of AEN Palm Qil Processing (Pvt) Ltd
& Eastern Brokers (Pvt) Ltd.

He has been a former Chairman of the Planters’ Association of Ceylon, former
Chairman of the Colombo Rubber Traders’ Association and has served as Chairman
of the Plantation Services Group of the Employers Federation of Ceylon. He was
also a member of the Board of Directors of the Sri Lanka Tea Board and the Rubber
Research Board. He has also served as a Council Member of the Ceylon Chamber
of Commerce and in the Executive Committee of the Sri Lanka Society of Rubber
Industry.

Mr. Poholiyadde is a Fellow of the National Institute of Plantation Management and has
over four decades of experience in the Plantations Industry.

M. Kowdu K. Mohideen Mr. Kowdu Mohideen was appointed to the Board of Agarapatana Plantations Ltd on
Executive Director - Finance 20th September 2022.

He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and The
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (UK). He commenced his career at
M/s Ernst & Young, Sri Lanka and later moved to various Commercial Sectors both
locally and overseas.
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Name Business Experience

He possesses a wide exposure in the areas of Plantation Industry, Hyper Market
Operations, Fast Food Industry, Investment & Finance and Manufacturing spanning
over 25 years in local and overseas companies during which period he has held
several senior positions in Finance and Management including the position of Director,
Finance & IT in a local Company and has also served as Managing Director in a Super
Market operation overseas.

Having extensive experience in the field of Finance, Mr. Kowdu Mohideen joined

the Lankem Plantations Group in the year 2012 as General Manager- Finance. He
currently holds the position of Director Finance and heads the Financial Management
Unit of the Plantations Sector which comprises of several Companies including two
Regional Plantation Companies.

Ganeshadason Sri Shankar Mr. Srishankar commenced his carrier with Janatha Estates Development Board as

General Manager - Manufacturing a Tea Taster in 1981 and then was promoted as Manufacturing Advisor, visiting and
advising the operational factories, in various Regions which came under the purview of
JEDB | (Avissawella), IIl (Badulla) & IV (Kegalle).

He joined a pioneer Tea Broking Company in 1992 at the time of privatization and was
employed as a Senior Tea Auctioneer and Manufacturing Consultant for the Estates
handled by the Broking Firm.

Subseqguently, he joined Agarapatana Plantations Limited in 1994 as Manager-
Manufacturing, responsible for the “Quality & Production” in the Tea Factories coming
under the purview of the Company. He was later promoted as General Manager —
Manufacturing in 2012.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has undertaken many CSR projects that has improved the health conditions of the plantation community and
benefits such as new housings, water supply schemes, concreting estate roads, repairs to culverts, drains, community centres,
field rest rooms, toilets and playgrounds in collaboration with the Plantations Human Development Trust (PHDT), Ministry of
Community Empowerment and Estate Infrastructure Development, World Vision and Chrysalis, with funding in the form of grants
and Company contributions amounting to approximately LKR 118 million.

Awareness programs on Covid-19, Dengue, Aids and other communicable diseases have been conducted and the plantations
were facilitated with the Covid-19 vaccination programs through the Ministry of Health. Additionally, health clinics for dental and

eye-care programs and awareness programs facilitating the child development centres were also conducted

The estate community was educated regarding home gardening and household cash management with the support of the
Ministry of Health and PHDT with a view to enhance their income.

The company has been able to witness improvements in the health conditions of the plantation community and benefits derived
by implementing these CSR projects.

The benefits currently awarded by the Company to worker population, could be categorized as:

i) Direct monetary benefits awarded includes the following:

e Maternity benefits

e Sick leave pay — Up to a maximum of 14 days per year. The workers are entitled to half pay for each day of stay in hospital,

subject to being hospitalized for more than 7 days. The workers will be required to produce a valid medical certificate from the
hospital.
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i) Indirect monetary benefits awarded includes the following:
e Tea allowances at a concessionary rate of LKR 50 cents per kg

e Free feeding — For children between 1 -10 years of age, the Company provides financial support to purchase wheat flour
every month.

iiiy Other fringe benefits awarded by the Company:

e Free land/housing
e Pre-school
e Free child development centres
e Free medical facility
e Free transport to nearest base/district hospital
e Free water and sanitary facilities
® Inthe case of a funeral:
— Free transport
— Provision of 4 workers free of charge to excavate graves

— Funeral expenses

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENTS

The Company has entered into a Management Agreement with Lankem Tea & Rubber Plantations (Pvt) Ltd on 29th December
1997, in terms of which the business and assets of the Company are managed by the Lankem Tea & Rubber Plantations (Pvt)
Ltd in the capacity of a managing agent. However, the senior management disclosed in section 5.3 are not employees of
Lankem Tea & Rubber Plantations (Pvt) Ltd. Additionally, Lankem Tea & Rubber Plantations (Pvt) Ltd has agreed not to receive
any fees from the Company for the services rendered under the Management Agreement given that Lankem Tea & Rubber
Plantations (Pvt) Ltd is an Affiliated Company of APL and the Company does not hold shares with Lankem Tea & Rubber
Plantations (Pvt) Ltd. The investors can refer to Annexure 9 for the management agreement and the addendum.
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DECLARATIONS

DECLARATION BY THE DIRECTORS

We, the undersigned being the Directors of Agarapatana Plantations Limited, hereby declare and confirm that we have read
the provisions of the Companies Act No.7 of 2007 relating to the issue of the Prospectus and that those provisions have been
complied with.

This Prospectus has been seen and approved by us and we collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy
of the information given and confirm that the provisions of the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange and the Companies
Act No. 7 of 2007 and any amendments made thereto from time to time, have been complied with and after making all
reasonable inquiries and to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no other facts the omission of which would make any
statement herein misleading or inaccurate. \Where representations regarding the future performance of the Company have been
given in the Prospectus, such representations have been made after due and careful inquiry of the information available to the
Company and making assumptions that are considered to be reasonable at the present point in time and according to our best
judgments.

We further declare that the profit forecasts have been included in this Prospectus after due and careful inquiry of the information
available with the Company and assumptions that are considered to be reasonable at the present point in time and according to
our best judgments.

Name of the Director Designation Signature
S.D.R Arudpragasam Chairman — Non-Executive Director Sgd
C.P.R. Perera Deputy Chairman — Independent, Non-Executive Director Sgd
D.R. Madena Chief Executive Officer - Executive Director Sgd
S.S. Poholiyadde Executive Director Sgd
M. Kowdu K. Mohideen Executive Director "F'
1
Anushman Rajaratnam Non-Executive Director Sgd
PM.A. Sirimane Independent Non — Executive Director Sgd
G.K.B. Dasanayaka Independent Non — Executive Director Sgd
AM. de S. Jayaratne Independent Non — Executive Director Sgd

DECLARATION BY THE COMPANY

We, Agarapatana Plantations Limited, having our Registered office at 53 1/1, Sir Baron Jayatilaka Mawatha, Colombo 1, hereby
declare that to the best of our knowledge and belief this Prospectus constitutes full and fair disclosure of all material facts about
the Offer and the Company. Moreover, we confirm that Agarapatana Plantations Limited has no conflict of interest with the
parties to the issue who are expected/considered to be independent.

An application has been made to the Colombo Stock Exchange for permission to deal in and for a listing for all of the Ordinary
Voting Shares issued by the Company, and those Ordinary Voting Shares which are the subject of this Offer. Such permission
will be granted when the Ordinary Voting Shares are listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange. The Colombo Stock Exchange
assumes no responsibility for the correctness of any of the statements made or opinions expressed or reports included in this
Prospectus. Listing on the Colombo Stock Exchange is not to be taken as an indication of the merits of the Company or of the
Shares Offered.

The Common Seal of Agarapatana Plantations Limited is affixed hereto at Colombo on this 13th July 2023 in the presence of two
Directors.

Sgd Sgd
Director Director
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DECLARATION BY THE MANAGERS AND FINANCIAL ADVISORS TO THE OFFER

We, Capital Alliance Partners Limited of Level 5, “Millennium House”, 46/58, Navam Mawatha, Colombo 02 hereby declare that
to the best of our knowledge and belief this Prospectus constitutes full and true disclosure of all material facts about the Offer
and the Company and we have satisfied ourselves that the profit forecasts had been stated by the Directors after due and careful
inquiry.

The Common seal of Capital Alliance Partners Limited is affixed on 13th day of July 2023 Colombo in the presence of two
Directors.

Sgd Sgd
Director Director
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ANNEXURE 1 - ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT AND FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

Accountants’ Report for Inclusion in the Prospectus on
Proposed Issue of Ordinary Shares
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Building a better
working world
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The Board of Diveciors,
Agarapatana Frasiations Limibed,
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Accountanis’ report for Inclusion in the prospectus on Preposed tsue of Ordinary Shares of
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Bage Sers Mladaras,

Isirgduiion

This report it been prapared for Bhe Inclision in the prospectus Heud in gonneciion wikh 198 initial
pstic ofiening of Drdinary Voting Shares. Agad spxiana Planfations Limited,
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Bhe yEars ended 31 March 2008 o 31 March 2022 (perod”™h and feport oy Iollows..
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Becounting Policies
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ANNEXURE 2 - AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022
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H Ervsk & "angy Tl =i | 2o 00
Curieimd Ammnlash A . wlpd [ 0% T8
D, S Saner M P {(Taiy +94 1 L S5TB LB
PO Boa 100 Timad, el Fyaom
:ﬂ' Camees 1Y, 4 Lama T
FauaTRIMRH A0
INOEFENDENT AUDITORS HEPGRT

T THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AGARAPATANA PLANTATIONS LTD
Feport on The Audid of The Financial Statements
Opirion

Wi e desdibed the Mrancial statements ol Agarapstana Plantatiang LB (‘the company) which comprise
the statemerd of {hnanclal pesition ot at Maech 31, 2022 and 1he statement of profit or loss, skatement of
comiprenpnslvg income, siatement of changes i aquity ang siatement of cash flews for BRe viear Shen
ended. and robe bo the linancial sratemanis, incioding & summary of sigrdlicant accounting poliies.

I pur-painign, the sccompanving fingncial statoments give @ Irueang falr wigw of 1B inancial sasiiian o
e Company a5 ol March 31, $022 and & iks enancinl perlormanpe and (5 CAsh llieas har e ypear thasn
grded ie pcordande with Sri Lanks btcausnting Standards,

irssis for apitan

Wa conducted our gudit In @toordance wih 501 Lankd Auditing Standarcs (SLAGSE ) Our responsniiikes
under hase slandands are lurther descrided in the Auditor's responsibiibies for the aoait of he financial
sfatemends section of our report, We ang independent of the Company In sccoedance wizh (he Code of
Ethics issusd by CA Sr Lankn (Code af Ethics) and we hawe fulfilled our offeer e1riad I'Hﬂﬁl'ﬁl_ﬂﬂﬂt'i Iy
acecridance wiin he Code of Elhics, Wa belieye Lhai the aulil edgence 'we bive cblened |s sl ligheet ol
sppropdiabe (o provide » basis oe our opinlen,

Responsibilities of management and thoss charged with povernance for the linancial Satements.

Manpgarnend s responsible Tar (o preparation of Gnancial statemants that glve a true ang falr view In
atcordance wilh S Lanka Accounting Standasrds, and lor such iifesnal conired a5 managemsni

detormings s necessany (o endble (he pregaration of fingmiial statemdnts Ral S o Brom: madeinl
misstalement, whelker due to frood or error

in preparing the firancial stalemends, mansgement is responsiie for assessing the Company's ability 10
coantinieg 85 8 goang conemn, dcinding, as appticatia, matiers reated S0 golng contarn and using tha
going cdngern basis af accounting uniess masagement either infends o iigudate (na Company or o cease
cperaticns, of has no realistic alternathée but to do o,

Thew charped with governanc e ar e feipoimies 1of eerissing Ehe Campany's lindnchal repoctiog prooeds.

(Condd.2f)
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Awditor's responsibaihiers for fhe audit of bhe financlal slatemenfs

i ohacthers Are 16 BRAIR FEASORASM IESUFARCE S00UL whether 1nE nanclal slaiements & 3 whals are
free from materlsl misstatervent, whebher due to Praua or arroe, and [6 [$398 &0 auetior's report that
includes our ppinion. Roasenable swsurante (& 4 high lea of Hiurance, Bul & Aol 3 gusantes that an
audl corducied in accordance with SLAuSs wil always delett o malderial mésstadermant when if eadas.
MEstalementy Can arse from Draud or- error ang sre congicered malerlal If, Indsldually or In e
-aggregate, Ihey Dokt rEALONably D expectad 10 infliuencn Ine eConomic decisions of users taken on the
biasis of thete Fnancial stalements.

A5 part ol an aadit in sccordance with SLANSS. we grercise professionsl judgment and maalain
i predessional shepticiom Ehroughocd The adit, We alsa;

+ Egdentily ang assoss the risks of material misstatement of the lfnancls dastempnis, whether dow fo
iraeud or Brrod, design and perfonm auct proCelEes Fesponsive to those risks, a0 oblam sudit
evdence thal & suflicies] acd spphopedle Lo provide a8 hass dor ot openios, The rizh of Aol
delecting a matevisl misstafement resulfing from Frao b higher thas Tor ore rosuiling from erar,
a% fraed may mvolve collution, forgery; inlentionad omizticns, misrepresentafions, or [he casmridn
oo irlenipd conircd, :

s Cntain an understanding ol intarnal control relavant 10 the sl = arder (o deskn audd procedures
ERat aré Bppcopriafe in the circurmsiancss, but nat 1ar Phe surpede of expressing an apinien an ihe
edf ot tivwriess of the Company's inlemal candrod,

= Evahiafo the appropelabeness of accounting policks aved and Ehe reasanableness of accounting
estimatns and redated dlsclosunes made by management,

o Comthate ah the aporogrialencss af mansgement's e af Ihe gomng cancern badl ol sccouwting
&sul, bizdid on (he sudil eddence oblalned, whether o maberial uncertainty esists relsted to eventy
or eonditions thal may ot signdlicant doedt oa the Company's abillty 1o continue as a gaing
cenperm, 1 we conlude that a material uncertaindy ecists, we dre redquired 1o doaw allentioh in our
daliter's report i [he related dissiotufed | 1he nanclal stalements of, If doch drclosures are
iradequal e, bo modify s apinion, Our conchuskons sne bated on 18p aucll svidence cotainedd up to
Ehg date of our auditor’s report. Howieer, futude evinds or condilions may Cause the Company 1o
CE3SE b0 CONSinuE A% B (o] comiern,

o Evnluate the overall presentation, struciore and cosbehl of the linancisl slaiements, nciuding the
gisclosure, and whether fhe finangial statements regresond the undariying krangactions and events
Iri @ manerer fhal achiswves Ralr presoniation,

= Cban sufiiclent appropriate audd silence reganding the financial Infosmation af the erl®ies of
tessinegs acibilies wihin [he compdmy 1D dxpress an opinlon on ihe consolicaled financial
stabments, We are fesponsible far the direction, Supervislon and perlarmance of the company
it We remain solely responsitle for our awdil apinlen,

We tommnurisate with Ehase charged with governance regarding. smang athar matiers, the planned scoge
ang Hirdng ol he audil ard sagniticas] audl lingings, Inchicdng Ay sigailicant defiglencies In Enlemal
contrel (had wit idendily during aur auail.

Wi alsn proviga thige charped with powernance wilh & statemsnl Ihat we have compliad with afhécal
fequimsmends in accardsncoe with the Code af Ethics mq.u-ﬂ?-nq independarss, ahil 1o doemmanicale with
ihiom all refatinaihigs and cthor matters that may roasanabdy be thooght 1o Eear an our independenco,
anil where apphcable, reiated sateguarids.
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Tl
From ihe madiers commonicabed with Fose charged with gewvernance. we delasmine those mallens that
were ol most signilicancr In ihe gl of the financlal sEatemsnls of ke currend peried and s thergfore
the kiy audil matters, We gescripe ihese matiers in our auiter's repart uniass law or requiation prechodes
pietilie disciosure sbout Bhe matter af whan, inestremely rare circumslances, we detemmne thal a malis
=hould nol B commenicated i our reporl Bechute Ehe Bdverse pondequobnces of doing Lo ﬂlid
reasnnably he gpecied o oulweigh 1he public infenest benefits of such communication,

Report on other legal and requlalory requirements

As teguired by section 16342} 0f 1he Camparees &ct Ho. OF of 2007, we have oblained 4t the information
and #xplanations that were reguired Tor the audlf and, a5 1ar & appears Trom our gaamination, pfoper
accouniing recordt have hesn Dept by Che Company,

\Ca
0% Augiast 2022 ok
Csenbs
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Agarapatane Plontations Limited .

STATEMENT OQF PROFIT OR [OSS
Year ended 11 harch 3033
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STATEMEN OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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NOTES TO THE FHANCIAL STATEMENTS
Weur endlod 31 Mlarch 32

1L

14

1.3

REPORTING EMNTITY

Domikile and kegal form

A gaspnatims Plassanons Limiied is o limitesd lastny company inoorporated and domicikad in S Lanka. 1 was
Inconpormted om Tumse 22, 19492 uder the Companios Act Mo, | Tool 1982 (The Compeasy win ne-2 ogisond unsder
ihe Campanie Aci Mo, 07 of J07) in s of the froy s of e Coneenen of Peble Colponilion sl
Urvwrmmen-Chaned Businrs Lndetakings mis Public Cosganios ander Pobdlc Compameey Adt No 23 of
1987,

The regsered office of dhe {ompany i bocmed st foo $3-101, 5% Harom bpnihilaka Mawtta, Cokmba 81
ardd Manistiven a2 viknaied m the plaatieg districts of Radelly and Wuwan Elya,

Princiged getivitice aml the naiwoy of the e ratioss

Drurimg the year, the pringipal aciivities of the compamy were the cehivation, masslecier e sk of bl e

Parvnl enfergrise
The Compamy s ememesdiaie parenl emismeine & Linkem Developments FLE

raiw of Awibdairation for hasy

The Finmcial Senemessy of Apsapates Planiasian Limted for the yewr énded 31 Mah 7032 were
atharired for (vese in scooedance with & rednlition of the beard of deste on 89 Asgist 37
Resgoaarhility Tor Financial Siabcingnis

T respomcibality of the dinectors i refstion 1o the Finncial Sisicment b5 st oul @ the Saicmess of
Drtreton” responablEy tepu n thee Anms| Repon
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¥ear awded 31 Maech 21027

=l

LI

fasys OF FREFERATION

Stalgmini of Compliasie

The Finsncis! Statomeimts, of S compam ke been prepared b gecordance whth Sl Lenks Accouming
standarts (SLERSLEAS) promulymed ta The Financiz]l Siaemems ol e Company compiiae the Sistenien

of Fimamcial Poitin, Sexieraen of profi of ke, Stslemess of Comprebemaive [ncome, Satersent of Chamges
in Fouity, Stement of Cash Plows igether with Aconunimg Pobicks and Mot i Finescial S o

P Ipstine of Chastersd Accourtamts of S0 Lanka |04, ), el with the roguiremenr of the. Companies A
Mo 0T off 00T
Iands of Memsuremeni

These Financial Suoments have oo preparsd in scocedance with the hinorfcal cod convention otbes than
tuilldings. conmmabie hialogical wwiets, prudace on besser Blokgiel seeets md P sl moumenis

®  Menaged Cosgumsbss hiologacal aveeis are measomd il fir vilog,
w  Harvestable Agricullunal Peisduge prow ing on bearer biobogicall asssts a0 mesrarod ot fuin vl

That have beem messared o falr value and whenr spproprisie, speeific ol ies s exilaimad in e incoeadiag
noles

i il jummenis. have been made B inflathonay lacion & ibe Flasnosl Satemenis

Maw arcounting standards, intrrprelations sad amendments adoplod by (ke compasy

The followisg amendinenis and improveresds do oot have s sigrifican wpact om s Company’s Mnsscial
atatements durisg the year endsd 3 Ut March 2022

& Amendmers io LEAS 16 Preporty., Plant and Egiipment: Prooeeds beforr Intended L

e Ameendseninodo SEFRS 8, LEAS 15 SLFHST, SLFRS 4 and SLFRS 1o ~ Intorest Haie kenchmask
Reforn (Fhese 1 & 3) - (CIBOR rfam ™) '

o Amendmonts o LEAS 1 el LEAS § Belleition of Matoris]

#  LEAS S Agriculiore - Taxation in i vabed sscaiunemints

& Amendments o LEAS 1 Claaifiesion of Lisbilitees s Cutrest o Noo-comeni

Fanctionsl and Presentbon Carmency
The Flasnelal Smtemonts wo préseniod in Sei Leskos Rogees (Fa ], whach i e Company s feagtiosal and

presénttion currency. All Baanelsl ieforeation presesed in S Lavkan Rupors hies boen given 3a fe fead el
rupee. ihless vindod otherd e

Mabrraby sl spprogalion

Each matrial eleis of gimiler ey |5 presemiad separsiely n the Finangial Sseemenrs. lioes of & dhvsnilan
naiure or fussiion am presentod spentely wiles they o immalorial.

alls
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PFlamiai pos Limijed

Year ke 31 Manch 2002

i

Tening incrrm

These fimancial sbmzments are prepared on e sisumplion thas thi company m 4 gotng oendoin, Le. 5
cosliening in operation [or the forsweabéc Hifre. B = Theesiae aeaamed thar the company b nethor (he
intenikon nor the necegshy of lguidation o of certailing imscraly the scale of s dpermiioms

Hownrvier. o of the Stnemenl of I'inancs| Poaltion daie, the company s current lishiliiiesl exteeded i qurromi
anects by Ha § 480 B04, [045 (2021 Ha 20060000, 7550

Afior reviewing the financial positinn and cad flow of e Company the Board of Droeciomn ate of e belel
that The Company b sdequaty reseunce 1 conlinue sempeny openation well o Se Tonsecatile faere.

The drecion of the company o confiden tha the financial position of (he company will Significanily
improve daring S vear L0 ax ¢ revull of the profiatde performance achicvod during Ll twa v The
significant rediciion m the working capiiad deficit by 85578 Mn duning e curment yoar 5 avidond that the
poenpamy wax gkt penetate medHalle cash floms, The G Sl the s mdustry Oroegly Selicve that the
curmen] paies will evmain (iem 18 e peae vear too md based on U follio g aotion plans appended bolow i
eockd b Tusly jumifisd that the wirking capin peirien will be well imprived i the near hetere

I, Company kas tscoekifiilly. resfructured the BOC loans by wkiliong e Lo Beserg balande of A
i 1o wottle » derme boen o Ba A7 W end the halsace of Be 30 Mnowes inilied for warking capral
praifarsea. Furheer, BOE pravtad o term boan feclity of B 75 M Bot the prosiicissnt of plack ng saching
weawand e covi-¢fiective improvemyven b hereealing

1. Tie mansgemest ha commiinsd o bring i slgnifesnt srvisngs inthe cost of Barveuing b niroducisg
machine plucking, wish an imoresse in the prodoction an e reduced Rabear ost swhich scooons Tor 888 off
hmr.hﬁb:mﬂhmhndﬂLWHMﬂﬁtplrkh]ﬂlﬂhum
wiithin B nesit bwa yoam

I The Costpeesy by suceessfelly implemesied the M phate of the mochanined plucking during e year
JUTDEE, wielny Sltneg DOS machincs wire alfeady I Gperalion.

Mlackime plucking cpeniies g way of bwo phackeis per meckies, harveating o the roe of 35 60050 K por
pluckior per dwy, with o norm of 3050 80 K g and e over kilos are paid m Re 300, wheress masusd plucking
average &5 1% Kps per plocker with a morm af 18 K and s over kilos are posd of R4 AD¢- | The Company
haa bt m oo b of worioes dioe to retinemest #c sred g aick. coamently the required plack s rounds
st bt maderishien due o shartngs o workers, which will be mitlgaved by méchanized plucking.

IV, The munagosend's iiriipr sperstmnal pelicy om ebotr managemesd s been srcocv by implemamed

i Pallimtd by dhe e marigemmt during B v JOZEED, wharcks sach ctale should maimtain e
‘ol monthly wage bill lo » maximum of elfsof poveos

¥ The Moard of Direceory af Lankem Tn&'mmmmpmmnmmmp

wxiend the morstorfom placed on Mansgemiend Fees for the commy financial yewr foo.

%1, Furber doring e year HO1ED the melated paery debis mwoanting o Be-095 Ma has e converted o

ity capital 1 farther srongthon thi cipatal stnectaes of the compary,
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Yex prded 3] Margh X032

i

L%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCIHINTING POLICIES
Comparative inlormalon

The preseriat i and ¢ lmafication Of the Taesc el satcrngnn of e ey yeian e stendod, wisene nolreant
foor bemier preiemuticn s 10 be comparabis witly thise of tee current vear,

et versus pon-cwrrent ¢lessilbosiom

The Cregham peidtila aiagli and labilitie in oetrniont o Sinancal position beedd (4 curfem Bos <armen
shamaliation. An scdl o curran when Lo

+  Expectad o be realised or istended 30 be sodd or comemed in normal opomting Svcle
o Dield primatily oo the pupoas of ieding
+  Expecied i be svalised within fwche mistio after the erpuortbag jeiind

i

+ Ll or cegh ogqoivaiost unlésd resiricicd from baing axchanged oF uieil o senle o Sabilite for al e
twelvie montha afier the reporting period

AR pther smseds are clatinGml s bof-dorrenl.
A lshiliiy. s curmend when!
» I b expesied 10be seied in sonrmal operaling cyclo

¢ i fn beeld priesarity for the purpese of insding
+ i dee to be seitied within Pwrive months afior the reperming period

(o

= There i/no mght o delier the ustiloment of fhe bty for s lewl orelve months after the reporting period
The Campany & laiafies all other llabsliis s pon-curment.

[Rolorrod Bax aances ond liakibees are classified = non-oemem aecss and Hahilise,

Fair Yalee Mlesvir o ol

The Compeny measune feancial insnimeses and pop-feancis] assees ol e viles o sach sssenmt of
financial pesition debe. Fair valsy rebsed slist iaunes for fiasneial sstnenents and rod-finmcil siets thes ano
imeasured o fiir valos of whene Grbr wabuey. aee disclened, are semmartsed i the following noter

Frechold property plast s equipmens wider revaluscien mode| (aildisg) - Mode 7

{onwwssshle Bolog lcal piscs = Moe &

Prodece on bearer biokogical st - Mime 11
Fonsscisd fnstramicnts {inghading those carrhod o amiofieed oo Note 10

Faair vk s the prica thal wioskd b erecved 0 wll m geesl oF paid 1o tranafier @ liatalny in an odddrly
iramsivrtion helwees ko] gartes nanin o B e iremend dete. The fair vales mosveromend is basod oo the
premmptitn Bl i reniaction f el the asiel or wealer the linhiliy takey place eithr;

el b prinacgad marked Bor the suet of lahility
i
s bnthe abpenoe of B principal markel, in the mond mbeamisgeons market S the 3wt o Habiley
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=r

Planiz=iionas Limited

e e 31 Wlanch 2022

a1

Thee puincipal or the most advantapoos madket mmusi b sccriaible by the Compeay.

T Fair valog of an st o & liabilty & Beanied wiseg the ssnmpaions that mrke paricipeats woulk] oue
whien pricaag the ascl o Tesbiliny, svseming that markes participants ac! @ heir econdms basd inlereal,

A {ai value measurement of 8 mon=linancial st ke it s @ marfic] participast’s shibly o generibe
eoomomic benediis by using the st in s higheit and best oic of by sellisg B to ssother market panicipani
thak woshd use tha aaset m 2 kighest ead heit wic,

The Covtipaiy wies valaahon tachnlgues thal se mppingeime @ the crcomsences and foo which sulficiend dueta
#re avallahie in measare (a2 vabee, mavimising the we of relevam obeorvalble inpots and moessdoeg he ow
ol unobwenabke inpats

A ity el bl fior wibich Eair valiee |3 meausred of dischosed in the nancis! sissements are categorised
within e Drir value bersrchy, described i follows, haed on the fowest kevel inpos that & significant fo the

Fair vl meay anem i & whale

*  Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusied ] market prices in sctne merkicss for identical assoid or Babilitics

#  Level 2 — Valuwtioa technigees for which the kewest lovel inpat that is sigsilican o the fir valuee
mesurenont i directhy or indieectly observable

= Lgvel 3 — Yaluation technigees for which the lowes! level inpal thal i sigaslicant 1o & fair valus
mezuremerl o unatricrs ahls

For wisets ond Habdlices e sre secogninsd in e Nnsscial smaments o § recuming basiy, the Compasy
determines wheiher tramders have oocumed berween Revels in the hierarcly by re-smessing cilegorbation
(Based on the kawest leoe] faput that is significant to i fair value messaroment o g whiole) ot the oad of sach

repesting period

Esternal waloery s involved fof valustion of significant siscts, sich 24 bailding:, Convmable bislogical
mscts, and ignificans labilitses, wesh a8 remmement benelit oblipation, Invalvement of sxicrhal valuers ia
deciisd wpon ennually by the Managersen) Commtic: afier discusiion with iz sporoval by the Compamy's
Audit Comminee. Selection criteria inclode markel knowledge, tepumtion, ud:pnﬁu-a: i wheether
professional standards me maintained. The Managemen Commimes dechfer, after discussions with fee
(Companmy*s extemal valoers. which valostion ircheigues and inputs 1o use for esch case.

Fuor ghes presrporie o farr st cling Insures, the Company bas delorm ined classrs. of assces and llabilicies oo the
haiks of e ralure, charscteriitios and thlin of the aaset o labdlizy and e level of e Biir value hisrarchy s
enplamed shave.

Property Plant & Equipsent’s
Recognion and meavaroment

Progeaty, Plam and Equipment is recognised if il is probable thar ftare coonomas benefit saodiated with the
ansets will fonr 1o the Company and enst ol the st can be seliahly msaianed.

Inesmis of Pregety, Plani snd Equipment ae measonsd af ¢osl (or ol fasr value inthe cose of Baildings ), loa
sccunvelaivd depreciation and sceuvaluied impairment losses. ifany,

i ] i ia

Thie cost of Proqorty., Mant and Eguipment inclodes expenditures that ere directly attribatable fo the soguiaition
ol the mset. Such tosis inchudes the cost of replacing pert of the property. plast and squipment and bormowing
ot {or long Serm constraction projeces i the recognition onteria are mar. The cost of sell-=0onusnctod asts
Hludn hwﬂnl’m.l.l.-uh und| diredi labor, any olher coal dinecily atiribetable 1o bricging e sl o3

of iy |r|1=rrd-nd-|ﬂr. sndl the doats of dismantling aod removing the femi and restoring the
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oar enadisd 31 March 21122

ES

Whiee sipnificeal pete of propafy. plant and equipmenl are requined 1o b ropladed o intervaly, The entits
recogtiines asch parfs o ividual st (magor Somponoenia] with apesific nseful lves snd doprociatson,
respectivgly, Likewhie, when & mifod bogeciion i prefesmed, Ecou i rgcugniaed in the samying anaml
of ke plard and equipmeent as o replacement (T e recognition crilerls eee saililfed. All other ropae dml
mulsdonance costs are recognised in the Satvesent of profid or boss e mcarmed.  The presont valee of the
mmhmrﬂm-mmanfhm:hmm = nclaled = B ::H-I:nl'ﬂwprq:lrlll.'-:-mﬂ
B the res ngnition erilerie for & prenmion s el

Rulldings are mesweod ® r vades bessocumulugd deprecisnen o bulbdings and impasrreem charged
subsegueent oo the dne of the jevaluation. Yaoataoes sre performed. wish sulfioeent frogeesay 10 emune
the lair valoe of 8 rovaleed asset does. not differ mastenially froes ity carrying amosai. The company's policy i
to Tevahee BoilSeg e ey foor yeare

Cether prupery, plant sl ssprpme oy canfes] ot cow low sccesulsted lependinin ned sccumoluel
Imprhant ool

Capial work In progres b mesfemed fo the ropeative st sooanhy @ B ime, e dnd 5 ealy o
wiilizarion o a3 ihe lime the avsel B cominisiongd.

lrmyrd mwigls

The determimiion of whether mi srangonesd b (or containg) o besse (8 bl on the sohicance ol the
mrangemeni al the incepton of the base. The smangeesnl i, oF cosdalm, 4 ke [F Fflflimesd of the
ereagement |s dependent oo the s of a specifi auist o2 Guels S the EEngement convey s te right o
ezl the oz of @ kdontified asset for 8 period of line i evchange for onekderatie

Company as & s

The coipeny spphcs 8 smgle recognition and medsunsment spproach for el |sses, ot Ry whon-perm
bembers ol besiey of Jow-value aseis. The company recognises Teans (et ities 10 meke beese paymeis und
rﬂl#uummm@ﬂuh-ﬂrﬁﬂm

Short-lerm lisises anil beases ol lvw-valpe masedy

T Company does nol vonisss iho short-ierm keres (16, e heapes that have @ leise o of 12 monss &
leq fom ihe commpotneet dete wnd da aol comisin » purchase opiiond and low valas sssch

Hight-ol-gse aaeds

The: com pisy rocogsises right-ofuse masety i the orovmeniomest dale of the joise (Le., fhe date the underkying
awit i svmilable Soe wie) Right-ofuve assem arv snesusen o coul, bess any accunwlated depreciation md
mm Mﬂwhqmmdmmﬂzmﬂw“mﬂl
clsden the ampoas of brasa Labilitey rooogard, minal dmect posts incumed, and brsr paymests misde ol o
hefore the commencement date [ any bosme incenamves eeseived Righe.of-use snsrbs sre deprockatod v 3
piratghislisg basin over S horier of the Sdas orm. aed the estimatod usefill v of the aes, s follmes

i of Ve Teate §%ep
Mobor ¥k jes 3 Ko

17 remeership of the heesed assel thinslor ko the conipany 4t the end of the leate term or the oo tolleets the
exerclse of o panches opiion, depreistion i calculated ualng the cutbmated nbe ful Ll of th s,
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¥irar il 1] Miared 2022

p

442

Ada

Amnrisadion

he Ioashodd #iphm of s tken over from JEDHUSL SR ste amaonbed i equal smoanis over the shorior
ol the Femamn fase periods asd the useful Tives &4 fodlr

Moo of Yeuwrs  Boade (%)

Haghi i e of Rarad 3] I,E8
ImpEvemmts o lsd L] 533
Mmwre PMamations - Ten E E i;
Riadi & Fridges i

Tl L] A
Fence & Socuriie 0 BRI
Maehineny 13 ET
Wakee e 5
Tarwer Augmentetion L | 4.
Ve Tea =0 153

IF orwwarihip ol the hrsed st Fanafors e he gompans o the end of B ke ferm oF the oosl Teflecrs the
e of 8 pusher oplion, depeecaalion o celou leiod waing The eatimated izl kv of Be et

Leaet Hahilities

A e comunoncement date of the lewe, the Company secogn ses Jeass Tiohilices meisored o Lhe prosent vales
of leme payynents b B masde oo the loase o, The kesse payvesents inclade fided papments (inchading in
mmwpmwmmanhtmmmmmmmm
Indey or » rass (i for as cxample FEDRSLSPC Govemment leme rempls Tmiiod wiih GOF Deflaioe), and
e cxpected (o e paad under pedbdosd wades guarsmioes. Variahle beme poymeers thai do sor depesd on
A e DT @ P are Seogeied i e peates (ulees ithey e incureed 10 pEndecs INvertories  in the posiod in
which The evint or posdithon hat rigpers the pan memt oCoumm.

In caltubirieg the peesemt valoe of deats payments. the Company usex it motemental bosmowing rale ol dhe
feme commencoment dae | the mborest e anplicn in the feme B nol readily delerminable. After the
commmncement date, amoant of brase liabifitics i incrosed (o relboct the socretion of meenesi ond reduced for
the |ras paymods made. In addiion, the carmying. amoimt of lease Bahilities 18 somsasored o there s a
maidifipation, a change & the kg Iom, o clangy & the lons payessi (¢ po chaages lo fulere payments
peiling feom & change b a8 bdex of rale il W determnine wich loats payrrienls) of 8 chanige = the
mpcamnen 0 = el o purchass the undeibing se

The Coapamy’s L |iskdhks sre inchoded in Mote 78 m the Semcis] smemesn.

re-recogmtion

An iem of prepsty; plant and squipsni axd any iimaificasd pan initally resognihed b dammagnied wpon
Mﬂiﬁmmmm“ﬂﬂhlﬂwmmﬂ I'l'm AT Al of kil BRlag
ot derceopnition of The aadsy foaleulssed o the Jifference botwiea e sl dispnal feimopdt and e farrying
armiunbof the asss ) in inclabad in the sbement of proditor ke s ben he meot B denocopreod and galm ae
moi chassifiod as coveman

T

¥ ]
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e ended A1 Maneh

JAS

dak

EENA

Ll improvemenl casl

Permnoeni land impuovemont coste are o cosds ingunitd i miking major imfrasirostiune devsdepment aid
Busdang maiw dcoes noddy dn leasehold lasds.

Theas einad hsve been cagitalined and atmonised over the iemslning lease-period.

Permaneni impairments & fnd Sevelopmemd Sodty e changed 10 the Siaternens of Proli o (o is Bl 10
redesced to Bhe Dt carrying amaents oF fuch s in the vear of accurence afier seemining the o

IRickgical Azt

Wﬂm:mmﬂﬂ-mmhﬂmkﬂmﬂhﬂﬁu@ﬂam-hﬂhw
psscts e those that have anained harvsistle spocelication tr fe alde i s rrgule ousvests, s
Eidegical misels ane thode that ke not yet eained havestalds speciiicaticns. Tea and other plantaoons ae
cheuifind v biological gty

Ticlogreal divein sie Nather elmiailad o beaper blofogical assem amd comsmmahle hioksgacal sascty Bearss
bickonicall issets inchide ten treds, thes that are oot intesdiad &0 be sold or barvesed, howgver siod 1ol grow
faf hisvialing aerouhural prodoce trom wech biologeal et Conssmahle bisdogacal avirts inclade ma s
timiber Erees thase that ane 1o be harvestod aa agriculieral produes o sobd m baodogical vt

The ndity recopeise e hiokegsal s when, and only when, the eniify confrol e aiset 302 romll of pail
wvemi [t e prrobahle Thai Beiare coomem e bemer{ion nssocinsed wiih the weets will B foihe oabity avad the faiy
value e ot ol 1he smieis. can be seaared vellably.

Hearrr Hesbagbeal Assels

Thee bester hiolngleal ausery are mesnured o oo ben soounmalaled desseciarion und sooomulated impaimien
lowwes, iF oy, o e o LKAS B- Propety Plast & Eguipserl

The oot ol land profamtion; nebabiltasion, pw plasting, srplaming, crop diveniflcation, er planting sl
Feriilicmg, evc., incunod between (e lesbs ol planting and srvesting (when the plarsed b emaing mar ity |,
wte ¢ fanaiiied an timatese plassnilons. Thews immusre plastations gre thown = dinect el plo mmribaisbl
ovithesds. The expendiure mowmed on bearey biclogical avscts {Teah which enmes inin beariag durisg the
year, i itanalerred b mame plantatiom

lafiifing ©ovi om Bearer Bologecel Aoty

Wi iniT1ing resaes i an incroase in e ccomaimic e of the refevasd fheld heyomd iy previoasly siseviad
sandard of perfarmance, the oot ane capaalisal by accestdance with LEAS 14 axd deprecialad aver the incfial
life ai miés applicabls 1o maluid plantstien

infilling cusis that ar pid capiafiosd Bave been eharged & ihie Trofit of Loms Sestrmem in the year in whic
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I e o sl Change In the Falr vales of such agriculiural preduce iecopaised in proflt o los ot the eod ol
each reponimy peried |
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ndvimses il otbeer cecehahler.




Aga

rupatann 1
MOTES TO THE FIng HCTAL STATEMENTS

Initial Public Offering 2023 | Prospectus

Planiution : Limited

Wear ended 11 Much 2022

bl

503
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For ded imstremers of fair value threegh OC1, mterest dscoms, foreign exchanpe revalustios mnd
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peiviei bl withn e nent [ 2-faniha (4 | I-motdh TUL L Vee thosd feedit exgadunes [of which shers Kai beew o
slgnilicant incrians i oredil ik wnde kil reagrm hos, & o alewancd i recplised Tor credin fosses expeechod
e i remiatining 11F-of the exposiile, irespective of dee pisving of the delmull ia lifetime BCLY

Finanial Lishilitkes
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g mre valad ai the bower of ooaf ond extimaied net realizable vales. Met neafirable value i the esdimased
selling price of which stncks can be sodd in the ordinary courss of bt afier allowng for conl of realizaiion
el o ot oF comvursion (o theit exiding e do b ol comdition.

) Ingmi materinls, Spanes and consemablis

Al g g,

¢f Grewing Crop Nererics

A the gt of diree mateniah, diten bibeor and 5n spproprine proponion of directly enrfumble overbesds

-2}

107



108 Agarapatana Plantations Limited

ANNEXURES

Agarapatann Plamtatioa. Limited

NOTES TO THE FINA "Jl; AL STATEMIN
Year endeil 30 Mach 2022

iy

LN

ER

Cavh anil easl ey advalesis

Cash mnd cands e valenin comprics cnds and bk belances, s depoain Baek wmummﬂl
mwmmmrm of B Cotrpparmy's cash m.ﬂd e inchuded g1 & Do ot of
eaah and cdndh eguivalents Bt the prurposs of e Seatessern of ((Cish Flows
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(OGN i value kets ot of disponal and Be waler i ose. The rocererabde amousy bdelcsmingd for an
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Employes” brnelts
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Defined brechi plan

A defimned benedn plan i poaremployment benefis plan oder tham o d2fined coninbution plin. The Habsdey
reeogeied in dve Fioes sl Stoemens in cespect of deflined booel® plan i the peoend vlor of the dificed
hmﬂiudﬂlg.ltl.l:-.h Ersoning dale. Tha defined bomefit ohfigation i caliulabed anmolly wing e
it crodit method, The present valtss of S dfined benedit obdipation b deemaised by disgoumting
the estiimaged futune cads flmen usimg the mtereal mich that g denominated In e curency b whick e
Brme i w1l By pat], andd ehat have hesmms o msseny sppros imesg o the wrme of the eelied biahilig.

Actagettal pains sl fosses artsing frcem ewperionte aliustmenss asd changes ih sciusriad atswmptom: av

revigeied i i rolmmed camings through comiprehensive ineomr. Past serves emis are recognined

aiadlately in Starement of Profi or Lo

The provision his bevn made for etinemen! pratuities froin the fimg year of wervice e 1] empilgess, n

mrmnmms 1%, Empdvvea Denefits. Fleoasrver, under the Paveenr oF Ciratadny At Mo, 12 of 1933,
e lighiliy oo mn employes anscs enly on completion of 3 vesn of eptmued sevice,

The Linkiliy s set exiersally fundal

The bcy amsgticns oxed n detemining th retiromest ket cbiigations ane pron s Besg 19,

Capinsl comm itments and conlingencin

Capiial comiments and eomtingent Habilzics of the Compsny b Seen diselosed in the neypective Motes (o
ket Finasclil SEntresdiny

Eventy soonrrimg afier the reporting perhml

AR matoral events afier the Szateoeen of Fisancial Poaltion date e been cosaadered where appeugeime;
aither adjustmenes ave been made oo sdeganly disttosed m the Finantial Stmemenb

Emrniags per shary

v

Fhe Company prosends hasle and dilaled camimng per share (EPS) for iis ondsary shares, Basic FPS
allclated by dividbyg the peafit i don ssuilbtable by ondiary dhartholders of the company by the weighiad
aviragt number of sedinafy shafes outiading dering the peracll Dlurcd FPS b determined by afluntiag |
poafi on boss eEtibentalle re codinary sharghadders = the weighted wverage sumber of ondauany
cutstanding fof the cffects ol o8 dletive poasntiel sedinary shims,

i;
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LN

LIt

LE LN

HHE L

Dederreil Esromie - Crumts gl suhylilses

Crovemiment grimts ae rooognboed whire tharm i noasonable sstarsnce (hir B pramt will Be roccivad asd all
ituched Comlition will e complind wigh, Wiken e geant felates by s expense hem. i b recopsared s
Inciene over (he porad sceeiaey 10 maich e gram oo o syannmic basis 19t ooty that i m Beersded b
poempwmanle. Wi (e grani relanes 1o mm ssort, @ b recognized s defermed iIncome and roleaed S0 inoome
ok gl ampesty pver the expected et Bfe of e relaind avprt.

Whre the Compasy: meesivey nee-groetary ﬂ'ﬁh.ﬂrm-mddupmlntmhﬂnlwlhﬂhﬂ
m=cunts il feleeed b the Staterment of Profie of Lo oves the expeoed wefal e med - patieen of
eoanitoplion of e besetit oF the wadherly g s by dgoal snnil insadieserns

“anvemrnt of Prefit or Loss

For the purpast of probestation of Statement of Profil of Lok, the functbon of exponies method b sdopled 1
i reppeacnits Sakrly e clemens of the Company's perfonmanoe

Hiwemme

Ervones i cocognised 1o the exient That i is probable tha e ceommmtis benefits will flow bo B otpasy’ bt
ihe revimman g b relindly memarnl, regandion of shen he paymest n beieg mad Revenue i mimuned o
the fair value of the condestn et of secervable, g into soomal oo huslly defimed terms ol

Wnﬂqdﬁ-!mum.tﬂnﬂﬁm 13, revenue bnrecognied mpon satsfection of
porteemne e codigminn:

The Compesy b in the botinems of culbivation. moanulectune sed wle o black toa [Flestation Praduce)
Bvence [rms coniracts with ¢ustomers s recognised when ormtrel o the goadi i translemed 20 the omzonsss
lmmﬂuﬁ“ﬂhﬂntﬁﬂﬁﬂmﬂym»hmﬂﬂh%hﬂu
poiadh. The Uenpad hia penerally comd hudsd thas i1 b e priscipal b il revenie amagonen, Dbome i
typically contnids e gouh before ranaliersg thea 1o aabeine,

ey wase From caemiracl wilk caviomers.

Sabe of Flaniation prodece

Fovema from ke of pletalion produse 1 recogniaed ol S polml in 158 when the sontrol of the goods b
reansforrid 10 the ctstneser, Black tod prodese B wodd & e Colomba Tea Auction ind e highsst idder
whene al¥er ix aecryeed whall be il Bayer, and & sale gl B complered sl the Tall of the hammier, 52 which
point conirel 4 ransferned e the cotonmer

There is 50 clemont of financisg prévent as the Company's sale of plantatios producs are cither oa cash rermm
[Immedsin payment or sdvmce paymen pof cocseding 35 daysgor om oo borms rngisg foom 7 6 LS daa
Dther Souree of Revomis

Revene fofmghition criteris For she other soarce nf B0t da Follinrs;

#  Henfsl lscome

Eental Insume iy reoognised oo an sccrual tesh in miconiamr with the sulniance of e relevast agracmeni.

& [Hvkdeni Teiame

Erividond mcome ts recopadeed wites the right 10 recoive payawent b estabdiched,
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Ve endsd 31 Meeh 223

S I

Liz4

ESLE

#  Inferesl loenme
Esteresl income is soorrnised based on ellocing intersst méthod.

Iairrenl Essome in Nnancisl macts 28 FYTPL b reoogaleed as pan of o2t galne of keises on these fimncal
Insirernis.

Imerest inoome of Tinomwcisd aveets o smcertined cost is enlouleted by vaing the effective mienest mctiod md =
recegnioed as Msance mcoms

Faparmars

All expendinme incerred in the mmaing of fhe buviness nd m massining the propory, plant snd equipeen
I & aiwte o e ffleiency b charged o revenoe i orrvieg ot e profid or lose for the yoar
Financieg ineoms and financr cosd

Firtinie hicoss eompritet inlora Baime on Nends nvested. Interest ®omme b reconded nsing e Effecin
Pateresl Hoats {ETR ) mifet

Finmnoe prpenses compres infevest payvable on bormowing. Bormowing ciet that s aol Secetly stribuisbls
1o b moguivTtion, comstructien or pradoction of 3 gualifving AT am racognised in predil o kaid sning e
elferidve imereat meihod

The microat axpenis componimt of (insaes lcass pamest i allocaind b each period daring the lease term o
i b procute & ematand persli se of isterss on e resaining balssoe of tho bibility

Tawa

XI55 Current Income Tua

Curres income . assets and Rabilitles are mowesrsd o fhe emouni eupeciel jis be recoverad B o pald 1o
the taxesion auihonies. The Bx ries and 1 ks sied o compule fe mmeon) e those the are eracked o
wabstantive ly enacted, it the roporting date in the contric where i Dolopasy operme e gencraies tooihle
MO0

Cirrom income Bay rilating & dema recegniaed deecly in equiny B recognised in equity e nol in the
ilaormend i ot oF hisi. Mangeses perrodicad by evabumes pouithons tkoes w thi e motwma weh rogedl
5 dibgariens 1 which spplicable tay rogedaions wre subjeet w inserpretation and establndes provision. whom
ApgErELsl

AEEST Deforeed Tay

[ederred ini & provided osing the lishility meihod o temporary diffenmdes: belwecn e 1a Bated of It
aned liabilithes mod theie cary g smounts for fsancial feparting mepomses 31 (e fepening dais.

Diedferre mx liwhditiey am tesagniiad Tor all asable emporary differnee, evep
o Whm e defiored e liahibny arnes Bom e miis] roogeitlon of goodwd] or s esset o lability s

transsction That iy nol @ busingss comidaation and, &0 S rime-of the tansaction, afTects nether the
woconinling parofil oo tasahi profi of R

e
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X1

X137

[ fewred B meses wnn reoogied fior all deductibls emporacy differoecs, the cary Bewand of umsed fmy
credits and wary umssied it koties. Dielrivod s sty o rpcogiived b the cxtenn that i is probabde et bl
oo will b avaiaile apaing’ whach the Sedectibie wmporary dilforosces, md the cary forwarnd of onused
o, errutsts nd unased ey hoasss com Be alillsed, except '

+  Wiven e delamed s omeet telating o the dedustible temporary dHferends =i fom B =il
srcapmitiom af et of Babilily i a irsneeion that i et & Buaitiess oombissibon snd, af g e of
il tramsaciicn, sffocts niither the aepmanting phifit nof toble peofin of foss.

Thpl-r}ummqd'd:mmmhmhﬂld-hrq-ﬂqh-dndmdnﬂhnﬂﬁ#i
s ma lonper prokahile that sufficient rvablo predit will be svailabls tn alhowr all e par of e deforred tas s
o b i . llmkwumﬁnmmnﬁmﬂﬂﬂﬂlﬂmﬁh
exlent Bt il lun broome probable thal Titure texabls o will sllim e delemed e sesef 5 be peoevened

Chefiorrrd: tan wiaots angd liabiBgioy are mcared mi the Lan pubes B sng exXpocied 10 apply in the year when the
wt b mealincd o the Labiling e semiad, Basesd 00 tan reies (end e lewa) that have Bedn enacbod of
wibinar | vely ssaciad @ the reporting dale.

Drefiered kan relating 46 Homa oeopsned outside prolil of ke iy recignisd M‘Ihhh'nﬁﬂ'h_ﬂﬂ:ﬂdﬂ
ta it ane regpgmined In cormeliatiin ke s wsderlying tranastion el n O] i direcly inopgein

P ferred ban amasts and delermd 1ux fiabilices are offsd ifa kgally enfreceable nght exvae wo 3o off curmem
(x Awecty @gainesl curren @y labalithes and the delerred tanes pelate to the same foobie otity d e sans
Stxirmrwi of caak fow

T Stz of Cash Flow has beva prejared meing the “Indircol Mothad™, loterest pubd i clasalfied =

operating tash Mews, dividends negcirad are dlinifind o mvesting el Thowa while dividends paid end
Crenesnment jpasts reveiverd are clasafied as osecing cash (hrwa, for e purpose of presenting dh Cash Flow

Segmisl reporting

Sepmontsl informstion i provided for de Sifferent bacsitess wpments o the compant, An oporaiing mgsoml

i3 & commponent of the company that mgages in business sctivities o which i midn: earm revodics and inde
rxpeeaey, inghadeg rovemecy asd pipensy that (el b apucicns with sy of e compey ™y oiher
oAm el

Skée the isdividusl sogments ane incated clods 1w sach peher and operse in the same (ndeiria] anvironmeni,
the aged for googeephical smeniafios has po material inpect.

Thee acxivities of the segonents are devoribed In Mote 56 i the Notes iothe FinanciakSisemobe. The composy
trnsfery products from ose isdusry sepeeni for e = oy, |Inerszpment tmnsfars are. based o (i
mhel prices.

Beveras and expenses dmecily aitnbutable o rach wemens ore allectod 1o 2w nopeding sepeesis, Kevenor
wd pxperan ol ditoctly ssribinable W o ksprnl & allocatod on the hais of B redmins wllisacon,
wimiewer pessibhe

Aisstn dnd Tishilies directty aoribiitable a0 cach sopmont are allocsied 10 b reqpeciinvg sepesens, Assos md
labilios, whish mr st dooclly sl 10 & wgmmi, o albaceed on o resonshile b whereves
poscible, Usallacated Hema cormprise muinly inleres besring loam, borrowinsgs, md evpenaes
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4.1

Sopment oapatal ovpendiniee in dhe wtal cost incurrod dinng the persad 0 Boguine segmenr maey e o
eapacied fis e med for more fhan om0 acommling perisd.

All opitating segments” operating reufs ey revimied pryulanly 1o suke decicken slees resoarces 1o ha
ailocsied b ghe segment e sesra s perfpnmance, sl for which dbeevie Francial infprmation is svaistle,

USE (6 ESTIMATES ANDUDEMENTS

T preparasion of Financial Slaements i gonlbomity with SLERY fequiros maragement o makie judgments,
pitim s ainl asmmplions the infliesce e application of weounting pelicied and he repericd amiset of
isgas, Mabilinkes, income and expenies. Fadgments snd entimpmes 20 basod on Bsuerical experiencs and othey
lactor, including expeciations the are befsrved to be reasonabls under e cotumstence.  Hlence, actusl
eoperience md resalty may differ from Bese jndpmeants nd evtimasen

Fairries 3l underhybag mcssmpions e orvigwed on an otgoing laas, Revision 1o accounting etimats
are: trongired i O perbod in wbloh ilie evilmaie fe revied, I S rey ion affecis only thal period sod sy
fatues periods affecied.

Infarmarkon b mgnificwd meas of extimahon ancemabvty: and oritical padgmests m appiyng scooening

alicies that hanve fha maost significant effect oo the emcunts reoogaived B the Finencial Statomeat is iecloded
i the Talning oo

Tanatinn

Cwirem income ) maes mnd Habilioes are meswoed ol the amoum expected 10 be recovered from o gkl in
i twxatbon petkorites. The ux retes and o lws ssed 10 compuie de anoum we those e are macied o
walnimntivily enseted, o the peporisg dene in the owantries wisere the company cperiies and gensraies ionakle
M

Acgoning i The ixiand Reverme {Amendment) DEIL vommesd fhe Iniand Revemse ACL Moo 3 of HHT, Ao
Teeming & excmpt Brom income tax Sor 5 period of & veas effective foom 01 April 2019 ead Agro processing
in liadsde af [ 9%, Acooedinghy, whene spptecable, the company has sepantsd ity incoine and expepses A o

Befermed T

Theloreed 12 misots and. liskalnio. se measined a1 the mx rabes il se aopecbid ko apedy i he year when e
w540t 1 poalived or the Tishifiey s scnled, Bassd om tas rabed [and m B 1Rat hnve been el of
webarantively ahacted & the reponing dale. Ak per e il peveras [Amesded} bill imoed on E0G202),
company. iv ibeebifnd Soperitcly baidner ineuiic o agio lening & agne proceiiag W the guirppis of
cabailating ineomme tix liability Senefone, the cotnpesy hos ssparstad see sl labilibes mom 31 Mk 2031
1 Agre Teming s Agro procensing for ihe deferrod pay purpene,

The detaids of deferend tnn comgaimbon & gives im Moie 294 fo e Finmncil Sheemeats

Retisvment Byagiiy ahlggatisa

The prevest value of the rainensen benelin oblgation descrmised witg scdusels] valuaring, An stiarial
vahwition: invahios making varkous ssumplion g may diffcr fom seeal devziopmeits i the fimes, Thes
iscluds the deiemmmation of te dibcoun el Meiyee walory inceesied and inonially e, Due o ihe
eompbsilics Somberd i T valnarken snd ith bong-term natose, 5 defined bengfit obligaion b kighly sensitbe
8o chanpei In these snemgsionrt. All asuinpiinm an reviewed af each reportieg period

w20
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4.4

&l

Inmwmdemmwlmmﬂﬁﬂhﬂ;wﬁ
tesnids mith masarilics comespreding 1o the expectod duration of The de e heacl chligation. The mofaliny
rate iy hased on publichy mvailshls mortality tahles. Futess wlary soreases are hased on expected famre
milation rale and eapecied hdore salary intrese pates of the Company.

Funthee detnih abowt Betirement benefii oblipations are prosdded in Nowe 19

Fair Valuation of Conwmahle Hialogieal Auiets

The fair valee of mamged timber depends on number of facion thit sc detarminad o2 a discounicd cash flos
method using varioes diffoeent fancial s non- finaricia] sumptions, The growih of the tees s determined
by varkors biological factors thet are highly enprediciable, Asy chadge (0 ihe assempiions willl impact e [air
vahw of brologscal asts, All aviimipiaas gie hevicwed & cach moporting pericd. Kry ansmptions. and
sersitivify analyii of the Biedogical assets e ghven in Note I

Eearer Binlogical ety

The boaror balegical asscis are memurnd @ cow less securmulated depreciation snd acoomelaied impainm i
lossen, if my, in deerin of LICAS 16— Propesty Pl & Equipsent.

The et o land preparstion, rebabilitstion, new planting, replanting. crop diveriflcation, inter plastisg snd
ferilizing, e, incureed between the bme of planting and barcesting (when the planied ssca afsnd mesrity |,
e classifed 2t immatere plastslions. These immatese plamtatinns 2ne thirm & &eect oodls flus anefhnaske
averheady. The expenditare incurmed o beaner binkogical marty which comes mes bearing durisg the yesr,
tramslermed o mesiae platalion

IFRIC Interprotatien 13 Uncertaisty over lncome Toy Tresiment

The Interpeesalion ackdeesisy (he seeouming for inoame e when iy peaiments imvedve oenainty tai
affiecty the spplication of LKAS 12 Intome Taves. The Company applies vigniflcant judyement i idesti firing
IEhEErLLin R BvEr IRComE 100 Teaiments. Ninoe the Company operates in a comphrs amimnsss], i sscied
whether the [sicpreimion bad an impact on s fieancis] saleeonts. The Cooipeny’ desermintd that @ s
prohable that s mx reaimenty will be socepted by the faxation authorities. The Enterpretation disd pet Bave an
Impact an thee financial staberrenss o the Company

SHH LANKA ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (SLFRS / LEKAS) IS5UED BUT 80T VET EFFECTIVE

Tt new and amesded Aandaeds aad tnlerpresations fan ene Bsoed, but st yer effective, up 0 de dete of
insuancy of the Company's finsncial senemesty s dischasd belew, The Comparny intenda io ndopi these new
e amenadnd uandands and inderpectations, il spplacable, when 1hey become clfzceive.

SLFRS 7 - Insurande cosdracts

SLFES 17 b5 & comprehentive new socoumting sundard fon insuranor contrects covering recognition
measgremesd, presenintion and disclosure. Onoe effeciive, SLPRS 17 will replace SLFES 4 Envestascs
Coptracts [SLPRS 4) thai was lssued in 2008 SLFRS ITwlhhilﬁ'anmmIdmﬂhm.
el i, dbeot dmwrance msd resinsurance |, regandless of the type of entities that issue them, 85 wedl m b
ceftain guisantees and Mnsscial nsiramsms with discretsnary participabion featurss. A Ew sops sxtopiion
will apphy. The cwerall obiective of SLFRS 17 i o provide an scoomiing, mads) for inuriece contesits thal
in meoee useful and conaistent for invuren. s coniret 1o i regeiromonss in BLFRS 4, which ws largely based
on grandisthering previoat bocal sccouming palicicn. SLFRS 17 provides 8 compechenslve moded for
i ='|:'l"il|‘.'-|. dtx, covering 2l nelovanm acoounting aspecis The cofe of SLERS 1706 te general moded,
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L4

- A wpeeifie adapaton for conimects wiih diroct perticapation featunes (the verable for mpprosch)
- A wlesglified approsch (the premium allocation approsch) maksly for shori-dartion contricts

SLERS |7 i ofloctive fof sanuall reponing periods beginning on or afber | Jasuwry 2023, with comparative
figires revpaired, Earby appication i permdnied, provided e entity also epplies SLFRS 9 md SLFRS 13 0m
or before the dete it first applees SLIRS 1T The amemdments aie 6ot expeczed to have a malerial impact on
the coaTipay.

Amenidments 10 LEAS X7 Provisions, Contingent Liatilites smd Contingrnd Ao : Onefoss Coairacts
~ Conts of Fulfillisg s Conirae

The emesademenis mpply &= drectly refaled cost approach™, The costs that relate ditectly 10 a corersct io provids
gouds of services inchede both incremental costs and an allocation of coatxdivectly relaled o coatyect activities.
Gieneral and adwinismive coss da not relate directly ta 8 costract and are excloled unbeis they ane oxplicitly
chargeable io the coimicrparsy under the eonitract

The smendments are cilfective for annual eporting periods beginning oo of gfler 1 Jenusey JOZT The
afmemdmenn are ot expectad o have a moaterial impect on the fempany

Amendeemls to LKAS 16 Progurty, Mast & Equipment: Procseds belore Intended Use

The lnititute of Chanered Aocoumants of Sri Ledo (CA Sri Lanka) msoed LKAS 16 Propery, Plan sl
Equipment — Procesds befeee Iniended Use, which prohibits ensities dedecting Erom the coul of as em of
roperty, planl aad equigmment, any procesds from selling #ema produdoed while bringiy thes st o the
hcehm pmd condition necessary for i€ 0 be capable of eperating, in Sie mamaer mienddd by masagemenl
Instead, an emaity Tecopnine S procecds fren. sclling sk #enma, aed the costs of prodecing Bede ilems, in
prodi or joss.

Ther meindmsend 0 ¢ ffedlive for menis] repinng perids beginning on o &fler | Bmmare D002 eod ot be
applicd retronpoctively W Bems of peoperty, planl end equipmont made availatde R use oo or 6fer the
heginning af the carlkest period preacated when the entity first appliey the amendmt.

Thee armeeaimenty are nof expected bo have a maberial impacd o th Gosagmim.

Amendments in SLFRS 3 Bebness Combinations: Updating & relomace 1o eonceprual fremenork

The Institute of Charerad Acobantants of 51 Lanks (CA S Laskn) issued amendmenis o SLFRS § Buines
Combinatisns - Updsting & Referenoe 1o the Concepean | Framework. The smendesents are imtended 1o replace
& mfiorenee 1o e Frameuork (o the Preparation end Presentsison of Financial Statoments, saucd in [ 959,
with 8 teferegee 1 the Conceprual Framework fer Pinancial Reportisg sund in March 2018 withos
significsnrhy changing =y reguirements.

An excepthon wis sl added io the recopnition principle of SLFRS 3 ko avald the fase of potestial “day 2
gk or bosses arising for lisbilities aned contingent liabililie Baal wookd be within e soope of LEAS 3T o
TFREC 20 Levies, i incarmed separately.

At the sime time, i ws decided 1o clarily exising puidance s SLFHS 3 for contingent aatets fal weuld not

be affected by mplacing the reference eo the Frapewolk B the Proparaison and Presentation of Financsal
SRatrmeres

The amendmenis are eMective for shnusl reponing perinds beginning on or afier | January 2OI2 and apply
provpodtively

The amendmeny are not sxpecoad 10 Bave & maserial impaol on the company

5 B
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& RIEGHTARNUSE ASETS m i
Hs. Hs
[ e il AT RHLEELATH
Rigbtvdsing ety Brogma bl L] Pl [Ladhocl s ka1 pLR)ATT 1241320
Bgbierif-unst womsti Oty Progotey, Pl madl Expogeorsl &11 L2EpATY { A4}
Woghiadl o i it o Mndid wfik e 31 [ 1

S el

Righ-of-we @i - Ll

“Right wf me ssey - Lind” sk prevoaly scomainl sida Staow of Aarmeng Tt SodT) sed by B b of
Thariciad Acomrmais of 5 Lonkia By 71 Ampeu JO0T IH‘M!{FH Pl- Lamies vni pppletablr with et brom €1 Jabandy
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ANNEXURE 3 - UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
31ST DECEMBER 2022 WITH THE LIMITED REVIEW

[

L]

AGARAPATANA PLANTATIONS LIMITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FERID ERDED 31 DECEMIEER Do22
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Agarapaiana Planiations Limitcd =
MOTES TO THE FINARCIAL STATEMENTS
Periiad cnbend 31 [ocemmber 2122

s

LB

13

LE

HEMIRTING ENTITY

Tkambrlic mnd legald form

Agarigatana Mastsliohs Lintcd 6 Beikd Hablliy ceepan indompermad std demielbed in 540 Laska It
inrpenmed on June 72, PR, ander the Compesies Aot Mo 1T of 95 (T Compory s e pegistensd
] Ih-rﬁiqh-'-l...'ﬁl:"l..'h.l]]'u!'IEH]THhmmﬂlhmﬁﬂ.ufﬂt[}dhﬂlhﬂmﬁnﬂrﬂ!m
and Ceoverpmient-Crameed Dusiness Undertakings irse Peblic Companics under Public Companies Aol o, X
al 1357

The regetered office of the Company b keeated m o, 33101, Sir Baron Lyathilaks Maatha, Colombo 01
wnd Mantaifons are sioeated iathe plaming districts of Dadulla gnd Nuwana Cliva.

Thy Consrlidatod Financial Sisbememdi of Aparapatans Plastslosms Liniited, pq ab sl for B pecisd ended 31
December M2T compiise the Comgany aod it Subdbdiony namely, Wrverly Power (Fvr) Lid.

Princigal medivelies mnil (Be weture of ihe operaiboss
Diaring the year, the privcipal sctivitics of the company wire e ¢ulihvation, marsdacturs and sale of black nea.
Primcipal aciivities of ather companies in the Group oe & Gllows,

Company ﬁ'l:ll:lﬂ.lilupqr Business Mlifiiie ol Uhe beibnes’ Predipal Flacs

‘Warerly Power (Pvih Lo *abwldary Cienerating electricity [ the Naiomal Girkd

Fasenl esterprive

The: Ciompasey £ 0 vabsidiary of Lankem Developments PLC, wistae uhlmate paronr enterprise i The Colombs
Fort Land & Dadlding PLC.

Diate ol Aulbaizsiion for o

Ths Financial Sasments of Agarapatans Mantatiens Linind for the poricd onded 1 Docombar 2022 were
thorized for taue in soooe dance with & resobation of the boanl of direcinrs of: 30 Marck M3,
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i B

Period endad 11 December 2022

&l

1X

BAZIS OF PREFERATION

snpemenl of {omplasce

The Mesacial Sissemenis of the company banve been propersd in accondence with 86 Lasks A copenting
Standuidy (52 FRVLKAR) pomelpeied by The Financial Ststosents of the Dospany compriie the Statemont

of Tinanclal Posiior. Strement of profie or loss, Statemont of Compreckenalve [ngome, Sltomant of Chingis
in Eqaety, Sisteresd off O Flows iogether with Accounmirg Polices pad Sotes 1o Fimncial Srtements.

The Institute ol Chatored A ccoenienis 65 Lanka (CASL L and with e reqeiscmeniil &f 8 Companied At
Mo, 07 of 707,
Hawhs of Memsaremrmd

Thess Fimarial Saatermenis. have becn propaed 2 accondesis with The histaeical ol convenlion offe B
ibafidings. consamzble biologhcal assets, produce on bearer blological assets and financial nsmamens.

v Manspel oasurrahle Belopiesd ooets o measeal ol Dir velon
barveuabic Aptculiuml Prodoce growing on beamer biolagionl aviets arg meaioned of B valos

That vy beem measuned ab fair value and where appeopriasse, specilic poiiio srs evplaasad in the suceading
BT

Mo sdpustments hanve beon made for inlatienary fxcooes in the Financial Staemeoen.

Fencibial sl Frewniations Curmeney
Thi Fmancmal Stadnent afe prowenlol B Sa Lankan Roposs (R ), which m the Comgesy ™5 lundlishal &l

presemiation cunescy. A1 finanos sfemation presenied in %40 Lankan Bupees has been given B ihe nearesd
Fupss, Wil faled otherwise,

Mistevialigy and apsregation
Ench material clws o sl Hoer iy prosented separsicly in the Financial Slaiereste. Bems il s dissim il
nutize i et ae preseriled sepamely wbeis they are fmrsaerial.
Cralmg (Concern

al. Apyrapatima Flanistions Limited
Thes fwamcial stalomoents arg prepaed on the asspagtion thal e compasy B 8 poiag ooagem, i &
conlimaisg B operitien fod O Deeseoahls fonee 1t s thevetore sasemed that the company has noithor the
Ertention nor ths neseriny of liquidatios of of curtsiling materially 1he wale off s operations

Howrver, i of the Statemen of Financial Podition daoz, the compary™s ceorean Habilives exeendad s curment
misoty by Fw 7 Min (20002032 Rs. )AED Mol

Blewpver, DBoard of Direcion erc of B bxlicl thet the Company lai sdadaons readinocs o Soolisie Soes pday
opertion well imo the Teeseeae Ritune. The dimmctors of e companms and coseildent That B fimancial poaition
o the cempany willl siginiBcantly i chatirig B caustosl Tifascial yeaf,

&




Initial Public Offering 2023 | Prospectus
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

X1

54

Period ended 31 Decomber 2022

I}, Waverly Power iPvi) Lid
Pl Financial Statemests ave prepared on the asumplion tha the Comgany s & going, concem. ie.
ountinuing in operstion Tor @ Rereeoable Tulure. B s thoreliee naamsed thid the ocompany b neither the
inlendim mor the noovisiy oF Bouodal i or of certailing materially ey siabe ol i Gpeialiom

Further, the comgamy kas signed 8 agreosen] with Coy e Elesiricty Board 10 sapph eloctiridcity Tor a prisd
of 20 vears waning [fom the & of commancisl apcralion,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Comparative infarmation

The preicmition snd clasificssion of e finasin] salcments ol the prviou year e smendsd, whon refcvan
for beziner presemiarion and 10 b coemparable wits dhene of the curren year,

There are o comparnzive Informatios relared so e group since Wirvely has sequired 2ffect (rom 10 Sepember

Cmrrent versus nos-current classification

The Compamy prescnis asaets and liabilizics in satomenl of finascisl posilion based oa currenvnon -current
chesiiication, An asiet m currend when il i

= Expected t he realined or intesded 10 be 1034 or fonwimed ia normal spermting cyele
+  Ihekd primasily for the pumdse of irading
#  Fapevied (o be realiied within raclve montka after the epoiting period

Or

+  [Cnsh or cosh equivaien snless nestriciad from being eschanged or wred 1o s=trle a babiliey for o les
raelve momths aficr the reporting poriod

Alll pther sxsety ane chassified ns oon-camenl
A [Ehility i cament whin:
LI | |Iﬂ|?:ﬁﬁll!l|:l: setkedlin Dmmrﬂlﬂﬁ

+ B is hebd primerily for e poeposs of insding
*  Bis due o b pimied withis mgive mont afier the reponing period

O

+  [here b norght to deler e setlement of the Hasbiliny forat keast peehoe months fior the noponing period
The Comvpany clcsifies all other linhilities @ non=curment.

Dheferrend fax aasets and liabiliecs @ clissalicd 33 non-urmenl aaginand (bl

Falr Vales Mearuremeni

‘The Company measures financis] instrummiy and pon-feercial moets o foi walue ot gech sriemen) of

finencial position daie. Fair vahiv relued diss) fior el ittty gl s Fencial dsasts that e
meaured w Tair walue or where fair values are disclosnd, sre semearied i the follew ing noio:

Frochold propormy pland end ogaipssent under nevedsailon moded {Bloldies).

=l
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Agsranatang Flamations Limited

MRS TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Period ended 11 December 2012

& Produs: o bearer Baslogiesd e
®  Fancial lestrmnesis inclelng those carmeed ai smostioned ooad§

Falr value [s the price tha woald be received to sl a0 st or paid bo remafier u liskiley in an aederly
Iraniescien behwean markel paitizipants o (ke sseanaeent date. The o value messuisesst i haed on e
prasendion hal the ransadtomn & sl B avid o frabafer the [rabahiny Lales place sither:

o |nibw peincipal mark el for the sssdt of Rabilsy
O

*  In b abmence of & procipal maiket, 0 ghe mon aivantapeoes matioe for the asscl of Babidiny.
= The piiscapal of B mind sdvastageian, mark el misd be soossibe iy dle Company.

The il valise of i uesl of 5 hability i measal using the akuam e sl masbe! pansapeats woulil e
b pricing. the dsact or [RabaSty, assuming Thal madks] paetidipaani & b their econamic Bedt inlirmt,

A fuiy vales msaneterient of & non-financial siset takes mts seoognt & merks paniciaes©s abillyy 1o panérate
eomomic benclits by ening the aisct on it Rigthest mmd best use or by scibing b be msoiher seathel paeticipast
that would wae B avsr in s hiphed and bowl v,

The Corpasry oy valusiion e heagrs Tl oo sppopeiee S chrsmvlances snd B whach sulTicioet daia
e mvailable o measure fae valioe, maximeng ihe e ol releyam phasvable mputs and minimibong the use
iofl unshasrvabls arputs,

A st et Fiavilitiess fior whvich T vale i monasted we diebingd in the finandial daleesnts ire calggined
vyt thee Sair vadoe hierarohy, descriond as follows, taved on the lowes kovel inpat that is gignifican o the
Haly wilug mesieferen 48 o whade:

Leved | — Qe funadjusted) marked pooes in aztive madkets for idenlical asuets o Lalnlities

#  Leovel 2 — Valuation techmiques. for which dhe bowest Jovel Inpul that b significant 1o the fakr value
mavamment ip daecithy or indirecily sbacrvahle

#  Level 3 Valustion rechegues. for whiclh de bewesl level inpet thet s significant o the e vabie
measarm! i mohereshlo

For asscts and labilicy the: sv ncogakicd is the Mnancial ststements oo 8 recurring hasls, the Cospary
detirmimes wheether imniders have pooumed between Bevels i the loswchy By e-mamang calegoniation
el on thie howess Bevel inpud B i sigraficast (o thy (i vishesy meawegment 34 3 whedsh g2 the ind of el
reprling perial
Extemal vahsers gre isvolved G ynlamion of signifomm avests, such a5 buildings, Corsemable binbogesl
asein, and wgnificand labilites, such & seteemenl benefil obligation. Imaelvement of exteenal valoem &
deealod wupen snrmally by the Manapemem Comminee afier discussion with and approsal by the Company®s
Audii Commithor.  Seloction orilords mwdale maebel baowledye, scpulsiion, indepoulends and whether
sandads are mainisned. The Musapsmend Comeitbee decides, aflo dBcumsibin with the
Company s extormal vahuere which, valuaton schnicgaeit sl drguie 1o gss 555 ool cai,

For the purpass il Erir valer dischoures, Se Companmy bas desermined clamaes of srocts aond labilites on the
hanin of the milme, chassctaiabies aed rivis of the sasen or Hability and the level of the fadr value hiorchy as
explained shove,

Hart of Comnlilatisa

The Conuxlidated Finsacial Sanemenis comprise the Financisd Smsements of the Caomp and ity subnsdinrios me
# 1) Devesiber 2072 Subyiduies ot P calihe conthollad by i pioip. Contnol & schieved when the
Croag by eaposed, o lus wighis, 1o vanshia seturs from s ol with the invetes asd has the ahility
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22 affect thome retumns thiough s power over the lirrvcssee. Specificallly, the Group cortrols an invesics i and
oaly i 1hs Grgep hai:

& Power over the mvestes (he. existing ngtes dhal give it ihe curent bl & direst Be eolevasd activitios
ail the Tirveidee

= Fapiriore, o diphts, o vistable peiuins fes il ivolvemienl with (he invesdes

= The bty lo we s paneoy over B o eslos 1o ofec its nefums

Cenerally, thee is o presutplion thas » magoncy of vouing righis fel in coserol. Te suppon this preem pios
anl wiam the Giroup hai b S @ masjorssy ol The vilimg or similer rights ol s invesdon, ihg Ciroon oomiiden
all relesant facis and circunrdances in acceslng whethes §i bas power over an invesioe. includisg:

= The contraciual prrmagement with fhe e volc balden af the invosles
= Fiphts prising feprs other coniractusl sresgemonin
* The Croup's wobing riphts anad potentisl viding rights

Thee Oy re-magsacs whelher of i i eostrali an shvedior i Dot am! arcumilanoes indsaic st tBere oo
changes oo one of niare of the three elemints of conmol, Comcfdation of a subaidiary bogins when the Casus
chtaied ceatrel ooz e subsidiery and ceaecs whis the Oepig Jedss conol of the jubpidieny, Adiets,
Habilitics, mcome and expesies. of 8 widdisny soguirsd or diposed of durirg the your wre inclnded in the
Comsnlidated Funaiom] Sletesests o e dane the Droip pains oot witil ithe date the Goroip ceirics o
comirpl the pebuidiany,

Prrafil or rsa. ansdd eaxch commuarend of {Hher Cimpurbersive ncemie (00T ) anr stirbstad o the cquly holdes
of the paweat of the Circap and o the non-oonirolling lnhrﬂ:.ﬂniflﬁllmtlhhunn-imuﬂhl
ity having a defici balanse. When nedeiiany, aljpumesiy me made 10 e Firancial Susements af
nhahidiares 1o Bring thew scoounting polices e [ with the Choap’s seomunting polioes. Adl s group
ity and liadilithes, equity, [neome, expenses dnd cind fowa relitiep 55 ransacliont hetween sse=ibery of T
Group am climisated in FAE om consolkiatics.

A chag in e oemerchip interesd of @ sabek@any, witsan o loss of contml, s socoenied T as o oquity
EFETTC

1 Ehi e ronge ok el (v i sibedadiery, it dherecognlaes the relaied nssets {inchoding goodwisl], Habdlites,

mim-sonirolng imtvred and olber componenis of egeilly while iy resulant gain or lags W redogeined n polil
of loss, Ay imverment reszined b recognizd o fair value.

s Rearibterss Combrngibons s £ oodls 8

Eukmnﬂﬂnﬂmummﬂhuh;ﬂumﬁkﬂnﬂﬁnlfhmu!mnﬂdﬂllm
anthe sppicges of the = 1, maiured ol scquisiton date Ty valee anid the sl ol any
Moa{ioniroTling Indened in the aoqaieee. Foresch birdness oombinacion, the Croup cheots whether il pesasares
¥ Mes-Conatoolling [nterest in the aequites gither o falr value of 31 1he propartiouse shar of the aoquirec’s
identifisblo pot asscts. Aoquisilion-related coss ame oxpomed a3 incumod snd indluded in admisidrative

erprmes.

When il Geosp soques i busisess, i eecsecs (e financisd maets sl Satelithes msumod for appropriate
chxifEation md deolynaiion in accoedanos wilh B conlrachual iefms, eommsmie. Sréummbaioes ghl pertisesd
cond ittt @ o the acgaiition date.

17t b oomdsinmioon is ochieved @ stapes, any previcusly Beld equity Diered s ooneasaend at ity

megquinisien daie G vilue and ey realing gain o ot b icoogiized inprofit of feis or other cemprchesslve
Fmcome. &b agprope] sk,

Croochwilll b baicaally pscasured a8 oit, beisg the excend of the aggrepaie of the conildennica praniiced and
thi peraur reoognized or nosepomidling interesi, and pry peevious Bt hild, ovoe The se idontifiahis
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izma Mlanations Limited

Iherinsd ded 3 Diocember 2052

2.l

okt poguined snd Dubilities snmed 0 e G value of (e potl sviolt sequired i @ eocess of fe apgregaie
conshderation bamafened, the (imup re- sesesaes whather it has comecthy iderdited all of the sssts soquned
aad o] of e Babalitien annurscd aed peviewn the procedusen uned 1 meajuns The smomrs 10 be rovognisd ol
e acguintion date. ¥ ths reassasment silll nivals b an cxcoms of e (o valuc of ool mscis sogeirod over
ic epgrepile convidemtion inmmderrod then e gain b recegnized in walement ol profi or lxs

Al il recognition, poodwill i memured 8t cod low any aocumelsicd impatament lonsea, Fer the pecposs
of impairmam desting. goeodeill aquired in 2 busiwes combination b Bom B acquikitca date. allecated 1o
cach of the Ceowp'i eash pinwraling ufds thal e espooted G benethl (oen e coirbenmien, Wrepoctive of
whether oiher s of Habilities of the soquires are assipaad o Those unis

Where gaodwill has been aifocated to & cash-genorating weit sad part of the operation within thal unit i
dispenes of, ihe poodwill msocimsd with the disposed operaiion |y included (o (ke caryag smounl of the
pperaion when detennining ihe pain o lows oo disposal, Groodwill dispoeed in These dincorsiesies 5 memsrnd
batcd on e relative vakacs of the disponcd cpeimticn and tBe poilhen of P cash -popcrming woit relassed.

Agaraparana Planismions Limsad hai sequinsd Mol control mver the Wineely Parer [Pa1] Liwsed effec from
0] Otober 2027,

Propenty Flant & Eqmipmeni‘s
Recoznitkrn and measurement

Fropedty, Plant and Bguipatent by recognised [F iz b probable that fistee coonomic benefia maocisied wid the
st will flovw @ the Company and coit allths sasct cas be relishly scaneeal.

Bems of Properey, Pland andd Equiprent se mcionsd o ool (of of fer valug oo Bhe e of Buihfing, les
mecurdmed deprecaation sl seommilaed impaimen fosses, of 2my.

Crmerd aazty

The: it of Properiy, Flan aed Egeeprmen ssctade expoid it Thit aie diresily amtibitehle b (he Sogiiniitin
ol e miset. Sach costs inchades the omd of replacng pard of the propeny, plant sl sgesprrmmi and borrowing,
comi o bong-term constructon prepects [ e rocognition criteris are met. The cogt ol self=<onrmucied sace
inchides e oo of mmerlals s dieecs Isbor, my other oo directly seribvaable i Bringing the ssr i a
working condition for i mtcaded wic, and the coan of dismenifing snd semovisg the llons s reseing the
site on which 1hey me kooaiad

Wheii aigriifacam paets of propeity. piam e equipment e required 1o be mplaced wl intorvals, s iy
recognizes such pars @ indhvisual siscey (e cospanoea with spesifio uselul dves md dapeevistion,
respectively. Likewire, wiien a magr impeciion i preliommed, B oo i rocognined s S camying amoumn
of ithe plant and equipmon @ a replacement i the rocogeision criteria are amisfied.  All ouber repair md
mmnicnasce ool wre peoogeieed in the simememt of profit or loss as eureed. The presest sabus of the
expocied oo lor the dooverminsicaing ol the midey alber ity use i included in the eoa of the resperive el
i whe secsgnition crilerin £ @ provicon me me

Buildings sc momured o fis value o scoenuleed deprociagon oo buikfegs and mpairmen charged

ke date of the revalaslion. Yaloatices are perframed wich wsilicen] requensy 10 maung that
tha Sair waler of & tevalued axset ooy nof EfTer materially ot il carrying ewoust. The coepeny's policy i
us revalus Buddfings oooe m every foer years.

(Ntgw property. plast and eguipmem e cairicd B ovd Jow sochsulsied depeeciation and acceniulsicd
uiipadirael Hased.

l.mlmhl.nmn 1 transformed e the feypeclive axkel sccounti ot 1he 1ime, the asset is feady. for
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Mot

Lpaseil mis

The determimation of whether an mranpemeom by (or contains) o kase is hased on fhe sutmtsce of the
rermprrienl @ the iccepiin of the lesie. The aitangemen] m, of conloms, A kaic F feifiliment of The
arrargement b dependenl o the wse of a specillc asset or assets and the smangemant conveys the righi o
contral [he wie of as Keniificd st for 8 potiod of vime & cichmge Ry cofiderition

Company o 8 lrsae

The compary spplies & singht recogaiien and mensremien apgeoach for 88 heaies, excep r dhomaem
lesrves andd bemes 0 bovevalue aeoels. The company fecognises fmase Tiabilities b0 merie loe payments md

Hhort-dewrm lemers and o ol b valur sty

The Cornpany docs Bif eomain dh dlar-term Leancy (i e, those leased that have & Seawe oo of 12 mnthi o
less From the comanancemend daie and do nof comtrin 2 purchane option) mnd o vahas maets

The oumpeny Ferogrnes nighl-of-use assets o the commenoerent dele of e | e e ihe date the snderiying
it it graslabls o unc), Right-of-use ahisti ary mdasured ot cofl, los any ascemulated depecsiation asd
impairment Jodses, and adeed for mey reneascrement of lease Habllitles. The cost of right-afeuee assets
inctudiei the mnoaesl of oo liabilities recogamed, niisl dired costs iswcrnd, s bease pascanents tade of or
twefiore the commencemem date lrss any lesse incentives reoeived . Righi soduese asvets e depreciaied o n
sraighl -l bt v’ the dhirter of s Bedng term aned the eitimated wichul Tives of the i,

I rcmanradvip 0 Imaod] sod $rsiory o e cxvmpaety o e onel af Uay bomne et o The goa eelloch 1k
caefciee ol & parchase spnioa, depreciasion b calculaeed using the emimated weful life of te st

i} Amortiation

Thie koiwrhald righiy of msrts lahoes over Trom JEDESLSPC ate afndrtised in ogeal assournity ey the dlemier
of the remaining Sease pericds and e wsedful lives a follows:

M, ol Y ears BEle | %)

158
133
3%
250
410
=
G147
LR ]
141
333

Righi s use of land
Empomirmint o land
Mlature Flaniion - Tex
Fioads & MNridpet
Bluildisgs
Fonces & Securities
Mok

Waser supply

Powed Augmemtation
Wipsted Tom

ERECEREEEZ

I owwmership o the Ioasod ase Sramalen. (o B comspaary o thy ynd of B beae borm e the ol pellsct the
vonzisg ol 3 perchase upiion, depeeciation n caloulsied osing the susted coelul life of the asse.

Laus Haldilies

Al Mt commencement dne of the lsase. te Company recogries kease liakililics meaiuncd o the poeseni vihe
of lcavs pavmenti 10 be raads gver (Be lewe term. The lease payments inchuede Tived payments [includng in
sshsianie fived payomects) bess my bear incentives eeocivahls, viriabl lease paymentd Bl depend oe an
incfien or morate few i example JEDRSLEPC Goversmaes bease rervals linked with GDP Deflaibor b, and

ik
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Apardpunans Plasations Limited

ROTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Perod ended 31 Dhacember 2002

Al

mniats enpecied 1o be pakd ender residual valoe pesanives. Varisble base pary monts tat do not depond an
-|n-hl-dr1#“M|MMWIWWE¢I¢-H¢&M#HWFH*WH
whiich the evess or conadition that riggen the paymant ocosr.

in caicalating the present vabse of lesse payments, te Company wacs iis ineremental bormowing miz at the
i commencemcsl Sac il the kctoil Fuie ERplics in the jeme b5 nod I'Etl.lljr-hﬂ'-ﬂuk Alles 1he
commieneel duaie, mour of lesse lisbilites |8 ircreased o releol the acoretion of irderesd and reclecsd (e
the lease pagtment made. In aldnion, the cairypmp amoant of lease ballises [ resmeasiscd i fhere o &
mififlcation, a dhange in B lease rorm. & change in dha lnase pl:n'rr:r-tl-n;.,d:qntn fabary pa memts.
restillifcy from & change i an ibden of mte sl 1o determine ok o paymERE) oF & chasie? 0 the
mieament nf s option o perchase the onderlyieg a9 sel

Ise-recogniise

A fem of propesty., plant mnd equipoess and any significam pan inHially recognived i dervcognised upon
dispzesd o¢ when ro fumre sconcmic berefli s evpecied from i we or disposal Asy gain or feas arksing
on deeceognition of the asset draloulaed os e diffioemon betasm the naet dispoial progoods and the ey ing
it 0l the sl e linded i The silemenl ol ob o livs when O aiesl i dsinoognired asd gl ae
ot classifhed as revenue.

Lanil [ s rmsen i eand

Peamanenl [l iripeovemen g are thoe Sois mared in makdng mager infrsiectore development aul
hullding merw aocoss romds om avchold ks

Theowr oosts heve bown capiiahnod snd soorined over the rossineng, leswe period

P‘mrmihpdr-:rl: 1 Facd dsvelopment codb aré charpad 1o the Sisteatont af Mrafm or Lesy = [l or
feddacedd b the REL (o g s tn ol vl seert In the ver of oonirenos Bl ascerisining o ks

Hinlozigal bl

Hiological aiscts are chamiified inb mature Biologh-al asucty i) imswnare baplopical sdset, Matoes bploghnl
mm@ﬂ“ﬁﬂhﬂnﬂhmwmﬁh:um“hm: Immature

Fsrty mio Hurse thal havee nisl vl aitaisnd hervesiside specilicatim. Tea and ol plasiaiecns ae
ihmeified a3 biological assets.

Blologioal sssets are lather ciasified m baarer hisdogical maets and consumahlz biological assets, Hgarer
bindkepicar] amsats inclede bed oo, thost that & ool infendad 10 be sold or harveicd, howeve used o grow
fier ke piing sgelculwral peaduce from such blological assets. Conuwmable hivlogion| meeiy inchids
managed tmber trees thono thet pre o b v o agricullonll prodooe of seld o Bologeal s

T ety wecogniae e biokogical sty whes, and only when, the eotity controls the axceis 25 aremli of pam
ovenl, il i probablc that fonere cgonomi benefit ausocimed with the aseety will Bew bo-The antity and the Sir
valoe or cost ol the sty can be memsured roliably

Bearnd Ewdbegical Aasels

Tha Bearer hiclogical asseis are memsred o oot lews scosmutaled deprocission swd scoumulated impirmeot
tosegs, 6 any, i lorm of LEAS 16 - Fropemy Flast & Foulpmsent

Tha wost of kand preparsdios, rohabilittion, sevw plaming. replerding. crop diversiiication, kstor plenfing and

ot . incurred between the e of plasing msd baremling {whie the planted arca stisens mstunicy L,
st clavsilied os afsrtateee planiaiions. These immature plariations ane shown o dired s0am plus alribaea bl
overbeads. The expemditure ncumred oo bearer Bilogheal ikaety | Teah which comes infe baaring durag the
v, B EEfemed 80 mEae [t

sld=
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LN

LE TR

LEN

Infilling £ow o8 Brarer Bhalogiesl A

W e iﬂﬂlhlﬂl’"‘.‘rﬂ-l v i 111 [l eiinasinsin: [rie of the felovast el Bayoid iy iy i)
standard of porforpsancs, D cosls are capitalised In sccondenca with LEAS 14 and depreciated over the wseful
lifz 31 rentes applicshle b malure plastmioe.

Infilling conits thal e wadl cap#alised have boen charged 0 the Pralit or Lot Ststernen! in the vear in which
They are inotered

Borruwing © sl

Bourgwing conts Thal arg Seecsly aftribulabls b0 scquitition, cmvinesen o preduition of a quahifiesg s,
whlch tices & subamannial perbod of thee 0 o1 rendy’ for o inlenaded vee o e are coplualieed as 3 parm of the
vl

[Bermoeviag codts that ars mrﬁmmmuﬁmln the petiod in which they e iscerrod
wnd charged 10 the Profic or Lo Simement.

The armeunis of e hormswing ooals wiosh are clipibhe for capiialicnion aez depsmined In accondinse with
ihe fs “LEAS 23 = Bomowlag Cosis =

Bermowing cosin 0 be capitlaed towands the Neld devefopmem acthities are determined baced o the
eilfestive berrowing rans applied 10 the svinge camying smount of the qualifiing immahse s |exthiding
i b Effective botrewing mie & deermined o5 8 percentage ol (o] boroaing oosts over ooluandisg
avgrape bormmwings. The capilafnation will coas when the erops are ready’ for comumcrgiz] Baves,

Copsnmahble Riolegheal fswris

Congussable bological ssen inclodes masaged timber brocy those tat anc to b barvciiod o agricelaal
peedoes £ sold a8 boakagleal assen, Expenditane insamed on consimasle beloghs] avets (maraged thebe
triess | b Encererd o imitiel Pecogeiton nnd ai e ead) ol sech reponting perind & i ol value bess o weosell
o e of LEAS A1 The cmd i tieabtd a8 dpprovesaSon 10 Gir value af young gl & The Eipesd oh
bislogical ramdfemation of soch plani wo price dering this period ks fmmasenial, The fafr velee of imber mect
wre meavered @ing DOF modod taiding inio comtideration te cernml marke! prices of Gimieet, sppliod o
eapactad limbar contenl o s Hor ol the miturity by an isdependent profeaional valuer

The main varisbici i Market spproack sads consermi

Yariabie Commesd

Timbe cement Estimatsd based on physical wvarifiosticn of girh, beight and
pomsadering e growth ol the cach spocees i dilSerent jeog reghical
cegionk. Faoior &l the prevalling sabaory regulationi enforced
apaing Rarvesiing of timber coupled with [oneery plan of the
Liemipaity

Selling prics Entimatend based on prevailing 5n Lok market price. Factor all
the condilions & be [uliEll i bringing the tresi @ 1o aaleatde
candition, Hiote, the valuer has consldered timbser prices pabiisted
by Swic Timber Comporstion s the secht berchmark w e
appeopeiate b Tior determinaig (e Tar salbse ol 1he sabiea imber
HeE

Planding o Datimatod sos for the finber developses of inmanire wes are
Bedectind,

Eoumomar usetul Iy Lstimubed hancd o the noimal Efe wpas of each specics by Baoring
ke foremary plan off the Company

The gain o boas arteing om inhisd reoogrition of gumemetle biodopical weeti o fair value lois oo o sell and
frvem m changpr in Tair walee less com 1o sl of oomamais biologicad ancts are insluded in palin oo lowi T
the period in wisich i ariscs.

i
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i

patana Flanstions Limited

NOTES T0O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Periest epched 31 [hecemmber 2003

Impainnests o Biabagion] Asets oe cavpal o the Profin or Loss Sasement i Tull sl redeoed 1o the s
sarTying mmounds of sich assel in The wiar of odeermecs afler mopidining the ke,

Sursery Planis

Mutsery oot inchades the cosl of deel mmoerial, direct Ribour sl o sppropriste peopotion of dineely
mhirduiable oyverhrads, fos provision Ex cyvrgrosm plasis

Produee as Bearer Bialogieal Aviers

In secendance with LKAS 41, cosspany rocogniie sgriculiunl produce groming o bearer plania o falr valae
fews cost 1o sal . Changt i the Tl value of voch sgriculiuml preduce reoogrieed in prof@ or koss el the end of
cach foponig peried

Fior thiy purpise, quantiney of harvesmable agriculiurl produce aecensined bassd o harveting oyele of tach
crop crcgony by Diminiag to one harvesting oyele based on last day ol e harvesi @ the Esmadizgely preceding
cwele. Fuafher, 50 ol the erop in e barvnding cyole e

For dhe valemion of the harvcitable agricuimal producs, the compamy usdi the Sxllwing prics Tomulas

s Tiom— Powgh Loal nele | cortend mosis] ke ool of Betveding & (rampod,

Diepreciaiian and smortbakea

Tepricinlmmn

Depataziation ks recognisd in Income Salemen on & suseghi-line banis over the edimoded nefsl eoonomic
fives of each part of an ilem of Froperty, Flast & Equipmeni since this mem chocly refzzis the expeciod
patrem of corsempion of the fulee socnomic berefies embosdiod s ghe s Asseis held oeedir s oo

aver e iharer of the Beise 1ovmm amd the waeliil Thves of egeivelest puned dises undein £ &
pewsnably cemain that the Croup will have ownership by the md of B lgase e Loaso paricd of land
moqeired from JETHASLEPC will he expiced in your 2045, The entimated usefil Shes Sor the cwment and
amparalive perbeds arg as folloes:

Apsrspalans Plantatioes Limbed
Mo, of ¥ears Rte (%)
Boikimys T b
Kpads i) ]
Hamt & Mlachinery 1313 T30
Mioace Viehicks 3 i
Eguipmen i 1XH
Fumdure & Fmings 2 1000
Seeafomion, Wiesr & Eloctriciiy Sepphy B LR

Waverly Power (Fyi) Lid

Mo, ol Vears  Haie (5]

“ L rR
BRLLE o750

[E0
us Ik

0% 1350

i
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a7

LA |
LA

LA R

Comguicrs & Eqgipmeni (7] 29 )
Traslorrmer mn LR

Mlaiure Flantsdlons iHeplaniimg snd New Flanieg)
Mo of Years  Fate (%)

Belatiate PlERsioe - Tea 313 11 10
Hpsbgr 3 .00
A Hrtaion a5 4.0

Disprocintion of an sy Boging when it o meilable for upe and cerees ol the caflice of the e on which the
et claasified s feeld for sale or B decocognised. Depreciation methods, meful lives and resideal values are

resiscasend at the reportisg daie end sellueed prospectively, M eppropeisss. Nlsiure plesistioas are deprecisicd
over e wsefu] Thes or enexpired [cass period, whichever i lower,

Mo ibrproscisiion is providod or mmatung pledations

Flinusin] instrements

A financisl isalremeal B asy coniract that glves rise 0o o Anancial wssel of one entity asd & financial Hability
ar iquity isdrument of asother colity,

Fipoia in] asarii
Initial Recoguitisn and Messoroment

Financal asssts sre cladnfed, o sl recogrilion, s wilsagienily measunnad 8 amorfiiad dosl, G value
ihiiigh other comprehensive incosse (00T L and Talr value ®rowgh profit or bost

The chasei] caclen of financisd assets at indvial recognition depond o the firumcisl aoet s contmaual ceh lme
chsricinmticy s U Comspany s oo mide] foo momagsag then

Purckaves or wales of financisl pasctil the reguine defivery of mipeln within & lime Troes sinshahod by
regulmicn o comverton in the markeiplace (regular wery ados) e recogained on B il date, e the date
thal the Comnpeny Gmmib i purchuse of sell the st

e Doy 's feascial assots inchads cand and shorl-teim depoalin, inveitmenta, irade and sahet roocivalles,
anailshls Tor sele financial mee

Sulwrgueni Mesworrmeal

For purpeias of jubssguse mexmrement, financinl mwsets mre clssified i four categonion:

w  Ferewrial sisets ol et fed Sot § debd irorumsena)

= Firmacial ovicts a2 fair valoe theough Ol with recveling of fumbiative grins and beises {deb iminments |

# Pl meets desipnaed @ Bair valus throuph DOT with ne fecycling of commilathve paine and bosses
mhﬂmﬁm[ﬂdwm1

o Fieascil smsen o fulr velue thresgh peofil or bov

Finansial asagts a2 ampriicsd coul [deld Bmaruments)

A7
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i

<l

#  The finansis] risct B held within & b mode] with e ohjective oo hobd finsseial avect i onder
I cullecd comivachenl cash Mows.

And

. mmllmﬂﬂtw:lm:hwmmmﬁdhmd Moas Lhat are welehy
paymrent of principal and mstevest or the priscipal amount

Fmmcnl aseets ol wmorieed o8 & e bty i el i the ellectie interest (2R mcteid asd 2re

subjest 1o impairoeat. Gaine asdl lowes a0t rpcopairad in prafit or bes whim the @t is deroongaired,
modified or impakned.

Flamncial Assey oz amorilzed oo oomprise of trade receivabies, amounts due fioe rclaied panies, depnaa,
advanioy asd otk rhocivallin.

Fimamr il averts af (nir vales (hroegh (0] (debt marvmanis)
T Comipasyy mrsasures deba iestrumenms @ falr value throagh OCT [ bolk of the fallowing condeizas are met

v The finaicisd paset is belid within 8 e snsdel with P oleestive of Both Bokiig wooelled contraciusl
cash flomney and selling.

Ard

+  The conracopal tenms of the financial ascer grve rise on specified dabes to canh fows thal are solely
payment ol grincipal and feon on S prissiial amcent oblesling.

For debi instruments ol Bl walor thiougk OO0, intered come,. foreipe  cchanpe seokesion. and
impaiimenl losdes or reverak are tecoghized in the sislement of profis of loss aed oompated b e same
marmer 38 [or Maadcil ddacis meadiined & asiortiaed coil. The reiainig (66 valed chanpht v resopairéd in
DL Upon devecognition, the cumuolatiye Sair valoe chaege recopsdoed im 007 s recyeled 30 pradin or los

Fimamciial ankets ot fatr valee throagh OC1

Upim mitsal mengrition, fhe Corspawy cam el w0 clrisly imevncably i spily Invedmens 56 oquily
irrumenti desipatad @ talr value teoegh (01 when they meet the definition of equisy dnLH.-\.EJd:
Financlal Instrumems: Preseristion and st not held for erading, The clamification i devermined on i
iferusest- by instument bash

Claing and Jossey oo theis fimancial sisets e pever recyched o profli or loss. Dhvidends ame recognised @
oy income in the stmoment of profal o ks when the right af paymerd has bees elalinbed, escept when
the Carmparry herefis From such priceeds as & nestwvery of paet of the oestof The financlal ssen. bn which case,
sl pair v recorded b 01 Boquity inruments desiprated o ir value Baeoeph OCT anc oot nlbjod
impairmT assgismc,

The Company’s ineocml sacts fair vahue thouph O] mxcbabes sveestiments i quotal and wigeoled shares
which inchaled urles (A b nesi-Cutiend Tinanclal s,

Fmanciall axsets af fadr valas through profd or lss

Financlal assets sl falr value through peadit o kst includs franciel s beld o unding, fossonl aeets
dsilgasned upan inhisl recognidon a1 feir valee furcuph profi or ke, o Tnenciul mdels mandalerily fequited
1o be messurad @ fuir value, Fnencil macti soe clasified as held for rading | they ane acquired for the
parpone of scilng or iopuichinieg s the near term. Chewivitives., inclading sopasated emteddad desivativi,
afe alik chiniifod @ held b rmling il they wie deslpnated m efledive hedpmg mansmens, Fianoal
gt with canh (hows that are not sobely paymeni of principal and leterest are classifled and meassred ai fair
valug through profl o i irepithe of fhe businens madel. Nobwebstssding the criterla for debt
irstrumenti o b oo T o ervior ried cost of @t feir valoe through OO0, s deseribod abone, dobt inftramenia
MHMIH!#MMI#HIMNWW_FIE i doing = elemimates, 01
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LS B

2,704

Flnmecial nescts of Sair vadue through profit o keas are caurled in ihe statement of financial posdtien m felr vaiee
writh rct chatgte in [ value secognised in e slstemen] of peali of ke,

Derviegnizion

& Sirgncial anvpt |or, where applicable, & part ol a lnancia) avisd or pat ol 3 gedup ol dimilar financesl assgia)
is Aercongnised when!

#  The rghss io reecive sask Navch from the st have axpinod
in

s The Compamy has mansfomed os righty o reorhe ash fows from the asset or hes avsmed o
wbdigaiodn o pary The recevvid cah Mo in Nul] wallaeisl malial debay o thisd fuity walel o *pass-
thrragh’ smangemwem, and cithor (ah the Company has tranforred webstantially all the risks and
rewardi ol the suict, or

) e Cormrparmy bk moihes Fran fiedied Bof colampd wubvianially off B diiks and soaan oll B sl
Bait his irarfenred cosstrol of the 1sset.

When ihe Compeyy b waalamed it righis 1o recsive Gl fleies from Ao aide of had oftensd 188 3 paad-
thipugh airanperscnd, it cvaluates if snd o what exsem |t has retalesd the gisks sed rowands of ownonship.
When i hae meither tmoafered nor seinised ssbataniislly oll of dhe riske and sewardh of S daarl, @er
n:ni;nﬁmﬂpfﬁ:m.ﬂ:mumﬁpnﬂlnﬂ:umﬂulmpi ST e el
m the s, by it cawe;, e Company sl resopaiucs ah aisodkated liabibsy. The eanifemsd st and the
secialed EsboBty ave micaired % & Bidk thi refecrs the rights and obligations that the Compamy has
reained.

Comtinuing invohomeont ihal ke e furm of & puarnsstee oven te mansfenred avies s measared at the ewer
ool g il cery ing s ot of the assel sod T maccimum amoemnt of comiideralion that the Compary <ould

b iresguined b repay.
Impairmest of finsscis] sy

The Centpany Pecognies an ilewance for expectiod eridit Mdased (ECLA) e el debi insinements nod beid ot
fair value @rough prodlt or ko, FCLA are basad o the difference befueen B coniractonl cash (L TR
sesmrtance with 15 conirec and ol he omh flows S the Company expécts 1o pedgive, disiounsd 51 &5

iom of the oeiginal affective istorcat rate. The expectied cash floes will include cah fhows firom o
wale of codlsteral held oF oty crodi onbancaments tus pre nbegral o dha oratra fusl terms

P15 are recegitbiced i b siages. For oredit exposures for whish there had not betn 2 significan iscrome in
creddii risk shnce initial recogmilion, RCLA st provided foe eredit Joases that result from defise evengs thet are
periaible withis the next | 2-menths (2 1 Emenih EUL L Por thos credi exposings T whach theie hid boci &
siprifhomm incroase i coodif rivk sivon mie] o gretion, o ke ilkevasce i equired o ored b bosn expacted
mmmliﬁﬂhnﬂhﬂ;ﬂwﬂmﬂmmﬂhmlﬂmﬂmm]

«|8.
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ira

LT

LTI

LRk K

AT

Fisancial Liabilizhes.
Imiisal recesmuilon and meacurement

Financial bubulitics wo clwedficd, = iniiad rocognitis, o Frseecial labilities = Bir valeo througs peafin or
b, Bonist e v I, prarvabiles, o is devivatives. dessgnated as hedging nsdrumencs in e effoalive hedpe,
A8 apfropriale,

All francml Habilities e recogadaod balaally of fast vahes ard, in il ciee of lodos and boirewiogs sl
prpablcs, et of dinectly shrituiable mansstion cosis.

syilepii el W e Ml
The sabisquen! measurcmeat of firansial b ey deperedi on deeir el Nicmion s deperied Below:

Finanrial lalilities 31 Gir valor kroogh prafii o b

Finasclal Habilhies ar falr value throogh profit or loss Inclode financiaf liabilities held for trading and
Tinanziad liatdintes dovignated upon Ritial recognil o o o8 Tair vales temerh pealitaed ke

Fimascial lahilities s claeified as beld for rading |1 they ane bsowmed For @ purposs of repurchasing in the
AT foFmL

igins o bosses on lsbildies ba i Tor Ivssling ane recogonied in e abatement of pealin o lis

Financial instremends a8 smeniied cost

Adber ifial recognition, iskerow bearas loais ana | mys s wb iy imic il dimcrtisod ool
wing the cifechive intenesi mmhdﬁumlmmmmﬂﬁhhmmwbmmum
het labilithcs fre dorocognined 4 well @i iBaeugh the cflective interesl fale method |EIR ) s rbrathod proeii,
Fisrscial [balies comprise imered bearing boams and borowings, trde payabdes, othor pavables, sl
arrns due o reieied gortice

Deveragnitinn

A financial Bability @ derecogniznd when the obligmion under ihe lisbiky 13 dichanged or cancelied or
axpiees.

When an evnling Tinanclal Rty bs ropleced by anothar from the fame lendor on webmaniially dillicrent
serme, or the temed of an cxiiting lubiliy se ninostally modifhad, sech mn evchaege or modificatkon i
areated s the derecognition of the original liability and the focagnition of a new Babiliny. The difference i the
FeapecTive CRITY ing amoenis is rooapniaed (o the atcmesl of profit o los

DiTseethng of Fuaacis] bwdrummemts

I inarcial Fmets and Mnanceal labibdes ans of¥eer ad the wot amonl repertond in ey Klaioesed ol Findnou)

|Penigien IF, se=d caly (f, twere i3 8 camomhy mEorovable kel right kol the negopadfed amoanis and @
5 e i mieniion B seitls on o hasis, o & realoe the dmscts and seitle the Babdbcies simubianocushy.
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LR

ES L

Invemterien
a) Favhl ginsds masmincioced from sgriculieral prodode of Bslopical maris

Thewe @re valued & he Eawa of eoil ! simaled ptl realasable valae. Me realErable vl bs e Silmiamsd
sl e ice e wiich slocks can be sodd o the orllnary course of teniness afier sllvving Tor cosd of eadivalion
mwl'oe powd ol convenion from Their evting faie 1o wleakle condition,

b Input madoriaths, Spanes and ceaqumakin
AN avernse ool

£} Grawing Crop Nurseries
A e cerld of derect mater sty diveot labowr and s appropriste peoportion of directly sitrdutabdc cverads.

£ash mod resh sguivalemis

Cash and cush equivalents comprise cah and bask halancen, and depositn Bank ovendrefis B ane ropnabie
n demand form and epral pant of the Cempany's col coesapeme nd md s inclistel as 2 component of
ol il endy evpanvabinds Tor the perpeia of the Staiemer! o Cash Flo,

Tmpairment of Mo Finsnrisl Assers

The Company iscsice, B cach reporing due, whether there b an iedication that m asset may ba bspasned. IF
my Indioarion exists, or when annual impaimnnd lecisg G an s o rnquited, the Company estimales the
aret 'y prcorcerahbe amoasl. A dioe s docorerablc sakoual |s e higher of an asset’s of cisbegenerating wm's
(00U S walee |ows costs off disposal and s value in uss. The restnerable ameun] i deicrmined for an
individual assct, unlcss B wdct St ped peacrats caih inllows thal ore lergely independeni of thoe Trom
ther amicty o groupd ol mices. When the caery ing smaast of an el or COU evoeeads 8 resuverabic amsunt,
1he sset s considered impained arcd is written dows I il feconveralile Bsioun.

im waewing vaker in use, the entimassd fitors ek fowa ate discounied 1o ther present vislie using o pre-ta
discoint rake e redflect correnl merkd msesmants of the lime value of momey and the rivia gpecific B3 the
st s desermining i value bess costs of Snposal, recent masket ransazticns an; mken ino pocount. IF no
such transactions can be icetified, o appropriste valuaton mode] B meed. Thess oalcibatinm are cosroie mse]

by walustion mublples, quoted share prices For publicly fraded compunies & olher available fair value
indicators.

The Uompany hases iy iepairmem caliuluion os detalled Pudgets and foromst calailations, which an
mrepaed scparaicly Bor et of the Company’s CGls o which the indniual mecty e allecaial. These
Btsdgers and foreomst caloulations prnerally cevor o pevesd of five y ey, Fof longsr pericds, a kag-tems grouth
ratio i ek baiend sl aprplsed te projea fiseee cask flows afler the Bith year,

rpatment losass of coniimeny opermiiom. inchaing impaireend on imeRtoned, we ecopatied in the
sisserma of mofis ol in expems Saperes cafadibeal with the function of the impained msel. esorpl o
properiies previoushy sevalued widh the pevalustion taken i OCT For such peopericy, the Enjiermen i
recongiieed i OoC1 wp o the amesnt of amy previcus novaladion.

¥ow assets gxcheding goodwill, an asseaerest in mads 2l cach reportieg dale w deicrmine whethor there |s an
imdicaice thar previously reomgmisad impaiment s no lerper cust or e decheaved. 17 sech indiat o
exie the Coerpany extimalel he sect’s of COFLCS recoverabls amount. A previealy ricognisnd impaimment
Beris e peversad caly [ ihere bai boon a changs in the axuiplions usad i detsrming the wee's recovandle
ampeant gines the byl impatiment Bas win sevognised The reversal is. limited o that the earsying amoun of
= el Ao ol eveeed ity nobonereble mslcunl, mor cxceed the camyieg smosnt thet woubl have hom
il mﬁwm:pmmhhﬁl“ﬁd oo B e i ey poare. Such
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L

fmb

i

£ RE)

revenisl i nsognised i ihs dasomend oF profls or eid waloe The riad! B carmind o b rovedusd amgenl s which
cape, e revernl 18 dremed w2 revalontlon pcreas,

Liabilighes spd provibdans

Proviakons e reoognised when the Compamy hes g prescnd abligation {legal o mmaductive’ as 8 ol ol a
pasteventy (L s probable that e ssllos of fesmeces ambodying eronosic beselits willl be feqoined e seife
the oialigetion and 3 rediabl; citimats can b made ofths ameura off the okligadion, When i C pmpamy sopecis
soumee of @l of m pronskon 1o be peimbarsed, the relmbursament |s secognised s o separaie s st bat cely when
Wi reimburicssenl o v inbeallly oeclaim. The expoise relafieg o ey e i presdnad in the Profil of Lk
Sumemem ped of any reimbaruereesl

Emplayeea” benifily
Dhelimed contrsbstion plans — Esspleyees” Frovident Fund and Employess” Tret Fasd

A defimed comrisution ples is-a pest-employmen beneflt plan smder which an aedey pays (Toed comribations
o @ sepat el owdity mnd willl Rerve no Jepal of cossdructive ebligalion @ pay fadther st (thiigalion or
dvninbutiven o Provident nad Trond Famds sovering o] emphoyect e reoopsieed ai 5 eupesiis ba poli sl
loss i e periods during which services arg penderad by sl

The Compayy commbutes L2 on comohdsiod salary of the empleyees o Ceyden Flantee” Provident Secoty
(TP Eslote NiadT Provadent Siwicty (FSFR) 0 Fisployess’ President Fusd dEPF)

All e gmplayoa of the Company arc sateber of e Employesy’ Trum Fomd o wibch the Company
comines. Y% on the comalidaled salmry of vech carplives,

Dhelined benafil phan

A defined benclit plan is 3 post-smpleymen benefis plas e thati s defisad contriaithm plas. The lubility
resngeised i= the Financial Siuessests in respect of defined benelit plan i fa pretent value of the defined
benelin oblization o the Kepewiing date. The defined benciic cbligation i5 caloulaicd aseasily using the
projected unit cedie method. The presont viloz of g defined benetil shligatio s detoresined by dlivcsaniing
the estimaied future cash flows wsing s inleronl raisy ikl are denominalod in The cumency s which the
Benetin will be peid, mnd the have berms 10 mscerity approsimaling B the beme of e rolated Babali.

Aceumial gais and lowey arhiing from siperience adjestmanis and changpes i actuanal sssusiplions ane
recoprized a8 reRained carnings throaph comprebemive nceme i serioe posls mfe reaopnised
immediaich in Sapemenl of Profin of Less.

The proveision has heen made for relinement gratuities from the fiea year of servioe for ol employees. in
cpnfonmity with LEAS 19, Emphoyee Benefite. Fowevo, snder the Mayrtent of Oratuity Act Mo, 17 of FIES,
ihve lialiliny 1o an capheytd artics only o gompletion o4 8 years of Soesbi e Lervion.

The Linbdlity i mal etowmally Toeced,

{aphtal comimilEsenty and canlingpenss

T aie nu sgnifEcant copital commitments and contingent acecti or contmpenl Habiliten stnce the laa
gl reporiieg dale
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L4

LN LY

Lis

37

A 0%

Feaelpn currency tramactions

Tranmacssona in Rseips coeacics are initially recondal by the Tutoms s entitios sl thetr sespectve finctional
curmeny spod raies at the dade the transastion fing qualifics Rr resognition

Nlometmy weels and lahilities denamaied in foreign sumincies poy ramdaded ai fhe Tt ional cunemey spot
raies of exchanpe o the repoding date

Differenesi esfiing o asntlemenl o Fmnilahen of mosctary o e rocogesicd In profil of low with the
axoeplion of mosetary hems e we desipared m pan of the hedge of ihe Ciooep's nel o asiment of 8 Toresm
openation, These are recogninsed in other oo prebesnive [ncome (DT emil the net ivveumest [ dhpased o,
et whvich nime, the cumolathve smoont is reclassified so poofit or loss. Tax changes snd oridits asribinable i
exchange & Bty an Than dmrlaiy ilesia dne sl rodbgmiiend s ollel i abdnave idoms,

Hmm;hnmunnmﬂhmmwfhﬂwﬂwhﬂmtﬂmmmﬂmnﬁm
exchange ranzs a the daics of the inital eeasactions. Non-moretary ferms measansd o Dir vades is o forcen
ey ang Eanslalod indsg the gaghange raics sl the dalg wives the Eir value is dosenmined, The gain or e
ddrheng o i lalion of son-morensy hems measoned ol flr valee is treated in line with the rocognithon of
ﬁfphqlmmﬂprwln fak value ol the Bem e, ranalaion dillerchoe of B v b T vilos
jtin o kesa i revegenived in O o profic or loss e aheo decogrrbed in 0470 or profi or ks, respectrely |

Events ocewrring sfter ihe reporiing perssd

There hive been no any ofher maserial everts oeswming aftsr the ropecting dats Tha pequise adjsiments or
el o e Fitdndal S1ahEHoal

Farmings per ihmre

Thke Compam: presents haiie sed diluled canmisgs per share ([EPS) for bx ondiesry st Banks 1FS
eefudated Iy dividng b poodib o Bss atirisdabde b ondinary sharehefders of the cempans By the woghted
average mmber o ordimary shaees oatitanding durmp the pericd. Dilated EPS |5 dcbermined by adjusting the
ol or ks sitrboisble o oedisary sharshodders and ihe welghtod avirape neadscr of cedizaty thafs
catstanding for the effects of all dikutive podensial eadinary shans

Dederveil inrmme - Lranm mnl subsidies

Ciovemmeni granis are recognined whene thar 5 renenabile magrance ihat B gram will be roceived ard all
minched onditions will by compliod with, When (e grant ielnes oo a0 axperds om. i ip recogrined au
incrme v D peried necesary o match the grast oo 8 symematic basis 10 the oo that & i imended o
compoasats, Whens the grast relascs 1o 20 gssct, i & secogniiod m delored income and rrbessnd 10 inooes
in ogual amounss over the expecied uwaeful Bile of the rdaled macs.

Where b Company (edoivel MSsmoNELTy o aiacd and the gram afc reoonded o ml sl
amoants and relcaed 10 B Siemem of Peolln of Loss over e eapeciond sl Bl and pattom of
mummunmm;mwmmm
Sratemenl of Frofic or Loss

For the putpose of peesenisiaon of Slasren of Fof o | o, B fusstion of expenses methed b sdopied as
it mepuenewts itky the clemens of the Cossgany's periomanie.

Cri
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RIE1

L

Hevenue
Revenue 1§ recognised o the exieni thal i i probable that the coonomk bancliks will Flaw to the compay and

thé reviermes can be reliahly mesurcd, regandbei of when the payment f being made. Revenoe b measured wl
the Telr value of the oonsidension peceived oF recena®ls, taking b acoourt condracsmlh delinad temm of

paymam and encluding e or dety. Under SLFRS 15, revesse b necognised upen satufaction of
perfomance disligarions.

Tk Company b in the Busings of oulthvaton, menulaohere and sale of back ten {Fansation Produce).
Revenu o oomimcts with cudtomers # resopetnpd when contred ol the poads i irasiferred 1o e oedlomer
2 w2 grnoeer That reflects the censldermtion o which the Company expects 1o be ontiied in exchange for those

goods. The Company hay generally onnchaded S it i3t gringipal m it sovmie sttangemets, batzue i
Py pricelly cosntinnhi the yoshs befor e lrandlesing e U Cusl e,

Hevenue from conmucl wiih oesemors

Agarapatans Flintstions Limived - Sale of Pawtsiisn produse

Hevenue fnvm sale of pleniation prduce i reoognized o the poing in time when e dontrol of The goods i
tramferred fo the cuslomer flack iea prodeds b gekd a2 the Colombe Ten Auction and the highest hifder
wiane offer 15 ecoepied ihall be the buyer, and a sl shall bo complsied ot B (0l of the hammer, ai which
point conired i3 trarderred Lo @ oudormer

Thete 15 i elemen of financing prosent as S Company™s sele of plamtation profsce e citer on cash rms
{Immediale paymen of advinse payeen not ovceiding 30 dayshor on credi erma manging froms 7 fe 15 iy,

Warerdy Fower (Fui] Lid - Eloctricity Supply
Rovenus from clocticiy sepply B mecognismd upon delivery of elecincity To Ceylon Elcctricity Hoard.
Dielivery of electrical energy shall be completnd whis eloctrical enengy mecti B dpeilications a0 52 o in
standardingd powen prschane sgreemese, which {5 complisd & dae mctering point.

(Hler Souree of Hevenie

Rowenue recopeitien eriieria for e other spoe of isoeme o fallow

& Renasl Imcame

Rental kecome b recopnired on an aconial baily i pogerdencs with i sebmance of the pelevie agresment.
®  Dividesd looome

Dividemd incoeme is rocognisnd when (he tight to peceive payment is established,

- Inlerrsl Incoser

Irdereit iSceic i hevogpaiped b o eflemive inkerent methad,

irderest inconer on financiad gsses @ FYTRL I3 rocognlond as past of net gaim of lisses en these fmancial
s,

Inderce! incpae of TRLRE BN mams m amonired ooa is colculntad by vwing the cffoctive islerrd moi®aoad ael
recognized o fisarce Incams.



i)

Initial Public Offering 2023 | Prospectus

Fianialions Limited

MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
Prvicad poadml 10 Recerdiber 2027

Ligd

X184

A 185

s Manigessent Fee

Revesse from mansgement Tee b recognined when e serwloes are rendered a8 por the management foe
AFETCELETE

Expewes

All expendsere incurred bn the rurming of the burlsess and in madntizing the propery, pland and sgafpmeant
g st of e Miseancy & charged b5 fevemiad if miviving af the profd of boie Tor the v,
Financiag incems and finance oo

Fizarcs indoens commprive: inbsic moraie on feds mveaed. Dnferen isoome i recorded using e Eiffeche
Imerces Bade (TIR) mothod.

Fimmnce enpenoes compsisn mbaresd paxahle on hormaing. Sermowing oo that ane ol dinecily attribatshis
t the acqoisitios, sesatruction of prodection of & qualifsing msser are recogaieed In profic o kods usleg e
elfectivg intvrrst mathal
lhbhﬁnmmummHfmhmmhd}mﬁhmhmmmmmﬁm
a1 by prodece b Gonm per e mee of imenen on The ressainisg balamoe of the Habiline

Taies

LIRS Currenl Incosme Tay

Cuireni incorse oy assety and Esbilities are measured m dhe amomnt cxpeciod oo be reomamod from or paid 1o
the tncaiion authoritizs. The S rdes and tax laas wied S0 comepuiie the o] e ok hal e enaclol of
subntamvely maial, o the negoitog date is the coundrnes wihere the Cempany operases and peeersies xable
T

Curenl [noome o delating b e recopnived deecly i ecguity e oecogniied in gquity and nol in the
siatermerd af profit or ks Slenapemen petiadically evalusies poshiond tioen b the 1ax resams with respect
T ttuatives in which applicabie oo regulsions e subject to imepestation and eatablished proniaion whane
appropriaic.

HIRET Deferred Tan

Tielmired 1 i o ided wibng the labibry medssd on cemparary differenocs bohaetn ghe 1ay hasct of aasetd
and liaitinies aad thair caryisg amouati for finandial eporting perposcs o the reporing dete

ihefamed lax Jiabilities s recogrisad for all lanable eeporany differeaces, except

When the deferred cax labllisy arlios B e iitial eroegnilion of poodwill of an sset o llebility Ina
ransaskon Thal ool o Busares cofibinodion e, o fes Lo of the trans thon. alfosts noither the acimnting

pradil e Wikl peofit or s

Diedorrod s awests aey recogniued for all deductible tempomny dilferonces, the iy ferwerd af umacd i
erodi and sy ursded s kesses. Deferred s assets e recogniiod 1o e cxlin e [ [y probakle dhai savablz
prafil will be svailshl: agansl which the dedactible lempmy dilfenmmoes, sl the gy Torwand of saused
wix oredis pd s wx bsses can be wiilived, exoops
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Period saded 31 Dievesber 2622

19

Wihen the dlelverad tan mike relving 1o e dodsaibls cmpoceny Silenmsese ariksy m#ﬁlﬁﬂwﬂh
ael o @t or lishility inon trassstion et & ool @ business oombisa ios ond. ol e e Of the Tmasaoios,
afezan itk the sdsreming profil ser tavsbds prolil or ko,

The carrvioy s o de ferred fax aviets is eevivwnd at sach reporting dane aned resdosed 85 the culend that (1
it e Bomeer prohalile that saffcient maible prafit will be sviailable io oflow all or purt of e deferned 1o gasel
#o bo ilbsod. Usercognibsed defomied tax aseets are ne-asoecved an each reponting daie and we recogaied 10 the
eaerl llaal i) btk Boens pocble that futete Leable profin will allow the defernad Lo sisct 1 be rosinened,

Drefeveel ey Sascts nd Rabilines ane meiuned ol ISe R et thal aie espesiod 1o apgly in e vear whes the
asset B realised or he Nabiliy s scifed. bared on tax raies (and v lews) that have beea enacted or
smbalsntively eracted ai the sopadting date. Deferrad 15n relating o jlemm pecogniied sxtile prafi of ias i
MHMFumnmmmm-emmmnthgm
cither i O 2w diectly in equiy.

Delferevn] fay svsci ard deferem] (o Habiliien amg allfed (Fa lopally mdsteeable fphi exists 10 sol oV 2urmen|
Ban pseds mmanl cme da et ies and ihe deferrrd taves celsie 1o de e tavable miiy sl the same

Ravatinm zoa Ty
Sinlement of coh Mow

The Statement of Cink Flom has boen prepamed using (he “Radivet Mahod”, |alérent paid sl claiiafiod i
eperating caih fows, dividends eochezd mre clesified o Investing cash fows whike dividends peid sd
Grvpammeend granie moocivied ane el w financing mash fows, Sor e purpoiee of prewsrdiizg dhe Cmh Pl
Sasreen L

Sepmenl Repanting

Sepgmental mrmation is provided for the dilfotet i s ecdnimet iof B ooy, Faesince segmmialon.
s baen determined hased on 1he estere of paods provided by the company xfice eonpidaring the rdk and
weveards sl cach Tipe of pradust. Since the individual scaments are oo close 1 ssh o wnl opersle i
thee s industs il envirenmend, the pesd for peographical sepmeenanion has po matarial impact. The activities
of the sepmanes are described bellow,

Plamdatians Hydrs Pawer Toaul
Lroup Fi g i T2 oz ™z T3l
{ Rty | [ Ra ) i P, 0l 1 ) |y iy 1P, (e

[Py e— LY E— FERIT) - PR -
Gres Prof | 120488 | - 1E.146 = FLTINTS =
Net Fimamcr | (159037 | - (15.5006) . (178.345) :
Cost
Frefit TR 53} - 1.RKT, 407 =
i Befare Tay
ITI':u {A,135) 5 z = 13,135} 5
Fapensiy
Frofit Aler | LETEN™ a T am - [ELTEE 3
Tan
Total Awats | 720154 - 262,151 . T AMI05 =
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WOTES T THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Prisd ke 71 Mheesmiber 3002

&

LSE OF FATIMATES AND JUIHMENTS

The preparaiion off Financsal Staiemimis in oo Boemity with S0FES noquines mesnageesesl e make judprmeris,
skt dind dadumataens thil siflessce the appiaition of sccoussing policies and the reported amoents of
asits. labilices, income and oxpemacy. Medpmams aed eetimatds sen bassd on BEercal expericnos and other
Tctern, inchesling esprolation tel are helleved o be reaseawble oader e cicesiimsce.  Henee, sl
enperience aml resslts may 3iffer fem e jodpmsents and exlimates

Enlmates end oraferlying ssoemption: are seviewed oo e ongoieg hasis.  Hevisioos i scoanting sslimabes
e rppegriiged in the peviod m which The simies i revieed, iT Bee fevinm affects oaly that pesiod and sy
Titwee periodds alFecied

information wboad sigsiflcam o of estomation snoonainty and eritksl dgmenis in spplying scomanting
licies thei B the el adpanlicas effect on e s ousti becopieand 1o the Flrincis Steemems moincludsd
i the following motes.

Taaadios

Current inoomns Lax vty and Babililic anc mcanuned of e asssunt expecied 1o be secovered Trom of paid 1@
the Loofon mikorizies, The tax moes and 1ex lews wiod ko compuie the smsund ane thise thal ere moacied or
subgardivdh macie], sl B repoding doio w the Grriries wheme the comspary’ ogeral aitd sl tivhl
e

Agconding io The Inlmnd Reverue | Amendment) Bl 10 amend the Inlmd Povense A, o, M ol 3317, Agr
Fatming it exomip Tre ingoms tao, for o paried of 5 yean olfective Bom 0] Al 2009 and Ageo processing
i linkslem | 0% Bor firad siv momths sad 30% ic lakde for the wecond six moaths. Accondingly. where applicable,
the company hai scpateted | insems Bed exponae & Aghe leming end Agro Procening md applisl e
PeEpertive iy i Subasdiany oompany is liabie for Soeme by m mentioned balew

Woaverty Fower (Pri) Lid;

In mocoutanpe. winds the Inland Beverur At Na, B4 of 20 7 ard sulbsequen] ol e herd Lo, 15s poin pany
il b incams 1ax 50the ia%e of 14% for E2pl iin mordks and 19% i3 liskle for the sevond sis months

Dieferred Tax

Defered tax s reoognized on dilformaes hetwoen the camying ameutis of s and [ i fhe inincisl
salernonts sl thes coeroyponding lay, bases (kneoe i semporary difermoesh. Deforred i labilitcs s
eecognized for all bemgporary dilforonecs that e cxpocied to inercass Iiable profil e the fulure, Defired 11y
it re pecegnieod or all sempemry dilferonoes that are expected io feduoe tanasle profil in the Tuere, and
iy unined dan e on umeed L oredies, Eafiored G asagts e meaoed &2 e haghtl e that, o
M B oo covmenl iy esliinalad funere 1oabile profiL, & mede Bty than not o be recovered.

The et errrying srmount of defernod 0 sssels i reviewed o sach reporfng deie and i sljusded 1o nofled the
curreer assesmeni of Tebere taeable profigs. Any adjusneat s rogo peined i proli of leds.

isederred Tax s caloulated @ iha iy rates that e expeciad o be appiod e e wiable wofic (o o fosss of
b it I kel it et e dlfinined Lo fised b be realized or the defiomed s [iability 10 be sesled, on
b bl of Lax raaes that have been enacied of subnlamtiviely aeaoiod by the emd ol the repoenisg pered.
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Agarapatana Plaptations Limited
MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
Patiod ended 11 Degeaiber 1002

45

Hetbremend beaelli abligmibns

The presend vales of B metoemenl bone ohligsticn detaormingd esing actoacial valustiony. An scharial
valusinn mvolves making verhouw sanmptons tol may Jifee (rom sctesl developments o the Pebure. These
imclude e deberminalion of the dhsount rate Tolaie mlany mdrcaies asd merality sates, D 1o the
eomplevitiss isvolied in the valuation and it langaserm ratuee, & defined bonefic obligarion s kighly sensive
0 chareges i hesn " Al plicid we fvies od i gach repodling perbed,

|madetermining the apmoprisie discowmel rals, munapemend onrdidicrs. B intiresl rades of S Lanka gosemmend
teands with maiorntes cormegpondlng o the evpecned durmion of the delined besefic obligation. Tive maraliny
e is hasad o publichy availehle mortality Bibles. Fotoes salary incresics mro baund on expoctod feking
inftasasn rme and expecied finore safary Incresee rates. of the Company .

Fair Vabsation of Comcemable Bickeical st

The fair value o manaped timber deporats on pumber of [ciors el me deloemingd on 8 descoumiod cash il
e i il il b, o FTieresnr et e on- financia] saumpeions, The prowth of she roes s desarmingd
by various binlogical fscion thet arc hipghdy snprodiczable, Any change to the asamptions will impect the Tl
value of Bisiagical snee Al aspempiions sre reviewed s eac i iroporing period

Bearir Daloghcal psaets

Thie beaver clogiond paet ane mezswed 3 cost less seoumalasnd doprocialion aed scusuliied ispairmen
b, I sy, i derea 6l LECAS 16— Propesty Plast & Equipment.

The cont of land prepesation, schabihonien, mew plhoteg, repdand i, Coop droe rmifioabon, mier plarding ad
fetiliring, eic . incomed betveean ihe timg of planting and harveiZing {when e plialod el sraix mstug ),
are chiifiod an immadure pleatsliona. Thiie fematere plamations ar: shown m direct costy plos atritasbis
crvarhiemds. The expenditine incurrod om hivarer Baslop i orts which cormes inta beating dering ey,
irpmadareed 1o smtes plantation.

IFRIL lalerpreistion I3 Uncertainly over fncome Ten Trestoent

The kierpietmies addrees the accmenting for ingome taves when tax Ires Lot by that
affiocts the application of LKAS |2 Incvms: Teyes. The Cempany spplic Hmrlﬂlndmmmhrdmuh-
I LIS e ST T 1% drestmeends, Soce e Company operaiod i 8 oosp ke envipaament, it Eisiscd
whether the [sterpretalion had 20 fmpact o is finencial suemests The Company determined that @ i
erohakic i sty treamins wiil b acorpied by the taxation authorilics. The Entarnaation dis v have an
Impact <= the fnancisl il the Corep

SR LAMKA ACCOUNTING STANIARDS (SLEES [ LEAS) 1550 ED BUT 30T YET EFFECTIVE
The new aiid ariendad siandands and interpretations that anz [350cd. bu ned yet effectihve, up o the dae ol

insuance of dhe Company”s firsmciz] maisments are diselosed below. The Company inerds 10 sdopl deeu e
ndl areerled simwlandh md instpretations. (€ appdicable. whim ey become gt

-2%-
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BOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Perjud smial §l Desember HIZE

&l

SLFRS 17 = lmwrasos coniracts

SLERS 17 s a comprehonaive new sssourting mandeid for miunesd: coslracti Sévering recognilion msd
AL preieaodion and dischosure. Onoe effective, SLFRS 17 will replace SLYRS 4 [nspnmoce
Contractn [ SLFRS 47 thal wa biued in 3005, SLEFRS 17 spplies 1o alll types of msumsce commets {Le., b,
sfi-file, dAFe it i e - FTMTEOE |, mudwmdmm1hw1m.unﬂlum
wriain guasan e sl Mndng] alropoks will Jlsndissesy Featuiei & S5 SE0pE Bl cplion
will spphy. The overall cifective of SLFRS 17 13 10 providie on soceunting model for insurndcs eonimacts that
hm{u-pu\kl‘plpdl,'_h.hﬂinc'—mhrﬂ.lw.ilh.rq.innrrdnnﬂ-flﬁl.uhhhmh]ﬂrhtr.[
o prandidbaing previous local sccourcieg polickes. SLERS 1T prevides & compeehensive model for
immrancs comtractn, muverieg all sl aistunting mgects. The corc of SLEFRS 17 i the generl moded,
smpplemiied by

= A apecifec sdamation for conracts with Seect pariicipation fratunes (the varivbls oo approach)
= A simpliSied appeoach (the prosiem eiecation seproach] malaly for thof-divasion cosrscn

KLFEA 17 i effective Bor amnial repoctling petiogds bepisning oa or sfizr 1 Janoery 2028, with comparathes
figured required Early appiication by pennlesd, prosided the omtity ateo applies SLFRS 9 and SLIRS 15 on
o befre the date it Bird mpphis 51.FES 17, The amendimest afe ol ssproel 1ohave s miorial impact on

The Circasp

Oefinlilen of Acrounting Fadimates - Assrnidmests je LEASH

The amendments clarify the diginstion batueom changel B scccuming silisaio wd chimges 8

poficies wred the comeatioe ol enors. Ao, ey chanify hine entiibes v mersmome chnigues and inpes 1o
dhevelog acoounding edimais. The suendad standand claifics that the £ffects on an sccouming eximaie of a
whenge m e inpet or & chasge in & measuranent techakque arz changes i atioasting citimalo iF by da el
result trom the cormection of price period et

The mniendments are eifectne far snmnl repoiiing povinds beghmg o oo sfier | Janary 2025, Fafior
applkcation s peymitied. The snesdments anz not expestod 1o e i eeterinl irmpact on the Group.

Pheferred Tan rebated o Avonts mid Lisbilities srising from 8 Single Trassacthon - Amassdments fo LEAS
1

The amendmems clarkly thar where prymmits S sewlle & fnbifity are dnlectibls G fax ey, [ B a mager
ol judgement (Baviag comideoend fhe appliable b lowh whether soch deduction sie stristable foo fa
restpames b the Dlabsility recogaisad in the financial staitmonty (and fnterent expemac] or 10 the selaied s
componeni. (and Inbescst oxpendsh. Thi edgsment i important & deierminiag whethar any ooy
differonces exinl o initisl recogsimnn of the ssset mnd liahility.

Ay, urellei W eriigradirenls, (2wl recopritean cuceplion dod nal apply to Exmadlioed el on indie
recopaition, ghve riss 1o eqinl taxable sed dedacible lempoeary differences. 13 only appiees if ihe recognition
of 0 lease midet and kanse Loy (o deconmmsiboning linsliy od docnmminioning s commpotenth give
rice o imaable and deductible limporasy dlferemnes tht afe Aol Sgul.

The smesdments wre efoctive Far mmal reporling periods Beginesng on o afler | Jmeary 2073 T
snmdrmenbs are sol exjeciod 10 heve 8 malerial impact on the Group.
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Plamiations Limived

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Period ended 31 Deoember M22

Dischasure of Acvaunthig Policis - Amosdments to LRAS 1 and IFRS Practise Satemos

Amendments o LEAS | md IFES Practioe Stalement 2 Making Matertality Jadpements, prnvides guidance
and examples b help eatities appdy materialiy Fedgemonts to sccoiniing policy Siccledurce. The amendmiceia
i Lo help catitien provide aceouling policy o efoseres that e made ueefiol by

v Replacag do requicemem for onomes 10 disciose their “wgmiicam' scomuntmg pobows wieh @
reguzperiign b thachiee has “malecial” sccounting paleios

o Adding geidands oo how eniliict mpphy the congept of materialine in ciaking decishons abint
wenunting policy dicknuns

The wrcadmenti afe ¢Moctive Nr anmosl reponing poods begineing on or after 1 Janmary 2073, The
mesdments wre rot expoctod 10 Sve o materal impact oo the Geosp

(lassification of Lisbilities a8 Currenl or Mon-cureenl - Amesdments o LKAS 1

Smewdmenis. fo LAY 1 Presenlation of Financial Sistemenhs spoeily fhe reguiements (o clmaifymeg
Inatalitacy &6 Cufmonl of Ron-current. The srsendmerds <larify,

WWhai is mcard by & righi 5o defer seslement

Thart a rghe b0 delfier muss el o the oed of the roparting periad

Thadt classilicaiion & aralFeciod by e elibood el an ey willl eiosnsing it deferral Hight,

Tt enly §f an embedded derivabive in @ comensble Babeliny i italf an oquily imsment wold the
tormm: of a lahility o pact 8 claddifizalion

v gkt

Thee Gireup s cormmiby sasewing ihe impact ihe } will | curtenl practloe

a3k
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ANNEXURE 4 - RESEARCH REPORT

Kbt Evmetbigor (D8 2S00 T SO0E. 4 | Bl (o8 12 FEEIS A0S

AGARAPATANA PLANTATIONS LIMITED

Research Report
15 March 2023

© cAL

Lol 0, Bllenmiurn Hrouse, $6/58 Naveam Mawatha, Colomioo 07,
5 Lanka

W, Capital Alllsnce Fartners Limited ("CAL™) hereby declare that we posseis the reguisits
aNpartie 1o perfode repodts of this naturs invelving & guoted company whersin, we sxpect the
Company Ao be categorized under the GICS Secior Clanification: Food, Beversge and Tobeoa,
Wa Tusthedr declare that the Resesrch Repsrt hai besa propared in confodrity with the
dischcaures sinted In the "Guldance Note' pertsining to the preparation of o Valuation/Ressarch

repert.



172 Agarapatana Plantations Limited

ANNEXURES

s fign Erressiops 0T BARRIOE I S Col 87 - G 55 N4 A W00

The Baard of Déreciorn,

Aparapatana Flanations Limited,
53 11, 5ir Baron Jayatilaka Mawatha,
Codomba 01,

&ri Lanka

Dear Srfildadam,

Waluaticn Report to the Board of Diregiar and Shanchelders of Agarapatana Plantations Limited
on the proposed Inktial Public Offering

We, Capital Alliance Pariniers Limited, in the capacity of Maragers and Financls! Advisors to the initial
Pubilic Difering (0} of Agarapatana Plantations Linniled (hereinaduer eefoned 10 a5 "WAanapers 1o the
Idsse ™), wish o subriit the enclosed Beiseanch Report in acoordance with Secticn 314 o) of the Listing
Ruibey of thee Colomeho Siock Exchange.

Flease find enclosed henmsith the detailed Research Report for yous refenence

Thank you,

Yours Talihiuly,

CAPITAL ALLIANCE PARTRERS LIMITED

R o B Wy

Mol dpmasbira

A LT A
Nishok Goanasehers
Chied Executie Oifcar
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Tadwg 5 T ¥ EWiHoctang Asative. 21
Tadale 5. £ Fulibietan Relatve Sprsitsety Analen =22
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1.0 Introduction

1.9 Executive Summany

CAL vakied Agarasatana Plartatiors LUmied ("APL") "Company™} by utilzing three relatie
valuation mathode P/ Relative, EVHactare Relataar and P/BY Relatioe 1o anrtve ot o value for
the Company, We have concluded that APFUs value per share s LER 16071 based on above
mentioned valuation mefrics PYE Relative. BV Hectane and POV

Wie woukd alvo B to point out that the [PO offer price of UKR 900 has been priced ot 2 18%
dEeount e ol valiston price of CKR 1073, Tt [BOY disooaurmt 4 saosded 10 imvestan o
presce B poterdinl Lpdsds on the invesiment

e 1- F balagton ARsmodadogy

PER 1210 25 62%

Py 1.90 (1255%
Evitedtan: LEd1] pL g
10.73 16.15%

i Uk P S S HaTAIT A [P LI B 0 T AT MW T SRR LS 0 T v B A Ao et

The Macket Based Vafuation methods setout herein of the company, s deperident upan the
relathe size af The P EPERET eleihegd el acton 5 oal the Reoarnh Rapart i
COMERnEoN b The company,

W conddered thens methods 1o grovdde an inbintle value for APL's ondinary vating thareg
ard concluded that all three mathods wem appropeiate and therofors have assigned an equal
verhgphting die bo the following reasom:

8, PER: There ate direct competton tor APL Ikted on the C5E with & readiy svallable
marioet value. Far ihe peer Comparison, we Riee considened several Bacton] (S8 Section
5 far more detsil] wuch a8 crap grown and slivatian in order o thatlist e aoar
suiabin tea plantation companes, A such given they Rave a readily establshed
miareet value driver by damand and suppy, we deemen ehi valuation methodoalogy
to be appraphate.

b RV Given that, the beological assets of the company are the main assets of the
Bartimids aned s Bumction of whet devees reere. A duck, s e uied comparsbis
peer maltiples and deem this yaluation metnic to be approprate & well
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¢ B¥F Hectamy: The $V/Hectars method b5 the Fral method that wo consdempd. This
e rofaC L e vl chvreed frm iR BEAl manu e extent of the gron CroD fiw @
pawrtaticn ooemgany which in edfect i the revenue diriver for 2 plantation compary (Mo
of Hectares ™ Yield per hectare * WSA& = Bevenuel Hence v deemied 8 B0 be
apprapriabe, Additnaly, this metre normalimes the valiestion across lang extent in
adidfition o considering carmings.

Congdering the abowe, wi used a0 equal weightage for a¥l threr methododiogies for the
prirpiie of Ardng af the fair value of Ondinary Yoling Shares of APL

12 Objective of the Report

[ry accordance with the "Suidance Mobe”, TAL Kis presdaced this research repont to prowido the
biasls behind the relerance prica far the isting of the ordinany voling thares of the Companm
APL 15 3 b lanEaian cofmpdny dpanaliing ik only High Gaown e The Soard of Densctan
of this compary' hopst to pubdichy lisk ke shares By way of an [PO fo ralse a tofal of LKA
TATEING9 of which LKA ET24630599 of the funds wdl be' ublzed to plrchase Plant &
Mg himery gnd the remulnieg will be utilited to repay Pigh-cost debt of LKR 75,000 000

IR T8 Pt LR
Fund Ublzation Estpesctid LTl ization
{LER) Timedino
Part & Machinesy 672500999 PYI03/24 8 FY 202025
Highe ot Da bt Repamymaent 75000, 000 Y2234
Total Funds Raised TAT 630,999 :

1.3 Waluation Summary and Recommended Refershon Price

Thie raie badow somn aut 1he firdingd from e walgation merhodoiogies menianad aidve
Flegse mefer Samion 50 - Vakanon Resss for b mone delased discuesan

T |- 3 it Turtsfidny
Ao g
: Imirinsic Walus of Eguity Value Per Share
- L e L s

Mlethad Wieightage (LKR) (LKRY'
T Relathe 3% 5086257872 1210
FIEN Ropdative 3% L ETI400 B4 T.50
W Hectan Relative 3% 066205023 1250
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Valus Per Share ‘If!-'-'!
Diiscomant 16%
9.00

Reteronos Price

B ST (WF PR ee-d T TR M ALy AR LA S T 0 U e S SR T gl O S 1 e i (3

Bk o the CQMWI}'Ii Eaishness ooaratnng the incdusery and the Hﬂiﬂﬂ radRiples Of papr
companes, CAL conciudes That APL shares would Fave Average price per share of ¢ LER 10073
ard hernce recommends LKR 8.00 per share as the reference price.
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2.0 Owerview - Agarapatana Plentations Limited

[reorporated 1992, Agarpatana Plantations Umited 5 a mono-crop, tea only plantation
arl bione of the largess planatien companies in S Lanka with 31 tea estates spread soross
the high grown negion of Agras Valley kacsted in the Dimbula Distrct of Nuwara Efya and in
the Uva Distdet of Haputaie. The Compary hat & land extent of ¢ 10000 hectares with &
mature ebent of ceer 6000 mectares for the cultvation of pea

Thee: b ak)rC-<limatic Fegions in wiich APLs estates are located are ideal for producing high
quality tea whith offers the distinctive favours and aromas of tea groen in a varety of
alevanians aomiss agho-climatic zenas The Company hisover 14 fully equipped faceories which:
manufactees and handies the entee peeducion peocess of Ted Sdditionaly, thee ae 3
factonies that process refuse tea

Vision of the Company

“Tor be the foremest prodiucer of highequalty Tea in d conformity with desined guadity
requirement,”

Misslon of the Company

“Ter presdire the kghest gquality tea whilst protecting and preserving the environment ard
safeguanding the mnterest of the commeirsy with whom we work with, mmpiowing our asset.

base, developing our empiyee base and providing vadue to our sharrholders™
Values

APL followes the 3 Aimdamental val wes:

®  Iniegrity
& Courape
s Commilnsent
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10 Industry Overview

11 Global Tea Industry

Global Tea consumption sxpected bo ecrease by 2025

Discovered around 2 7008L, tea & comiidensd to be one of the oldest beverages in the world.
Tea currently represerts one of the most consumpd bnerages in the world, after waber
Aoeording o Stanisen; global consumption of tea amourted 1o 6.3 Biilion kSagrams in 2020
and s forecasted to reach to spproximatety 7.4 bilkon kicgranis by 2025 due to the increating

T A3 PR S TOEE DEIT O P D POYL PORIE NOEIE MPIE MUEE

RO I 2w AR e S oy 2 TR TR it s Pl i v m i Smnnetnd ) e sy JELT T
3.1.1 By Trends Drielng Tea Damand

Saueral manet deivers haye holped boost the consumption of beaduih a5 rise in the dEpasadie
ircame of consumers, the availatelity of dverse Ravors of tes and the awaneness of health

berslics of reqular tea cormption. The COVID-19 pendemis accalerated a number of
exiging trends in the tea ndstny and has influenced the Baying patterns of the consumers,

Affordability

Tea is peroehied as an inex pansive Brverape which makes it affordable 1o all socio-eoonomic
groups especialy in diveloping marken such as ndin 85 most conwimes belong te k-

L=
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IP e eoia, in addmon; duk 1o #5 Srong usomie acceptance, o s conamed on m daily
batsds i the Asia andd Eurape regian,

Health Benafits

The shift Badedd. B8 iImprovement of Fealth i the Mo predsing rendd The COVID-19
pandemic scoelbrated attenton towards the improvement of Piaitf durkng the st two years.
Mary awampness campaigns were Inifiated giobaty to kighlight the health beosfits of
contlming ratural food and beverages and Incraasing heath fiskt of consiming catfeine: The
Feaaith Banelits of i ke among the main fscused sress of these campaigns.

Mo from Ordinary Tes to Pramium Tes

With the effects of the COVID-19 pardomic. tea comumens have wtarted 1o explome new
favain (n e tea market This 5 due to thelr [ntertion to ook ko heashy ard ledsny
beeerages. Consumers.ans Endfeati ngly demanding erganic ingredients, and diveryEed Blends
ardd flwoirs: There bs sl growing intensst i higher-guality speciaity teas wfth green tes
antl fru't teas galring popstarity. emechally in Europe, cwing to percesrad health banefits, A5
a resilt; demand for premium flacurs |5 an the s a5 there i a ndency to iy out new
Pl

32  SriLanka Tea Industry

Tea was first culthvated and marufactired durfing the Brtish era. Today, the tea Inchetry in S
Lanka plys & vital role i the economsy and ower the years, Teylon Tea' has also gained
reaqRiton Bs ane of the finest teas that is prodiosd in the warld 54 Lanka i the 4™ bigges
o W@mﬁghﬂhnﬁhlpﬂﬂiﬂhshndiﬂﬁlnhlml iphene
arsd constifutes ¢ 13%° of the glotal demand.  Tea i ane of the langest freign exchangs
samarsin the countsy, aocounting for ¢, 106%° of the cowntry total exports n 2021 and 465"
of the 1oks! agrisuitune exports in the tounty. The agriculiune tector provides employment i
£ @T%* of the total empioyed populaton of SA Lanka and the tea industry Tn paricular
provides bour to reary 1% milion people in 5q Lanka (o 13%* of the tofal empioyed
populstion of St Larks).

401 Lanka mainly produtes orthodo teas and s tea bs renpwned for s Bgh guality, aroma
it tasbe. The country has been in the forefront of tea pxports o the warld market and has
miintaining tha positicnr over the yean  Tea cutivation takes place in three major
geographical Fonet High Couniry (7,000m), Mid Coumtny (500m:-1, 200m) and Low countny

! nclisitry Capabslity Report (Propaiod by Export Development Bosed). 2027

CBAL Anvwal Beport (Prepamd by Central Bark of o Lankal. 2037

"B Bt Sacid Peclrmase [Fropard by Centrl Bank of SnLenk k. Nowornber 2032

* S Lankiy Lybaar Force Susey [Prepated by Deparmrient o Cerdin & Stk Thiel Quarisr 222
'mewmmmwmma

mn
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(B0 The hgh grown tea |s wedely used in maey guality blonds m Gormaery ard lapan, the
e ) g r0a B i5 podw e m dtralla. Europe Fapde and Noeth Aemecics, wibbnead ths low
grossm tea w popudar in Westorn dsla, Middie Eatern countries and CIS and SRICS countres,

The Colombo tea sittion showed slevated prices for tea in 2022 conpared to 2021 and
the pre pandemic bvels, The prices ame expected to stabilize with improved production
globally and in Sri Lanka in the coming year.

A significant increase of alrmast 95" was observed |n intermational tea prices during the thind
guiwter of 2022 reflecting lampe increases at the Colemba and Dofata mectoes {12 and 11
percert, reapectyel The prce strength refects decining globe! tea suppies by major
producers and exportent, S Lanky continuss 1o fedch thee highest prices across the thres main
i actions with o price of LSD 449 per kg In Septembar 2023 which was maseadly hghser
than the prices ferched 80 toa - pucticors im ollaty sl Mombass due o the premiem that
‘Cevien o’ commands thal bad-led B an intnease in Sefmand

USS/kg Awerage Tea Price Across Colembs, Kolkats and Mormbasa

8 A A A m A H A A
i 3§ & £ 5 & i 3§ %
o lkpty  w—Coloenbn = Woenhe

Eoiwre ooty fecbedr Sitdonk (Fropaen’ By Bbaks’ Rl | Deaoder S0
Tiea Industry te have i strang growth in 2023 amidst political turbulencs

Thie tud production it 2021 mecrded an cverall growth of 7.5%" and the production of high,
medium and low groen fea expandisd by 4.5% B9% and 805 in 3021. The cummdative tea
production during lvuans: Decamber 2022 totaled 1o 251° million Kigs®. racording asignificant
diecrease of 4T84 mdllon Ko companed 1o 2021, due 10 the banning of chemnical lBrtszen

‘EWWMMMMMMM'

" 'Woikd Bank Creesmiadty Pracet Dortw [The sk Sy = WMoty Duts] (Prepuved by Workd Bank) 2003

¥ Wi hen b b miT oMMt A -k T B S - B bl P tenn | Aonns sod on 25 Fateuary
Fabel]

&
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ard the ecomomic onss At the recessonany condetions of tha country, relabrely Inelastc
demand patterns ad rong eenoit valumaes ane evident, ardicipating that the s industny
veoald memain sinong en the coming yeass despite the Uraine -Sussi conffct

irbemartionad buyers ame darting 1o pay higher peices dor the 50 Lankan tea for their blond”.
hodinionalty, ghaen that the wage revisionof 183 plarbers toox plaoe in 3021 and the sanificant
rupee depreciation. i & predicted that the industey would Rurther beaefit in the year 2023 due
to expected hike In production accompanied with the high tea pices at tea auctions, thut
reducing the stair an the plartations marging’

Govermmant measwnes that were sndertaken to strengthon the tea H.uh"-

The Colombo tea auction Is the singie langest tea auction in the word. Amidst the covid
pandemic the govermiment introdused & e-fuction wyitem which wis & rranmpmm
Im thar Bz EncbusEry that m'nngﬂ'm'lud'ﬂ'ulm trade. This ensunes the comtinuiby of supphy and
domand and cash fow and alkws brokors and seflen to calaogue thair teas aledinonically
alloradrag e 1o bid arine',

PR MMMHWWWT&W}.M
“Thee repoet & pbibehad o the DAL Portal whikch is B 5o negerinned v, Thas Lol outiook on tha planatioa
wre i ma prepare im fuby S0 dnrd e el mer hee ued Bt inkneason

3
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4.0 Valuation Methodology

CAL ponsidened the following valmation methodologies in onder to arive ot & Fair value for
APL's shares basid on the relevance and appropristeness of the respective valuation
mathodalogy for o plantaton compaey.

= PER Relathoe Vatuation
«  PfEY Relative Valuation
e EVHectare Relatve Valuation

4.1 PER Relative Visluation

The price-To-eamings rath (P ratao) meddures a company's curmant share proe nedathee to i
Eaenings Per Share [EPS) The price-to-easings ratio or P/E s one of the most widely used
ftock anakis boak by mettars and anabts bte determining A share's valuation

The melatose value for APL's shares using a PER woutd be'calou lated as follows

P
Impliod Vobee of APL = [In.l'ﬂ.lr:'.: af APL # Ek-ulrl,pl'n]-

Whese
P/E Mitipls: Average of the Peer Group P/E Mudtiple
Earnings = Profit difributable to Equity Holders of APL

4.2  P/BY Relative

A BJEY ratio misisunes s companys marioet valie to i book vafue. The booi or [iquidation
valum s badad on balanos sheet & counting values. A company’s price per share i determined
by appbing the POV mthe of it nearedl paer oF ompealie Daer o to T compahy's
bodk vakie

Thir reelartivee waluse fow APL'S shisrers using & PYEW ratho would b caleuiated an fallows:

heepbicie Vaslue of APL = [.lur Per Share of APL « %Hue.prr}

Whare:
/Y Mailiphe Average of the Peer Group PYEV Multple
MAN Par Share = Mot Asset Value Per Share of APL

T4
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4.3 EV/Hectare Relative

EV/Hectar is o vrustion metric commenty used B value plantation companies. It reflects the
virlee dertoed from the total mature extent of the grown crop (lea, in this cave). The relatve
value for APL's shanes using an BV Hectane ratio wousd be caloulated as follows:

Imjaticic Vaiwe af APL = {.-ru.unr of Frciaries af AP, « ”_::m numprrj = Ve Pt
Where:

EViHectare Multiple = Weighted Average of the Peer Growp EViHectare Multiple

et Debt = Interest Bearing Debt = Cath and Cash Saquivatents

Enterpeise Value (EV) s defined as the sum of “market capalization of Hsted share oduy
market value of debd leis market value of cash and securities. EV s 0 measure of the producthas
eapacity of an ertre Firm irespective of it indebtedreds or cath holdings. Comparies having
similar market capitalzations or sharrholder values "5V} rnay have very different enterprise
i

15
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5.0 Valuation Pesults

This section detalk out the ssumplions used for the valuation and resulis based on the
varluailon methods described in Sacfion 4.0 = Valuation Methodology,

The group tompany consits of Waverly Power [Pt} Lid snd Agarapatana Plantations Limited.
Wity Power (Pvl Ltd was acquired in September 2022 to engage B bydem power
production ganerating ovar T megawalt of power ihat & supplied to the main electricisy board
a5 part of their renewabile energy stratedy. Howener, the revere of Waveely Power (Pyt) Lid
represents only £10% of the combiaed revenue o the past 3 pears {See Table bek) A1
saich, we have not carded out a seépanale vWuation. Howsver the peformance has been
irciisdad ad & resu® Baking inte contidesation Group nlimbers,

Lt F- T Lhveca Rarpiaiae

Wenrly Power (Poiled ABBDT 35405 000 30314
Agarapatara Flantatons Limited 4485527 4291538 3187556
Wiaverhy Power (Pe) Led Riverdis 5.5 % of

Agarapatana Plantation « Wivedy revenue 1075 0L 0945
oot e

CAL used the folowing Comparable Peers for the relatem valuation of APL The peer groap for
AL was selected Based aff the comapanies fsted under the pantation sector on the CSE Due
o ditheenoss in the crops prodice By plantaton companies, CAL chise the fliowing
companas bassd an the peor's being primarily tea producing plantations with most of the
estates docabed bn the high grown eegin

Wie would alsa Goe to bring b the neadesr’s sttention that the [PO price of LKA 900 per Sham
15 af a 6% discount to cur reference Point Vahution based on Ayverage of LKR 1073 for a8
three methods. This BP0 dscount is provided o investan n onder to provide & potental
Lz o the investment.

- Maskefya Plantatons PLC
_ Udagussellingg Platations PLC

4
£ Kelenl Valley Plastations PLC

Y. Balangods Plantations PLC

&
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The table below sncludes the comparable rato anafyss for APL Thosn ratos represent mule of
thiimb caiculations. with the vaioss varying dady acoandng 1o the closing price of & ghen
oownier. Therefore, CAL advises Imvestors not fo place much omphasis on single rabo
measurrs, particularky outliers and anomales.,

L 2 Errt il Moed Baresy

S -l st I m_
Hartern Flnuﬁw:rns P'H.'. 375 146 1;13 5,703,667
Bogawants swa Tea Estates PLC 320 153 1743 4,020,000
Maskaiya Plantaans PLC 20 121 [ 2212003
Udapusseilaws Mantations PLC 172 070 611 1E079T]
Talawakele Tea Estates PLC 21 0.83 303 4,227,500
“Kelani Valley Partations PLC 184 o 1034 4531 200
Rafangads Partations PLE 320 o8 BO% 3304 364

_Average 258w 1.03x 91

Soureer Bkl ovr Al Fiaancar Siatemenli of P MEremiad costyumais B e eae ceadved” 1 T Adaesy 2O
A 2 Wi CF Wl i i Feldent il TRARGR S S i el T DN SOERR il
AT el o B R WD, Bt o e el Finaocal’ SERNeEnendy o D JELRAT roerigiandl v
Pewcd ekl JI0T Do JIUL pudlelaect i e Clgeldl I (i pl llieion MTarkint - briea i iaguitymed
e el

"Nkl Capelalpriiy st 2P0 Pobvasey JOOT wivinly Bap Sewn mwrned S Gl B eackey fnifipoece
iy - Smite i regeaSeed e o)

Tiloing prive an i S Pobvny SR barorgm ooy sfuen B Bapda o e foaocd calprenn oy i ralig 1F
mromiin enciodd 1o Eipcwrebe JOLE Fiwe ook wadse dgeg' ned Gaf poution o hasesd' off the frungud Hasements
A% Ar S Ehecoemie J0AT

PR L AT (WVIOYRROT et B A T et AT R S Ll e cadk (ki poen o e BNt

Whare the data provided were incomplate, we have wsad reasanatle iudgmant and wa take
responsbifity for the same

Assbimgpticns identified by CAL in relation 1o the Valuation

Suiitabie poers were thade platabon Comparies, Feted on the OSE which pradadananthy grow
foa with most of the astams lecated at an slnaton of over 1,200m abow mean sea el (e
High Grown Teal, This has been referred to from the audted financi statements of the
mmmmwrmmhnmm publshad an e CSE Websibe, The
cultivated wadent of APL and the prer Comparies = afo assamed to bave remained unchanged
from thie date of hecr st respactve annual repot.

When ariving al the Average multies of ™e three valuation methodoiogien, CAL has
eeciurdpdl comgsan s that hag less than B5% of their plantations growing tea,

Lk
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51 PVE Relative Result

CAL used the trafing 12 Monih earnings as at 31° December 3022 of AR combimed wiih the
Avecage PE ratiod of comparabie peers (See Table 5-41 Baged on the 31" December 2002 fof
peefs) TIM Earnings and the 2 Tih Febmuary 2023 cosing thane price, the Peer Arerage lultiple

b2

Lt 3-8 P Rranve [omyspeaie Fore

Mkt
s {LKR000°s)"
Hattin Plantations PLC 5,703 667 1521015 375
Bnpievaitrlivns Ted Estates PLC 4020000 1,255675 320
Mashefa Pantstors PLC 2282093 0 LOAATHL 203
Lklapaseilowa Plantations PLC LEOT. 973 ALABE00 172
Talameakelle Tea Evtates PLE 4,237 500 2007 573 211
Kelani Valley Plastations 20C 4 091 300 2704 357 1.84
!-"..Euu:l.l Partations PHC 3,304 154 Q%452 LR
Shawcey BRln ot Aadind’ Fraidisil PrAtoiilil B TR0 Marvsulad dderiguaiin [y IRF pou Benhadl 1N Ragh OULT

b v Sy CRF Wb ana infioram Feasncad’ Sabemvnin B9 S pened pnalng #ler Sevemior JSELT andt
ST i S e O Wnsnile, SEna T o0 e deven AAncis Siainenande i e vt conmpisin v i
WﬂﬂﬂiJUWMJWHNMHMMW-MUW

T P

Tk Capradamee a5 at S Fodeange X008
Firmasir oy K o D U B cnusici e o chteemeods K (Be pinEng 17 mepaibs enced 517 Deciemier

LR

l.ﬁ‘l.:lilﬂiluemtnlaumm'ﬂ LER 1270 based on Peer Average Multipie.

Ll ¥ AR Rpkrven

-Appidng this ratio (comparabsy pear PUE) to APUE 31" Decembor 2003 TTM profie of KR

FAT for nine mgeiths ended 51" Decamiber

2021 HL N
“PAT tor the year erubed 317 March 20622 LR 78 Mn
PAT forsiva montte Shdd 31=TRCHIRAL it ey
APL TTM PAT (Withaut Waverty Power (Pt} T
Lely

:;;’rw ning mrnths ended 31* Decamber EXRCA M
FAT tor th yoar endied 31 hlarch 2032 LER 9 Mn

&
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PAT fr nire montins snded 31 Decermnber

023 LER 3 M
Waverly Power (Pl L TIMPAT LR Mn
APL TTH PAT DAth Wirvarly Powee (Pt L)+ LKA 1,951 MR
Number of shares (Pre [PO) ;416923669
Pest Average PJE : 2581
Equity Valus Per Share based on Peer :

. LER 12.10 Per Sha

S Basn on Auhind Finaanal Hanmeans of AFL Sor i poa erded 316 Masn ST and Cocodamad
Franci! Laramonts for i poniod eadent 2165 Docramber S22 (Lamviod rovieid and iodonim Faanodd Slamments
v st v ot ST ENAcomps 00

| eoaitid TTAS PAT 25 ap 31 Decombeer 2122 jeaciugtop TR RAT of Wanverly Power (Fiefy L1 Mies hes bren:
rakitod By dgng e PAT Sy i munitr cnied 37 Sooomber JILLF s PAT o (s Jase e J0EE Moy
M vt gmina e S tirgy tba FAT for i et ovtedond 75t Spernder 2071

it R AT o Wi .ih-?rr.hf.l.iu'.n ar 3 Docoaber 028 Ihay Hat Bt cublendladid By acisivig) e
PAF dox nine il gndvel e Evcirsinr S s RAT R it et ek TINR Adaerh JELE aecd deindier
rcabenpeking St HAT fbe e kit evackodd 3108 Blecarsiior ST,

Tohruattod P10 AT 21 3 317 Soimie U2 (kg FAMFA T 0 Wity Pinani (P00 LIS WG s i 02
i P i e ey T it e T R By Foualy (V) LA v F sl covetinest il & ety

ey foemant
faue 5o FAE Wi S donhss
FER +» 0% 14.60
PR+ T5% 1400 =
PER + W% 1230
Bine Case LPA [
PER- 10% 1090
PIR - 15% 1030
FER - 20% 570

52 P/BV Relative Result

CAL ecerepared tha Ad]isted Book valus of APL (Refier Table 5.8) to that of Average P/EV metric
nfmn_unqhh pers [5on Taohe 5=k Sased an the 317 Decemnber 2022 Equity Value and the
- ITth Febeuary 2023 Market Capitaization, the Peer Average Multiple & 1.03x.

s S ! PR Rt TvTaTalep Ao

ton Plantations PAC 315,376 5,703,667 T
_Bogawantalewa Tea Eitates PLC____ 263,124 s L
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Masietya Plantatons PLE 1526,706 22124003 L
dapuseitawa Fantations PLC 2581667 1807873 o
Talawakefie TeaEstatos PLL. 5068518 4927500 000 083
Ktan| Valley Plantations PLC 063,597 (4,951,200 _on
“Balangoda Fantations PLE 4221005 3,304,354 07e
A'IH'IF 105

Sovwre: Based o Lakbod Fraancal Sareamens oF (e Mo companies S dfe s pedon” S0 Adpanh R
Patsihod o Ao CFE b padt dndprim Feascal Fraroanaiie S M paned sackng BT Bevenider SO0
ST stk v e CFR Hbaln SErectan e Pl ITancas SENGmenis of [ e g compares Kar ithe
o ivind £ Doyl J0AP poblzhed o the Caps? I oot datelonce Farbump

'.I'h.ﬁ:r Wl a o T Dcrrmiety A0S ek cva i Ciriudhiind Eniievar Fandeicad! Rairari

¥t St it vt D7k Fbrianae AN

Appdrsg this rats [comparable peer BYBV) to APL's 31" Decemiber 2002 Adusted MNAV per
whare of LR T/61 per shame generates ashane pricesod LER 7590 bated on Pesr bvemge bultiple
of 108

el o P Bt

AL AV  LKR3SIE M
TMMW'W’ KR 341 M

APL Adjusted NAV' . KR 31750

Wbt of shates . 416929 ER

Adpited NAV per shate LT

Peer Average P/RV] LEAE

Equity Value Per Share based

_on Peer Average Multiple | R 7S0PerShare

S Bred of Comsoiilied fnancis’ Stavvemenis (or i ool sooked Jst December SO flimstad revea)
T BBV o Compaaniie Peo. Refer Tabie 5.7

¥ o e o AV 8 31 Dovemtver 120

it grocuteie o LAR 4P A8 [pre o Sixtasbilabed Sricisl SIatements S the prevod endiea’ F it Becenter
LI e Ak b R e s AV o LK 2305 b a3 ol A it il ansad andf
i 5 Pt Jey T SO Ot 73 e AW Sl i e Dy AL

it 308 WL Lo vttt B ALrifonin

T, T

PV + 20 940
P/AV + 15% 9,00
BV + 10% . BE0
e L 180
P/EV - 10% 7.10




Initial Public Offering 2023 | Prospectus

Doy B Eimplipn i 20AR0000. CONE-£ 1R G & FEMS A IR0

P - 15% 670
PEV-H &30
53 EV/Mectare Rolative Result

JCAL compared the Hectaraps of APL to that of the Averapk EVY Hectare muBipie of
comparable peers (See Tatle 5-10). Based on the iates svasable hectamge figunes, the Pesr
dverage BV Hectare [s L0 990,724

Fariid 5 1 SV Meimave Mirdibaie Oyt Moo

Hatton Plangtions PL 6,341,348

Bogawantalrwa Tea Estanes PLC 5813906 13363

Maskefiya Plantations PLC 332753054

Udapusseliawa Pantations PLC 1979822 3232

Talawaketie Tea Estates PLC 1253875 41390 N
Kelani Valley PlastationsPLE  6S07.298° 620 1038
Aversge 551

St Mol on Kot FRadacial STty oF T Mereael contglinioy fir ihe e eied 305 Aives AP
tiiatod v e CSF Wi v i Fisaeot el Sharecenits Ry thes i donchit 2158 Eioenlir 2003 vt
- P by v D I Wit Sy 0 e B PO’ SEARRRONT OF D A COMpanas Sor it
pﬁdﬂaﬂu’lmwﬂ*}m”w:‘ﬂq ekt dntelioanct PNk P

Ay Do i af PP e LR dridd Al O [RERR G B e Fotnaioe LR

il Tk ruabd e Salin] s B ek i1 0 Siculi Do o M VARG (A st oF S5 of b
e PRI e S e b e A Dl sty bitani it el 3 vt R gt
et . BN Ponkdurtion o minir saeinind. e i S ma stgisaeinr i e el e rstber
sy furvT

Appéying this ratio [comparabie peer EV/Mectars) to APL's hectarage of 416 Ha and
deducting the Met Daebi of APL generates a thare price of LKR 1220

ol 3 T 0w Rnlitae

_Numnber of Hoctanes of AL . BATE Hectares
APLDREY ; LKR 1,113 Mn
APL Bank Chardradt | LKR 285 bin
AR Cash . LER 10T kin
APL Mot Dot | LR T390 bin
_Peer Average EVifHectare® | LKR 990724
(Peer fverage £V Hectare) * _
Numiber of Hectavas of AP | LKR 6,356 Mn

21
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[Pwer Average EV/Hectare] =

miamberof Hedares of APL] - | KR 5066 Mn
AP Mot Dot

Equity Valus Per Shars based . | 057 o0 par Share

i Peer
Curce Bsedh vh Lol HOc rtanci SeNwesnn for [t pemiont ovecoed AT Do XD (it rivecen!

¥ fncd ciot AL eilare B nieniF O 4 0 i i 37 Docembior JEBF
Apociahes M e TR, i CLaTenl iyl By e 4 i G o e grigs
iy ol 8 ool oy Spctutingy Bl s egub B R oo dhodd i ek vl ol s gt

“Airvargr E¥eNankarm of Compaable Bpor, Reder lalde 510

Jebbe i T M Rl Sowntabagy el es

1530

EMfHectare « 2%

EVifHectaoe + 15% T4
_EViHectare + 10°% 1370
Basr Casn 23
_EVHectare - 10% 05D
EViHedtare - 15% 550

_EviHectare - 20% a0

- L Radi o
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54 Discounted Cash flow analysia

Giveri the oreasing and volatile interest rate onvironment cver the lask year, we felt that the
WACC assumplions, Le. The cost of equity, debt will be ovierly elevated due tohigh-risk frae
rates as & result of the courtns econdamis clish, wiich wil change cvpr the Coming years
Addtionalty, using 2022 peices.as a bade pce may lead o inaccurate ressis a4 loa prices e
ircreased signifcantly die b the LR deprociation which was an excoptional clroumstancs
Themetare. wir felt the discownted cash fiow analyss methodoiogy was rot apprograte and
thndine we hirve fot cordidennd insame-based vaiation methodoiagy.

55  MetAset Valuo

In almost every instance short of bankruptcy or its near equivaient the going concern
{sinats a5 usuall warth of 3 Lompany & mare than the bock alue. Baok or ligudation value
it Bated o0 Balanoe chest atcdinting e ThHis methad ignones the madod value of o shane
ared instead refem eichsiiely to balarce sheet values (adiusted for known off balance shest
assers ardd Rabifies). Given the NAY of the indidbdion companied is nat directhy related 1o the
eamings cabacity of the mepective ertilies based on the nature of operations, we have st
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6.0 Valuation Recommendation

Whe summarise tho rationale for our recommendation as folows:

n The PER Belatve valiation indicates a poce of LKR 12,10
«  Tho PV melathve valuation indicabos a price of LKR 750
+  The EVi-Heomare vaduadticn indicaies o price of LKR 1220

Wie conciude our valeation recommesndaton of LR 9000 for @ share of APL has been priced
A% a 18% discount bo the simple average of tha PER, FrEW aned EV/Hectars walisations
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7.0 Risks

The future performance of APL i subject to a ruimbes of fsks that may or may net be within
tha control of the Compamy, Shauld any of the risks highSighted hare matedalize, i§ could have
an adverse effect on the performance of the Company and its.ordinary share peice. This section
Highlights the maln sources {but not necessarly ol of the rsks that could be Faced by the
Compary.

Unpredictable weather/climate changes

Mot of the plantstioes mie siusbed gt 5000 & sbove san leval a9 i axpoied o axtreme
weeather conditions largpely abfected by ghobad warming. Crop lossas and rechiction in yied dus
i acharse wealher conditions can cauer shartfalls in revenlse which will hamper the overad
profitability of thir basiness. Thene is also a nisic of the offedts of natral disastens on the haratdt
wueh s clroughts, landaSden, Eoeding and othes related raburs! diisben that rmay lead o
destructian i the ndscape of the plantations a5 well as the cops

Tea price volatility

The existireg macro-exonomic condidions prevaiing in the market such as the globel supply of
foa. ot domand for bea, geopoltical urcertainties, froe trade agreansents and the changes
ir ghobal cormumer trends may Riee o Sgnificant effect an the goiced of tea febchied a1 the
auctions, Pobres adopted by ditferent govemmentt and politics stabedity im o iHesast
geographies play a cnuclal role. Furthermare, inflation rates of & country will affect consumer
ipimding power and indinectly impact the compams pesformance. Should the glosal
coemrnodity markets gecw 0 the futine, auctioe prces coull impronve which may impaove the
Compary's profitabllity. A contimuous increaso i the culpart frem Kemm and Ching may resull
in the S Larkan tea industy facing Higher competition leading to mduced manging and
Lithmately fovwer peofitabiity.

Rising labour eosts and Iabour shartages

The labowsisfermha nature of the plantation seclor results Bn labouwr costs contributing 60-
T fo thecost of production of a kilcgram of fea Amy sgrificant increases in wages would
raise the cost of production by & sigrificant margin. Labower strloas asd furiser ad-hoc wage
ircrement demards can resd® Inounmst eading to fow producthity. Labodr shorfages as
migraticn of workers continue, will disrupd the tea-plecking operatiom, and will hawe
detrimental impact on revenue,

Encrease In Fertilizer pricesd/Unavailability of Fertilizers

Frtizer subskdes have a direct Enpact on the cosf pf production and overall profitabality,
Although the ban an fertlizers e been revorsed, tha Soarcity af festifires and chemicss may
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ooeTianiey, o impoels v been resticted dun to the foresgn exchange orishe. This may Cause
griat cifficulty in the progress of field practioes with ey apafcations.
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B0 CAL Team

Hishok Goonasekern, BEng - CED - Caplial Alllance Limlted Partnars

Hirving spent over 15 years in London, Singapone and Hong Kong at [P, Morgan and Morgan
Seandey in Globa! Faed [rcome Sarkets, My, Gopnaseena s CFO of CAL Partners, whene he Is
focied on budding the corporate firamce buiiness both locally and inbernaticnally, Mot
rmnﬂjlhhmm!mﬂmbimﬂnra!nglnEtmhfiHnngHﬂgﬂﬂmmmqu a teawm
advising on Asian forsign exchanga, intersst mbes. and credit markets. Hi insteutional
clientele were muli-stagegy hedge Punds. and asel manpgens who invest globally s
emerging matkets He had a Bachelors Degree in Computer Engineesing from [mperial
Colege, London

Askvanth Vijayaram, BEA, ACCA Affillate - \Vice Prosident = [rmestrent Barking

Asfrvanth joised CAL In early 2017 and has been inviived o anumber of M&s tanactions
gace He s an Affilate of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (UK ard he holds
a Bae hebor’s degree in Business Administraton [Finance) from the University of Codomba, Prics
ko Joining CAL Ashwvanthy iectured at the Serouny Instinte of Mansgpement.

Mathurya Sowndararajan, BSc - Anafyst - Investmont Banking
Makrwrya has prevaoas experiance working as a financlal anahest at Flanlogle and a MEA
Ausociate at Climb Advidors Having joined CAL in Dctaber 2032 she his bean immoboed with
brasiradet ticvs reslidend ts Equity Captal Marcets Bluding [POs and MEBA tanisctions. Matharya
kolds a Bachelor's degess in Accounding and Financial Management from Loughborodigh
Liniveraiy g i alon s Lewsl [T ACCA carlicate.
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S0 Dhsclaimes

CAL's arabysis i based on nformatian abtened tom the audibed financa! snd unaudibed
intertm financial statements suppled by Agarapatana Plantations Umited. CAL nefled primarily
an tha indcernation prondded by Agarapatana Plantations Limited and acted with dun cane, due
diiggance and contoeraton in prepeng ras mpo. CAL Sasumes mo mesporibiing for s
of eaiskiont in information Rurished by Aghrapatana Flantatans Lmited.

This mepoet 5 lor the purpose. sat out B Sechign 1,2 of this repont and shouk not be used for
ArYy Lher pumpose.

Melther all nor part of the conterts of this repo shall be disseminated 1o the public, through
acheertising, public refation, news, alid o any other poblic media without prior spproval of
Edpﬂﬂﬁumgwurﬁl:d.

In camying out this Asslgrment, anabysic deemed appropeiate and rssessments thal were
potsibte and practical winlkin the time avalable have been canied aut. Fnanclal information
and market data trom the C5F have also been wed for this Assigrment.

Thie valie recommendabions groen in the nepot ane valid a4 88 15 barch 2023 and the valdity
ol the Valuabian report/Research repodt will be for & mrivam penod of 3 months fram the
date of isaance of the finad Prospectus andfor where matedal changes have taken placo in
the Comaarn's opanaming amdrament. A o o be coeldensd far (his repart i that the
valuations carmied ot ane done based on Francial data peoaded by Agarapatana Plantations
Liritnd. Whiete the data prowided were incompiete, we have used reasnable judgment ard
wier take rosponsl bRty for the same
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Copies of the Prospectus and the Application Form can be obtained free of charge from the following collection points.

MANAGERS AND FINANCIAL ADVISORS TO THE OFFER

Capital Alliance Partners Limited
Level 5, “Millennium House”,

46/58, Navam Mawatha, Colombo 02
Tel: +94 11 2317777

Fax: +94 11 2317788

COMPANY

Agarapatana Plantations Limited

53 1/1, Sir Baron Jayatilaka Mawatha,
Colombo 1

Tel: +94 11 2381 508 / +94 11 5388 388
Fax: +94 11 2381 513

REGISTRARS TO THE OFFER

S S P Corporate Services (Private) Limited
101, Inner Flower Road,

Colombo 083.

Tel: +94 11 257 3485

Fax: +94 11 257 3609
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ANNEXURE 6 - TRADING PARTICIPANTS OF THE COLOMBO STOCK EXCHANGE

NDB Securities (Private) Ltd.

Level 2, NDB Capital Building, No. 135, Bauddhaloka Mawatha,
Colombo 4.

Tel: +94 11 2 131 000

Fax: +94 11 2 314 181

E-mail: mail@ndbs.lk

Almas Equities (Pvt) Ltd

Westin Tower, 5th Level, No 2 - 4/1, Lake Drive, Colombo 8
Tel: +94 11 2 673 908

Fax: +94 11 2 673 908

E-mail - info@almasequities.com

Asha Securities Limited.
No.60, 5th Lane, Colombo 3.
Tel: +94 11 2 429 100

Fax: +94 11 2 429 199
E-mail: asl@ashasecurities.net

J B Securities (Pvt) Ltd.

No. 150, St. Joseph Street, Colombo 14.
Tel: +94 11 2 490 900

Fax: +94 11 2 430 070

E-mail: jos@jb.lk

Asia Securities (Pvt) Ltd.

4th Floor, Lee Hedges Tower, No. 349, Galle Road, Colombo 3
Tel: 494 11 7 722 000

Fax: +94 11 258 4864

E-mail: inquiries@asiasecurities.lk

S C Securities (Pvt) Ltd.

5th Floor, No. 26B, Alwis Place, Colombo 3.
Tel: +94 11 4711 000/ +94 11 4 711 001
Fax: +94 11 2 394 405

E-mail: itdivision@sampathsecurities.lk

First Capital Equities (Pvt) Ltd.
No. 2, Deal Place, Colombo 3.
Tel: +94 11 2 639 898

Fax: +94 11 5 736 264

E-Mail: equity@firstcapital.lk

Nation Lanka Equities (Pvt) Ltd.

No.44, Guildford Crescent, Colombo 07.
Tel: +94 11 7898302

Fax: +94 11 2673355

E-mail - info@nlequities.com

Somerville Stockbrokers (Pvt) Ltd.

No. 1A, Park Way, Park Road, Colombo 5.

Tel: +94 11 2 502 852 / +94 11 2 502 854 / +94 11 2 502 858 /
+94 11 2 502 862

Fax: +94 11 2 502 852

E-mail: contact@somerville.lk

John Keells Stock Brokers (Pvt) Ltd.
No. 186, Vauxhall Street, Colombo 2.
Tel: +94 11 2 306 250

Fax: +94 11 2 342 068

E-mail: jkstock@keells.com

Acuity Stockbrokers (Pvt) Ltd.

No. 53, Dharmapala Mawatha, Colombo 3.
Tel: +94 11 2 206 206

Fax: +94 112206 298 /9

E-mail: sales@acuitystockbrokers.com

Lanka Securities (Pvt) Ltd

No. 228/1, Galle Road, Colombo 4.

Tel: +94 11 4 706 757 / +94 11 2 554 942
Fax: +94 11 4 706 767

E-mail: info@lankasec.com

Capital Trust Securities (Pvt) Ltd.

No, 42, Mohamed Macan Markar Mawatha, Colombo 3.
Tel: 494 11 2174174 / +94 11 2174 175

Fax: +94 112174173

E-mail: inquiries@capitaltrust.lk

CT CLSA Securities (Pvt) Ltd.

4-14, Majestic City, 10, Station Road, Colombo-4.
Tel: +94 11 2 552 290 - 4

Fax: +94 11 2 552 289

E-mail: info@ctclsa.lk

Bartleet Religare Securities (Pvt) Ltd.

Level “G”, “Bartleet House”, No. 65, Braybrooke Place,
Colombo 2.

Tel: 494 11 5 220 200

Fax: +94 11 2 434 985

E-mail: info@bartleetstock.com
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Capital Alliance Securities (Pvt) Ltd.

Level 5, “Millennium House”, 46/58 Navam Mawatha, Colombo 2.

Tel: +94 11 2 317 777
Fax: +94 11 2 3177 88
E-mail: info@cal.lk

First Guardian Equities (Pvt) Ltd.

32nd Floor, East Tower, World Trade Centre,
Colombo 1.

Tel: +94 11 5 884 400 (Hunting)

Fax: +94 11 5 884 401

E-mail: info@fge.lk

Richard Pieris Securities (Pvt) Ltd.

No.310, High Level Road, Nawinna, Maharagama
Tel: +94 11 431 0500

Fax: +94 11 280 2385

Email: communication@rpsecurities.com

LOLC Securities Limited

No. 481, T.B.Jayah Mawatha, Colombo 10.
Tel: +94 11 588 9889

Fax: +94 11 266 2883

E-Mail: info@lolcsecurities.com

Asia Capital Stock Brokers (Pvt) Ltd.
No. 59, Gregory’s Road, Colombo 07.
Tel: +94 117 564 000

Fax: +94 112 331 756

E-Mail: info@acapstockbrokers.lk

Softlogic Stockbrokers (Pvt) Ltd

Level 16, One Galle Face Tower, Colombo 02.
Tel: +94 11 7 277 000

Fax: +94 11 7 277 099

Email: ssb.inquiry@softlogic.lk

Enterprise Ceylon Capital (Private) Limited.

2nd Floor-4B, Liberty Plaza, 250, R. A. De Mel Mawatha,

Colombo 3

Tel: +94 11 244 5644, 11 230 1861/2
Fax: -

E-mail:info@ecc.lk

Ambeon Securities (PVT) LTD

2nd Floor, No. 10, Gothami Road, Colombo 08.
Tel: +94 11 5328 200/ +94 11 5 328 100

Fax: +94 11 5328 177

E-Mail: info@ambeonsecurities.lk

Nestor Stock Brokers (PVT) Ltd
No. 02, Gower Street, Colombo 5.
Tel: +94 11 5388 138

Fax: +94 11 2 550 100

E-Mail: info@nestorstockbrokers.lk

Senfin Securities Limited

4th Floor, No.180, Bauddhaloka Mawatha, Colombo 04.
Tel: +94 11 2 359 100

Fax: +94 11 2 305 522

E-Mail: info@senfinsecurities.com
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ANNEXURE 7 - CUSTODIAN BANKS

Bank of Ceylon
Head Office

11th Floor, 04, Bank of Ceylon Mawatha, Colombo 01.

Tel: +94 112 204064

Citi Bank, N A

65 C, Dharmapala Mawatha.
P. O. Box 888, Colombo 07.
Tel: +94 114 794728

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC
Commercial House

21, Bristol Street, P.O. Box 853, Colombo 01.

Tel: 011 2 445 010-15

Deutsche Bank AG
P.O. Box 314, 86, Galle Road, Colombo 03.
Tel: 011 2 447 062 / 011 2 438 057

Hatton National Bank PLC

HNB Towers, 479, T. B. JayahMawatha, Colombo 10.

Tel: +94 112 661 762

Union Bank of Colombo PLC
64, Galle Road, Colombo 03.
Tel: +94 112 374205

Nations Trust Bank PLC
256, Sri Ramanathan Mawatha, Colombo 15
Tel: +94 114 313131

Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC
Head Office

450, Galle Road, Colombo 03.

Tel: 011 2 565 565

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

24, Sir Baron Jayathilake Mawatha, Colombo 01.
Tel: 011 2 325 435, 011 2 446 591, 011 2 446 303

People’s Bank

Head Office - Treasury, 5th Floor, Sir Chittampalam A Gardiner
Mawatha, Colombo 02.

Tel: 011 2 206782

Public Bank Berhad
340, R A De Mel Mawatha, Colombo 03.
Tel: 011 2 576 289, 011 7 290 200-7

Standard Chartered Bank
37, York Street, P. O. Box 112, Colombo 01.
Tel: +94 112 480450

Sampath Bank PLC
110, Sir James PeirisMawatha, Colombo 02.
Tel: +94 115 331458, +94 114 730662

State Bank of India
16, Sir Baron Jayathilake Mawatha, Colombo 01.
Tel: +94 114 622350

Seylan Bank PLC

Level 8, Ceylinco Seylan Towers,
90, Galle Road, Colombo 03.

Tel: 011 4 701 812,011 4 701 819
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ANNEXURE 8 - INDEPENDENT CONFIRMATION FROM EXTERNAL AUDITORS

“Hruch Crnral”
04, o Roed,
Ciskinribnd 05,

27" tarusary 2073 e
LRt e

Trar B o Deectors E e i TR e L

Agarapatara Pantations Limited i

Ho53 1,

Gr fiaron Myatla Miwitha,

Colorrba 01

St Lanka.

Diear Sire! Meadiamis,

Evaluation of the propased IPO price and the share issue prige in March 2003 of Agarapatana
Plamtaticns Limited

W Punve gvalkuated The proposed #10 penoe of Rs: 900 per shaee provided iy the maragemend and shanes
e prce of Br % 00 pa share in Maech 2000 of Agarsnatsns Puntafions Limited. The puepose & our
wvalpaticn i o deteiming whesher The propomed PO price will ol give an wrdoe cvesgaoe Tor miaing
shapebaices,

ki Income Approach
2, harket Approsch
3. At Apcdoach

Wi v Used Tolkwang informaton in evakabing the poopoisd B0 prioe and e jhansd Sioesd proe,

fugted Financial matements i of 31° Maech 2032 and 317 March 2021

< Feveyean e flow progeciions o of 31* December P23,

- Share rsue detads Trom 17 ey S027 1o 317 December 1007

- Firanciah siarements o of 317 December 20032
Buniness waluation deport datid 1 4% Felany 2P, prepansd by Moo Coraiing (Pl Lid
Burpingey Vst ion epor] dabed 207 Lsrgury 2073, prepadid iy Copetal Adisengi Parmes Lemied.
Cimerwalie Makel mlormaton,

Thie share wsoed peion in bark 2007 vers agcondsng bo o busress sehsbon performed 5 of 31F December
2031 s e ghir ingoere approach and the net aset approach. The market approach fus not been wed
o 1k vakistaon 36 of 379 December S0 due i the negatve finanosl perlormanait of e company &
of ¥1% December M2t Reler Appenda (03 for 1he detads of negatee s of 1he compasy & of 31¢
Drecewnber 2021

Thie peopoeed PO prce s .atoeding 1o A berines vabuerion performed aof 37° December JOGT baved 0f
Eher mardoet appeosch whene moome sl felansel annioi s, weene mol used iy B (DRDLEISIcNn,

Thistelore, we hine repeformed the esss valuton a6l 317 Decembar 772 wsing The- ooome
approsch shdd the pet oot ADMOALT s ofger D Pvaluae Ehe s value of The cormpany a5 of 517
Decembe X007 i Bne weeh) 1he approadies sed as of 317 Derember JO71. A5 8 reasl we have aonved
af B, 8.97 of por unaee waisr i ol 11° Degember J00EF baned pn fhe roonse spproach snd the nel aseet
approach (Reter Appende: 01 Re-fompotation of the busineys valostion @ of 31 Decernber 20225

L Wn, R, P ] b et L e |

b ik
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Wi chasrsed than thee rereese inshane prce Trom 319 Geeember A021 b0 31" Decermier 2002 5 85 a resull
of the sgnificant monesas in nevinue Bguses B 1e cash Mo proecton of 319 Depember 2002 ¢ompated
i the canh Tlowe propcion as of 119 Decernber M2, Raded o the intenm prolit of logs statement for the
paree {0 mcerths pnced December 5022, we obnerved that this nevermst has mcieased in acbual ke, The
inciedtE o mahly due B0 The inorease i sea mision prices mmposed afier 31° December 2021 & pet 1P
rranagemenl (Refer Appénds 03 for detsd comparson of progeciions and actusl financal perdormanges)
Clur evaluaasion on he publich selable information aso evidenced the inomase in bea auction pricey. Refor
Monenare 01 aod 02 for the Monlidy Tea Statitics publshed by S0 Lanka Fea Board for 317 Deoember
2021 and 30 Novernier 2002 acoordingly [The Letest wslies Juction prices Fuse been update for Mosssmbier
K220 Furthee the cash fiow projections snd the valustion ssurglions including thes didoun B Fave
alsn thandged from 31" December 3031 o 31* Decembar 3023 based on the numesoun volabilities olbseved
i the marke dunneg the peniod from 00" January 2022 10 317 December 10230 which has deochod a changa
m he brrssia vislusslcn

Furthey, we harer re=periormed the marke] apprcach 1o evaluate The value per share & ol 31° December
2001 since the 170) walie 2 of 37° December 2003 has been derivad baied on e mmarket appeoach Reler
duppierios 03 Too ey distaib]), Acrordingly, the busress vabue based on market approach has abso demved
&1 Ra 3 50 per shave value a5 of 317 Degember 2021

Arcordingty, the wwnming of 1he= svalisbon ol 1he shane yelustion ieudts s of 31% Degember 2077 ate a8
Toligwry Fou the shang imsucd peico of Rs. 5.00 per sharg,

Vishus o share bavsd on the incoms spproach | Repeidormed salse por vhan batsd an e
and Mai Asvel spproach Murket approach for evalustion parpes
ﬂﬂ”ﬂ-'ﬂ'ﬁm-ﬂhmmﬁ
Fs AT [T

the summary of the evaluaton of the shaie valuaton resufs a3 of 37* December F022 are a8 Toliows for
thee peoporisd B0 poce of Rs, 500 pes share,

" Walue per share Daned on the Market apprach | Reparformeed value per share baed on the |
evaluation purposs
Rs. 5,00 R BGr

Further, the masagement ol Agarapatana Plantasions Lmied has confirensd that thene was orly one share
e in Bdanch 20F3 for The bwvebve £17) mardba perisd freen 1T Janiany 207 o 317 December #1E

Bccorngly, ay piv our ewalustion we con obsenae Ehat the shares mued o B e (03] monibs
prevecing o the dabe of applcation of 1PD (March 3023 do not provide a0 ondue gan 56 1R exisling
shareholders 3 the expense of 1he 1PO invesions.

17 the correst ol Ehe phesent walaliy n (e Dusiness ervieniment., the value of a share can ako vary within
a shorl Eame igen
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Appendixes
Appendix 1

The suswemacy of re-computed wadustion setlts b of 317 Decermber 2077 baded o0 B inaone appioddch
and ihe St Ao aporoach & a5 loSows,

RSP e i T OIS 417532 5.1 B43 & 351 780
Foorme Apprnach [Dacosied Lt Flow A 208N BT 80 TAAL N

| frthed] —1
T AT Approach 3,199.55] TAIGEI 3EAT000
ipaphlid et oY T ] LE7E 1523
VR ARG [N aRarThed g Flowr EE] Ti5E 833

| merihod)

hsi Asnat Aporoach For FEE] B

-Sirde he comital Aisnce Parkreers Limibed hart apotied 8 7 T9% dabouit 1o B valuaios pee, we hee i
Appi The sl dapunt mogeraang th walue P share

Value pet share i of 377 Dvceerbat 7007 i 1106 |
| Appicaton of ¥F% decount ha 0137

Pt valkos per thaee T X0
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Appendix 01 (Contd. )

Computation of Buniness Value wing Distounted Cak Flow Metkaod
R D00

ewrwe | adnatel  weines | mnem | s | axean | s

| Contof sy Agergeal  GTniae| jawesn | esnwe | woresss| enan
Gmpott | umenl  aowmsesl aosess| amsows| agream|  somows
| Cote oo 58 13 WE T 1ZE 756 113000 1 1,00 115,000

e TH, P BoEel Aauiagi  Sape EER L L_ 4.4
ciril Tk
e ARLPEE L DALGAN L VN0 131,500 151,580 AL

18,150
T 17,435 mEE| s piF] AT DS
bW 638,738 T, 238,396 TS |
Tasatirn 17233567 GE5EOY | vsaresy|  daeree | 23ecoce | 3aresa
Adet Interest 202,387 367130 151,500 | §5 1,500 151,500 151,500 |
'ﬁﬁ_ LA 7L h R AL N e gy LIMEI

bt el Tao [ER TESA TS [ 2 a0 £l LR LEL L 4352 658

Depreciition 131,190
LBFTRA iosharel GeRmal SEMANL Loyl MR LS
1 LR 10 THE | a0l e FRCEN ] FAARNLY FaARGLI0 |
_,IE i1, 743 3 B3] QIGIRL ]  GNARIOH] (ORINIL LIP66ED
Loy CAPEN, LAY RS | CEOT ] GIRMN ] QST L G i
E.-.. b ] Mapl inasel sl Lom)  LHSAN
| Termdinal Walue ILTEED
Eramiifil Fake = 0e a6 B -1 r N I P r T R
AN | TSI BTS2 L5 BT
1 5eT.EID
Debda (Dabit «
Chvmrdraf - [Cash
|+ FOB 41520, 140}
| Tonel Vluy 0,677 EA0
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Appendix 02
Detad computinon of progectiont. and sctual linsncal prrlimance
e dEaan 5,381 55BL 374 LEHS |
| Cot ol fakny HAN T 14, 247 £50) [ c LR L %[N0
S et ; £1.209 1,133,780 LEALE 2,588.199 |
G0 Chamge n Ler ek
MEEM =8 117 a .
b [pwinevs 158365 S8 P 000 107 35 |
| Admiriurater bxpoon (AT (138 454 {142,835 (548 5471 |
 fvnar g gime (AT Az :
_Eﬁl'um Lo EE AT {02 287} {165,520} (353,323 |
[k} baboa incoma Taw
| Experrie b BT [N EF LY {PE, D60 1536558 |
LSOt s R S« 1 S 1 1 I S S
e Prodin (hass) for the Period Pl el ] 1,79.117 {78,554 1,936,550 |

Thee coompon chmily Shoe thal e revonoe projection kua Bops mersated. The schill ievenue deoid
Tiew: tive snes [ et 0 peereaed At Delbects gl The (gt 33 ol 3= Depemie 200 1 mong sealkgi
than the ropciion s ol TF Destemdeer JT1,
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Appendix 03

Thee sumemuiey of vabaation i of 31° Decernber 2001 Dasid on the Rark et spomach i s fofows,

[ Price o Book Muiple | 50.00% AL B0 412, 445 e
| T ras Rl 5000 415,063 1,41, 05 EEE 4B
. Referarce Price. | i —

The Batiet appreach wis bised 0 & comparon of the ety o Compsr s puliicly Udded compuay
and fransactiont in i ndusty. The vakaabon toed on masket appeoach tred o marioe! mubiple 2=
1ol

= Pricy oo Book Vet Mubpie
= Eideciane Moltinie

FER fPrce bos Earvang) RERg: wiah rebrd pmd Ben dlpnprerane The valod B 1he OOeTyupmy o o pooeced 4
Fit bt B the pencd e 11 Decemiber 2021
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n.n.nlauur-q- 01 Tea sabas o auction: End Decambaer 2021

Monthly Tea Statistics — December 2021
I TEA PRODUCTION

Cumulatnee ted production lor the pernod fanvary [0 December 2021 shows an increate o 7%
againad lat year.

D danuary 1o Dec
Eleuation k1P pier ] 2021 HiHd
e ! oy g ]
i gh i erwy A5EE T BLI7HA0 BRAMET  &LMMAW
Bedium Gromm LI s 47539 SRS, 716 &6, TEr.256
Lo Gednan 137 M0 173653807 18310615 169.ETT.005

Tea Production [Category wise)

Dee Ianuary te Dee

Canegory Firrd | 2000 Iar] Finris]
g kg LA L1

Qahadoe|Inclusi ng Bio, Recliimed) B33 553 X5 T4T.EB0 I TIL S 2o, T o0k
o 1008120 2729590 1T ZeOVITL
Geeen 194,382 185,884 2,572.37% 1,027,654

Thr sl grodacton Mpuies sie cacludng isbant 100 and debeds of Lhe Barse tea o o hfioes,

[¥ear | December | G December
2l | 5 T Y7 °E )
I 20 | FTIETH 1063331 |

& BALES IBATA

Sales pd Anctios Enad December 2020 (AN Inclesihve)

|T-'"“*— i kg Coroms Umi Price M ke |
Glightiown (AL “EI |
Mpdwm Lirean L3 FAE A% ELEN
Larar [ imsiati (R s A |

Sasurcer SLTR Sakey Riguert
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L EXPORTS STATISTICS- DECEMBER 2021

o

i

| B gk Eﬁu vl Lhel EEEERED




Armaxurg 02 ¢ Tea sales auctian - End Novesmbar 2022,

I thiy Ten Statisiics — Nov r
L TEA PRODUCTION
Cumblative tea production for the penod Nowember 20E2 shows a deoeaso of 17% against last
Wiar,
Feime i
Lipaubson axy wor
LT ]
High Trwan MRS AL
Wevtarn Caawn LAY LFIAIEY
[ EREOLERY TG
Tea Productios [Criegory wie
HoE T
CEagery kg E. B
L7 L
On e by B, Pechgmad’ IEIFRAL  AGIADST
o 150197  LATLAAS
G A AT7 1SAED
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Py 16 Pl
Bl i
L L |

DEAMALD LT TR
20, TAATS KL LR T
(LB 4, 3FF 0

Thi pbsrvie produecien T sre sachuding vtent tep and detaide of By nptant beg st dollow

Taas hienmnkas | Dol Mowsmmsar
Mk (W0 b ] ERal i
Wl ¥oLIA B e

1. SALES DATA

Sabes al Awction Cnd November 2EEZ[AN inclushe]

Ehevariion Oy Ky Geroas Unill Frce (R (RE.0
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el 3 Gy I, 7 D e L
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+
£ Manthly Exports
25T Wermpribey
g Wabue Fb Pl Bl
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[N LAML BTN LT L L iR
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ANNEXURE 9 - MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT AND THE ADDENDUM

" AGREEMENT BETWEEN

AGARAPATANA PLANTATIONS LTD
# &

LANKEM TEA & RUBBER PLANTATIONS (PVT) LTD
(FORMERLY KMOWN AS GEQROE STEUART MANAGEMENT SERVICES (PVT) LTD)

THES AGREEMENT [n made on the ZBth day day of December, 1597 babawean
Agarapalans Plantaons Limiled. a company duly incorporaled in Sd Lanka,
having its regisbored office at 760, Baseline Road, Colombo 08 (heneinafier
refarmed 1o 83 the "Company™ of the one part, AND Lankem Tea and Rubber
Flantations Limited, & comparry duly incorporated in 36 Lanka and having s
regpileded office af 750, Baseling Road, Colombo Cf (hereinafiar ralerred to as
the “Managing Agent”) of Ihe cihar past,

WHEREAS the Company is desirous of engaging the senvces of the Managing
Agant io manage the Business and Asssls of ha Company;

AMND WHEREAS the Managing Agent has the aklls and expertise and alsa the
abiity ba pracure experiss such as is needed by the Company and is agresable
fo ublise the said skils and experlise in the management of the Business and
#Azzets of the Company

AHD WHEREAS the parties inbend to anber into an Agreement n lesms of which
the Company would hand over the Business and Assels io the Managing Agant
rurnwnm”m and thereafier tha Managing Agent would 20 mARage same for
b .

WHEREAS in consideration of the services rendered by fhe Managing Agent,
the Company shall remimendte the Managing Agent for the performancs of the
sasd managament Sendoes.

ROW IT 1S HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

1. ENGAGEMENT OF THE MANAGING AGEMNT AND RELATED
MATTERS

1.1 The Company hereby appeints the Managing Agent to manage ke
assets of ihe Company end serve the Company as The Company's
manapar in the day bo day running of e Business of e Company,
which said seraces ang mong fully descnbed in clase 2 hereof, and he
htanaging Agent hereby accepls (he appoiniment on the larms and
conditicns as sef out in this Agresmant,

1.2 The appeintment shall commenca on the firsl day of Jarary, 1588,

B « la &
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1.3Tha Managing Azeni shall ba entitied 1o & remunarafion dwing each
financial yéar on the following basis:-

1.4

1.5

=

A fem squivalent to 4% of the Company’s fLmover.
A fee equivalent o 3 5% of the Company's profit
Buying commission of 2% on purchase of supplies.
Crop charge of Rs. 0.7 per kg. of tea sold,

Dafinitons of teams uwsed in 1.3 -

Tumover méans the lotal revenue recaived by the Company
durirg the financial year. '

i’
Financial year means the twehve month penod 18t Apeil fo
318t March,

Profit means gross revenus for a partcular financial year ass all
expanditure inchuding retiing gratuity provision, but sxcluding
deprecialion, amortization, lease rental, iMerest payments, proSt
and loss from sabe of capital assets and capital expandiune.

Crop is the total quantity of tea (inchadeng bought leal)
accounted for a8 sold in & paticular financial year,

Supplies means all purchases incheding feriliser, chemicals,
packing malefals and capial equipmant procured by the
Managing Agent on bahalf of the Company.

The mode of payment of the Managemant Fee shall be as foliows:-

Fees/chargesicommission based on tumover, supplias and
crop shall ba computad monthly and paid before the end of

the following manth.
Fes based on profits shall be -
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- Computed an the basis of the Inteim Cruarterdy
Accounts and B0% of such fee be paid within ene rsantih

alter the completion of the quaster,

- The final paymaent of such profit based foes shall be made
within ane month after complaticn of the anrual swdd of the
Cosmpany :

1.8 Provided however, in the event the Company undersakes new ventuies
of projects, the Company and the Managing Agerd shall agres on
further sums 1o be pakd &s Management Fees fo the Managing Agent for
camying oul additional managerial functions ansing frem such new
venfunes of propsclt

SCOPE OF SERVICES AND RELATED MATTERS

21 The Managing Agend shall render o fhe Company all sarvces
nocessany for the managerment of tha Comgany inchephve of bul not
necessanly confined ta the foliowing services ]

211 The cverall management of the Assets and the Business of the
with & view to maximising the lang term profiabilih of
the Comparty.

21.2 Tha day 1o day management of the Extsles, Fnrr:l-:-h:-_.lm: and
Business of ihe Company.

21.3 The management, deciplinany contral and recutment of the stafl

and labour of the Haad Office, Regional Offices, Estaltes and
Factories for the purpose of the Business of the Compiny.

2.1.4 The purchasing and procurement of goods and seqvices
216 Apronofmic Managemant senices. g

216 The management and suparvision of the faciories in alf aspects of
YOCEES engnesing

21.7 Markebng serdces.

21,8  The management of pccounts and finandial management including ail
aspecis of Bnancial condrol, budgeling, financsal planning. payments,
bank transactons and financial autherisations, of the Assets and
Business of the Compary.
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2159 Amanging the procurement of sdeguats working Capital and
irestmeant Capial for development expanditure &8 is requinad
for tha pugposes of the Company on the sacurity of tha Assels af the
Comgpany,

2.1.10 Amanging for requined tachnical suppat Bcludeng braining of stafl
and labour, :

21,11 The representabions of the Company & all matiers conneched with
the Assels and Business of the Compary, inclushe of représentation
in courts, tribunals and bodies adudicaing on the fghts and e
duties of the Company and rendesing assisiance &8 i3 required in
connection thamwith,

2112 The Managing Agend shall on or befohs February 1. each year subimil
to the Board a Comporate Plan for a pedod of five (5) years staning
Apiil 1 of ach year setling out the developmant programme for tha
Estates and the Campany, uﬂmdahmmnualrmamm

¥ basis on or before Ociobar 31 oach year,

2.1.13 The Managing Agent shall submit to the Board a budget covering the
period April 1 to March 31 on or before February 1, each year,

The Annual Budget shall consist aft

Cparations Budgels including anbopated revenues, all
expenditune for openaBons including bul nod imited 1o the ooss
of production, adminesirative costs, seliing expanses, intarest,
taxas and extra-ordinary nooma and expenditure, and tha
remuneration for the Managing Agent. The cash fiow
requiremants of the Company should also be sat out a8 parn of
tha said O perations Budged,

Capital Budget containing all mxperditures of a capital nature.
2.1.14 Tha Managing Agent shall provide to the Board within thirty (30) cays
of sach month a report on the performance of the Company
comnining the fellowing infommation
= Key aspects of physical and financial operabions and progress
= Thee status of fmancial performancs against the budget wath

cosmiparison of actuad end targeted figures and indicadons of
working caphal reguirements for the next guaner,

Nn %Qﬂ
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- The Managing Agem shall snsure that snneal sudit repeds, in

cp-pperation with independent audiftors, are finalsed and
1o e Bocard not lader than thres (3) manibs of the
efeach Accounting Peried. In the envent that the

Managing Agent is unabie to & 8o in &ny year due o
unforesean droumstances tha Managing Agent shall notify tha
Boand i writing as o the reatons for nol mestng the deadline
and requast an edansion of the pefiod for the submission of
audited accounts.

3. AUTHORITY OF THE MANAGING AGENTS AND RELATED MATTERS

an

32

a3

Without in sny way préjudicing Bhe rights and deminishing o incremsing
the Babilites of the company ansing In terms of its Memorardurm and
Articles of Association, the leases and confracts entered into by the
Company, any réquirements of tha law of Sh Lanks howsoever anting,
and subsect to whal ts heneln provided, and the guidelines on policy
which the Board may lay down from fme to fime, the Managing Agen

in the exarcise of s funclions under this Agresmenl shall have al
poweers and suthorties needed 1o manage the Company’s Business and
Asssis Be aforesaid fully, sfiecthedy snd sfficenty

Tha Managing Agent through its officars shall have the power bo
ghee dirsctions end exercize control over all empioyees of the Company

Hobathstanding iy provisien sontained hansin, the Managing Agent
shall ned without price waition approval of the Eoard:

331 Bomow money on behall of the Company.
332  Sell or cthenwise dispose of any of the movable and

immovable assets of the Company ofher than in the erdinany
courge of business,

333 Commit the Company to any expendiure nol coversd by the

esfimabes previously approved by tha Board, seve necessany
expandius which could not reasonably hawve been foreseen al
the firse of the messfng of She Board ek next bafone the

expandies was ncumed,
334  Createany lease, mofgages, chaige of hen of other

ercumbeadcs of whiabawer nates on the whols or any part of
e Assels or Business of the Comparny

l
Ner
‘K‘\,
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235 Subbcribe, on behall of the Company to any shane capital or
lain capetal of any other company of cause the Company to
dipar into parnersinip ar pralil sharing amangement with any
Fﬂuﬂ.

336  Cause the Company sither directly or indiecily 1o lend or give
eriedit o afy person in the ordinary eourse of s business and

137 Cause the Company bo guarantse or ghwe an indemnity in
regpact of ary indabbedness of Babllity, whather setual o
contingent, of any parson, o (o assurme any Rability for the

benefid either direcly ar indinectly of any such parson.

4. DBLMGATIONS OF THE MANAGING AGENT

4.1 Without prejudics to the foregoing provisians of the Agresment
inchusive of thoss casting obiigations.on the Managing Agant xprasshy
orimphadly, the Managirg Agent shall dischange its duties and
respanaiblites arsing hereundsr and manage and develop the sakd
Estalas and Business with 8 degres of professionad skl not less than
that customany b such discharge, management and devalopment, with
dua diligenca and efficency and in conformity wilh sound technecal,
administrative, business, financial and other ralevant practcs with &
vienw' bo maximising the long profitabiity of the Company.

4.2 The Managing Agent shall act at all times o a3 to protect the interests

" af the Comgary and shall nol make any secrel profits, and shall take
all reasonable sleps 1o keep expensss 19 a minimum consistant with
sound business, finandial, agricultural and lachnical practices.

4.5 The Maraging Agant ahall take all reascnable sieps to ensuns that
. any empleyes-or confrackor of the Managing Agenl of any specialist

engaged lor the purpese of this Agreement shall noft, axcépt with the
prior waitien congent of the Board, during the MMana paricd o
after its termination disclose to any persen, body or , By
eonfidantial mforrrabion nalating to the Business or affairs of the
Company of its customers which may come 1o the knowledge of the
Managing Agenl or such parson during such Managemend penoad

Hotwithstanding the above, the anaging Agent may discloss
information of 8 confidental nature relating lo thé Comparny, #s Estales,
Assats of Busdness, fo any person 1o the extant that such IS necedssny

and propar for the performanca of the duties of the Manasging Agent or
s required by any Statute or Order of any competent court or tibuna!
haning jusisdiction,

s 1]

%P\(_ ~ \ e
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£ OBLIGATION ::_rF‘rHE COMPANY

8.1 'I'I'ulnhihgiwn of the Company under thes Agreement shall include
bt not b confined bo the fallowing:

1.1 Use ils bes! endpavowrs 1o facilitate the perdormance of (ke
Managing Agant's dubies undér this Agresment and co-operate 1o
the fullest exbenl possible with the afficers and stafl of the
Managing Agent

51.2 Ganarally vesl in the Managing Agaent all such powsrs os are
reasonably nacessary o enabie the Managing Agend o
efficierily and eflectively discharge its funclions and obligations
unded this Agreement and ratify actions done by tha Managing
Agent in the compliance of #s obiigations under this Agreamand
it guch ratification B wanended

2.1.3 Morigage the Assels of the Company for the purpose of
bameaing 1o meal e warking capsal and investment capital
needs of the Cofmpary & requined under this Ageement and
in accordance with the borrowing powers vested in the Company
by its. Memarandum and Arficles of Association

514  Assislthe Managing Agent by way of the axscution of any
document necessany 1o secure through bofrowing an adequate
leval od funding both for cparation and for davelopment as
resquiired under the Agresment

51.5 Pay such s a8 are payabde 19 the Managing Agent under the
Agresaimaent

L TERMINATION

: Edttsé ety may bisrnanats this Agreament by ghving 180 days notice in
wirding o theet othar.

T SETTLEMENT OF DSPUTES AND ARBITRATION

If &t ary Hma any question, deputs or difference of apinion in refation 1o,
o in conneciion with or pertalning to the Agreement or any part thereo! or
in the interpratation of any provision herain contained or percaived as
such by esther party, shall arnise between the Company and the Managing
Agent, which cannol be amicably seitied betweean the two pasties thessal,
it shall e refesred to ArbitraSon,
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8.2

Ba

KOTICES

Ary notice b oiher communicaton undes this Agreament to the Company
ar the Mamaging Agen shal be givan in witng and shall be dallwared by
parsonal ditivery, pra-pasd registered post, or by lebex or facsmile
addressed to the party 10 whom such notice or communication is direched
such notice or commanicaton shall be desmed 1o have besn recaivad by
the addressee (as apphcabia]

i1 If by parsansl deliverny, on tha date of personal delivery to such
Addnassee's place of business as last notifed in advance of

posting or dedivary by the addresses; or

12) I by posling, teo (2) days after the dats of registered pasting 1o the
pddresses’s place of business as kast notified in acvance of posting
or delivery by that pary; o

{3} _Ill:p-ﬂam.mnw'ﬂn facsimia tranamisslon to
the facsimile number last noliffied in advance of rangrmésaion by the
sddrasess with the recsipt of the appropriale rensmisson contact
e,

Far the purpese of this Agreamant fhe respective addesses of the partes
hereto shall be as follows:-

Address af Company el Baseing Read, Colombo 05,
Fax Rumber EB2T2E
Telephone Numbsar 07 4-616280

Address of Managing Agent 760, Baselne Road, Colombo G5,

_Fant Mumbear 685350

Talaphone Number =L Fe

Any natice given by regisiened mail shall be desrmed 1o have besn
receved by the addiesses four () working days after i has been posted
a5 aforesaid, and any notice given by way of lacsimila shall ba deamed to
have been received by the addressss aight (8) warking hours after it has
been sgnt in the manner aloresad

Either party hereto miy by notice to the ather paty given in terms haneol
change the address 1o which any notice intended for the party so giving
such nofice shall be addressead.
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I WITNESS WHEREOF the Partes have hereurto and to one other of the
same tenor snd datg a3 thess presents causad thedr respectve common Seals o
be aftbed &t on this 2%h day of Decamber, 1957

Comman Seal of Agarapatina Plantations Limited

afimd i he presence of;
Ll
i
g Fe—lelp
b

Directecs of the sald company 50 heresy atiest the sad ssaling
WITHESSES
4 -Hn-r--'-:r'l-

E. 1::}*:\.- Tari

e

Commmen Seal of Lankam Tea & Rubiber Plantations {Pvt) Limited

Pl {':J"'
I Lty "'";Z {
Diinactor

Cirectors of the said company o henely altés! ne sad seaing
WITHESSES

T. #’9_’-}3‘.’:1._.-—
2 Hf;@:f:'
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ADDENDUM TO THE MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

This addendum made and entered nto at Colombo in the Demacratic
Soclalist Republic of 56 Lanka on this 30th day of Septembar 2022, by and
bebwesn LANKEM TEA AND RUBBER PLANTATIOMNS [(FVT) LTD a
Company duly incerperabed in S Lanka and having it registened office at
Mo B-2/1 York Arcade Bullding, Leyden Bastian Road, Colomba 1 in the said
Republic (hereinafter reférred to as the' Managing Agent”) of the one part
and AGARAPATAMA PLANTATIONS LTD a Company duly incorporated
and having fts registered office at 53-1/1, Sir Baron Javathilaka Mawatha
Colombo 1 (horeinafter referred bo as the "Company”’) of the ather part,

WITHESSETH

WHEREAS by Management Agreement entered into on 299 day of
December 1997  (Herginafter sometimes referred to as the ‘Principal
Management Agreement’) the Managing Agent agreed to offer its
expartise services bo manage the business and the assels of the Company
an the terms and conditions indicated therein. ;

WHEREAS upon difcussion bebween the parties it has now bBecomes
necessary to emecute this addendum  to the Principal Management
Agreemeant entered Into on 29" day of December 1997,

WHEREAS it has mow been agresd between the parties that all the
respective terms and conditions related to the  remuneration to the
Maneging Agents be annulled,

NOW THIS ADDENDUM THEREFORE WITNESSETH AS FOLLOWS:

WHEREAS The Parties have now agresd that clawses 1.3,0.4,1.5,1.6 and
5.1.5 In the Principal Mansgement Agreement to be annulled with effect
frorm 30 Septamber 2022, on the basis that Lankem Tea & Rubber
FMantations (Pvit) Ltd s an affillated Company of Agarapatana Plantations
Lirnited,

WHEREAS parties wish to execute this Addendum to the Principal
Management Agreemant previously entered as indicated aforesaid a copy
of which Is annexed hereto,

WHEREAS the partios agree that all ether terms and conditiong of the
Principal Managemant Agreemant dated 29121297 will Femain in farca,

| cErrmED TRYE COPY]
MAKAGERS & SECRETARSES (PRAATE] LTD,
e e ¢ e,

Secreisras
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WHEREAS the parties agree that the conditions of this Addendum will be
in farce and construed as a part of the Princkpal Management Agreement
throughout the continuation the Principal Managemant Agreamant.,

IH WITHESS WHEREQF tho within namead parties hereto hawve st their
hands hersunto and one other of the same tenor and date at Cabombo on
this 300" day of September Two Thousand and Twenty Two.

LANKEM TEA AND RUBBER [PVT]) LTD
Signed in presence of

H
) — 1
)
Direckor )
)
)
1

Director

|

Wiknesses
- ,I{tlll ._.-:""'—
AN aa b
1. ﬁl'll__ "':f. ..l Il-n'
2. fff {:__:'{"jn.f'!'i I."-I::;
(b ETeThE b

AGARAPATAMA PLANTATIONS LTD
signed in presence of

}
}
}
Director )
H
)
)

Director
Witnesses

L8 et

= AT BaR ATV

--.:-"--‘-!‘.‘- o sie
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